Se‘.rvi ces Corpo rati on

Acknowledgement: Photo by:
Ken Sackaney, Youth Justice / Youth Intervention Worker
Fort Albany First Nation, Ontario



Contact Information:

Head Office:
138 B. Mission Road, Fort William First Nation, ON P7J 1K7

Hub Offices:

Administrative Office & Thunder Bay

100-1805 Arthur Street E., Thunder Bay, ON P7E 2R6
Phone: 807-622-1413 Toll Free: 1-800-465-5581
Fax: 807-622-3024

Timmins Office:
119 Pine Street S. Suite 210, Timmins, ON P4N 2K3
Phone: 705-268-1105 Fax: 705-268-0012

Sioux Lookout Office:
47 A Front Street. PO Box 187, Sioux Lookout, ON P8T 1A3
Phone: 807-737-7981 Toll Free: 1-866-468-5151 Fax: 807-737-7297

Kenora Hub Office:
308 Second St. S., Suite 14, Kenora, ON, PON 1G4
Please contact Thunder Bay office for phone contact information

Auditors:
MNP LLP, Thunder Bay, ON.
July 20, 2020

2019-2020 Annual Report NALSC
© 2020 Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Service Corporation.
Published by: (NALSC) Nishnawbe-Aski Legal.

Design, Produced & Printed by: stCIpleSU"

Translations:

Special thanks to all our translators.
Cree: Angela Shisheesh

Ojicree: Charles (Fred) Brown



Welcome to NALSC Annual Report for 2019-2020

Table of Contents:

About Information . .. ... ... .. 2
Board of DireCtors . . ..ot 3-4
NAN Community Justice & Safety Symposium 2020 Photos . ............ 5-6
Executive Director Report 2019-2020 . .. ... .. ... i i . 7-8
MapP PhOtOS . .ot 9-10
NALSC Programs and ServiCesS . ...ttt eeaies 11
Restorative Justice Programming ...ttt 12-18
Gladue . .. e 19-21
Talking Together Program ...t e 22-24
ViCtM WINESS . o et e e e e e e 25-26
LA . . e 27-33
Bail Programs . ... .o e 34-35
HR RePOIt . ..o e e e e e 36
ThanKk YoU Page . ..ot e e e e e e 37
AUdit REPOrt . ..o 38-57







About Information:
Visit us @ www.nanlegal.on.ca

About NALSC

On March 1, 1990, Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation was created to address the shortcomings in the
administration of justice within Nishnawbe Aski Nation (NAN); and to improve access to justice for members of NAN.

Since 1990, NALSC has grown steadily and worked hard to develop a professional image, and to hire qualified
staff to carry out the corporation’s mandate.

Innovative and creative programs have made NALSC a leader, and at times — an example, in alternatives to justice
options. NALSC has met with success in these areas.

Mandate Mission

To promote creative community-based justice To deliver the programs and services in a culturally
systems and to deliver on a wide range of law- appropriate manner sensitive to the unique values,
related services including legal, paralegal, public legal customs and traditions of NAN communities.

education, and law reform services to members of
Nishnawbe Aski Nation.

Our Values & Principles

* Unity, Self-Governance, and Sustainability * Sharing and Partnership * Compassion and Caring
* Respect and Dignity  Humility e Wisdom
* Integrity and Honesty e Courage e Truth

A Symbol of Unity

The Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services symbol combines
the traditional elements of the Aboriginal community
with those of the Euro-Canadian tradition.

Designer Roy Kakegamic weaves a scales of justice
theme into the symbol using a balancing peace pipe.
The pipe is recognized as the historical sacred symbol
for bringing understanding between different people.
The peace pipe is balanced on a tipi, which is the
ancestral symbol for the home.

On each side of the tipi is a feather hanging from
the peace pipe. One side of the tipi is coloured white
and the other side black symbolizing the need for
understanding of the two sides of every story. In the
middle of the tipi is a red opening, an open invitation
to the coming together of both sides.

The three elements: the peace pipe, tipi and feathers are contained in a circle — the circle of life — without
beginning or end. This creates the fourth element in the design. Each of these elements represents one of the four
directions of the compass. This theme is repeated again in the four sacred colours in the symbol: red, yellow, white
and black.



Message From Board Chair
Nishnawbe Aski Legal Services Corporation (NALSC)

Wachiya, to the people of Nishnawbe Aski Nation (NAN)

My message will focus to acknowledge and share some of the arduous
experiences we have endured as First Nation people this past few months.

As we all know, it has been a very difficult year for everyone. So much has
happened in a short while affecting individuals, families and communities.

As a collective society, the whole nation shares the disadvantages of each family
and community; therefore, we shall continue to remain strong and resilient.

There are three key issues | want to share with the people of NAN in this report.

Firstly, there was the cutback of Legal Aid Ontario (LAO) funds of $133
million which had an indirect effect on our organization, mainly through the
restructuring of LAO.

Secondly, the legislation amendment, Bill 161. This legislation limits our ability
to become more independent as a Corporation. Instead Bill 161 gives more
authority to LAO on decision making.

Thirdly, the Corona Virus or Covid-19 pandemic totally disarrayed the justice
system in Ontario and all of Canada. The services were in complete chaos
for NLSC creating complicated situations for staff, board and First Nation
communities.

Through it all, we have worked diligently to minimize the negative impact on
our organization and communities as much as possible. We have approached
all levels of government to provide support to NALSC during this difficult time
to get the work done expected. By working together, we can stabilize the
situation and move forward.

Our focus in 2020-21 is strategic planning. How to provide consistent high-
quality services to NAN members in a most efficient and effective way possible
that are culturally oriented.

In conclusion, | want to thank our staff and board for their dedication and hard
work throughout the year and also the First Nation communities who have
contributed their support.

May the Creator bless our great Nation.
Miigwetch! Jim Beardy, NALSC Board Chair



Board of Directors 2019-2020

Names & Tribal Councils representing

The Board of Directors is made up of 8 voting members representing various tribal councils and areas across
NAN territory. The board is also made up of special advisors, elder representatives East/Central/West, Ex-Officio
from Nishnawbe Aski Nation corporation whom holds the portfolio of justice, and a youth representative from the

Nishnawbe Aski Nation youth council.

Board of Directors Membership

Jim Beardy, Chair
Independent First Nation Alliance

Frank McKay, Vice Chair
Windigo First Nation Council

Celia Echum, Secretary/Treasurer
Matawa First Nations

Jason Batise, Director
Wabun Tribal Council

Vacant, Director
Mushkegowuk Council

Chris Kakegamic, Director
Keewaytinook Okimakanak

Simon Winnepetonga, Director
Shibogama Tribal Council

Tom Wassaykeesic, Director
Unaffiliated First Nation Member
Mishkeegogamang First Nation

Elder East
Gregory Koostachin, Attawapiskat
First Nation

Elder West
Vacant

Elder Central
Sarah Waboose, Eabametoong First
Nation

Derek Fox, Deputy Grand Chief
Ex-Officio, Nishnawbe-Aski Nation

Randall Crowe, Youth Representative
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Executive Director Report 2019-2020
Irene Linklater B.A. LL.B.

It is an honor to serve in this position as the Executive
Director ofthe Nishnawbe AskiLegal Services Corporation
(NALSC), that began on September 16, 2019. | wish to
acknowledge my predecessor Executive Directors who
together with the Board of Directors and dedicated Staff
kept the NALSC fire strong and illuminated as it reaches
its 30th anniversary on June 1, 2020.

A full read of the program reports present the
accomplishments of this fiscal year and growth of projects
aligned to NALSC’s mandate, mission and cause to serving
the NAN communities. The summaries also provide the
importance of cultivating existing partnerships with
funders and services providers and to recognizing how
this is important to reaching our collective goals thus far,
for the upcoming year and beyond.

| believe it is important to reflect on the history and
beginnings of NALSC and where it is today. From the
Chiefs of Nishnawbe Aski Nation (NAN) Resolution
88/45 on June 30, 1988, as restated in Resolution 90/26
the Chiefs of NAN “recognizes a two-prong approach
to justice” that reads “... traditionally our people had
their own system of justice and Nishnawbe Aski wishes
to re-establish that system” and resolved to “affirm our
commitment to the goal of re-establishing traditional
forms of justice within our own communities” and
“supports the initiatives of any Band which wishes to
pursue the development of traditional justice at the
community level” and “in the interim Nishnawbe Aski
Nation continue to work onimproving the administration
of justice in our communities by participating in the
Working Group on the administration of justice in the
Remote North and its Steering Committee.” In the
following year by Resolution 89/40 on September 27,
1989 the NAN Chiefs “agree to the establishment of a
Legal Services Corporation.”

The NAN Chiefs selected a mixed legal service model
for the newly created NAN Legal Services Corporation
(LSC) in 1990 “to address the shortcomings of the
administration of justice and improve access to justice”
for the NAN member First Nations. Resolution 90/26
resolved to “respect and support those who wish to
pursue the development of traditional justice systems
while recognizing the needs of our individual members
to have adequate legal services” that “the Board of
the LSC adheres to its mandate to promote creative

community-based justice programs and to ensure
and to ensure the education of non-Native justice
personnel about First Nation traditional values and
culture” and “the Executive Council address the issue
of justice immediately, taking into consideration a
traditional component, under the Memorandum of
Understanding as an integral part of the “powers and
institutions of self-government” negotiations.

The mandate and mission of NALSC was then

formulated that guides our work and reads;
“Mandate: To promote creative community based
justice systems and to deliver on a wide range of law-
related services including legal, paralegal, public legal
education, and law reform services to members of
Nishnawbe Aski Nation.
Mission: To deliver the programs and services in
a culturally appropriate manner sensitive to the
unique values, customs, and traditions of the NAN
communities.”

NALSC has grown significantly in its 30 years of
successful operations where now Legal Aid Ontario
services and funding comprises 25% of NALSC'’s total
administrational operations and funding. The Audit
provides the financial picture. Today there are close to
100 staff, with 24 in the LAO services program and the
rest in Restorative Justice and across various programs.

NALSC ‘s offices are located at Fort William First Nation
and across the 3 Zones (East, Central West) of NAN
Territory at Timmins, Thunder Bay, Kenora, Sioux Lookout,
with community based program offices and staff in most
of the 49 NAN member First Nation communities.

Some of the events during this fiscal year included:
The efforts to renew the Memorandum of Agreement
(MOU) mandated by NAN Chiefs Resolution 2018/48
continued to be stalled then came an announcement in
the fall of 2019 of pending legislative to review the Legal
Aid Services Act, 1998. Bill 161 was introduced into
First Reading at the Ontario Legislature on December
9, 2019 as part of the Smarter and Stronger Justice Act
where Schedules 15 & 16 would repeal and replace the
existing Legal Aid Services Act. At the time of this Annual
Report the Second Reading had not been scheduled.
The primary concern with the proposed new legislation
is the delegation of broader authority to the Legal Aid



Board of Ontario, a proposed removal of statutorily
protected funding for “aboriginal corporations” of
Section 14 (1) (f) that reads “the funding of Aboriginal
legal services corporations to provide legal aid
services to Aboriginal individuals and communities:,”
elimination of diversity in regional representation on
the LAO Board and authority transferred to the LAO
Board to unilaterally develop policies and procedures
that would permanently eliminate Area Directors and
determine funding for legal aid clinics and NALSC as
a service provider of legal aid services. The proposed
new legislation will impact the MOU.

NALSC Board provided direction to management to
ourworking with LAO on LAQ’s consultation to renewing
its Aboriginal Justice Strategy from October to February
culminating in the Board approval for a blended option
to ensuring a community-based engagement with a
cross representation of Communities, Tribal Councils
and regions. The first session was held with Community
Legal Workers on February 27th. Due to COVID-19 this
has been placed on-hold.

The Justice & Safety Symposium was held on March
3 and 4, 2020 in collaboration with and in contribution
of funding together by Nishnawbe Aski Nation,
Nishnawbe Aski Police Services and Nishnawbe Aski
Legal Services Corporation. The wide range of justice
related issues addressed included several speakers
and panels represented by NALSC Staff, NAN, NAPS
and guest panelists. The Summit Report will soon be
available on the NAN website, www.nanjusticesummit.ca

A January visit to Pikangikum First Nation was made
with NALSC Area Director to attend an invitation for a
meeting of the Chief and Council with the Kenora Local
Justice and Ministry of Attorney General Indigenous
Justice Division. This was a great visit that included
seeing the community NALSC programs of HUB,
Community Legal Worker, Victim Witness Liaison and
site of pending Bail-bed facility.

Administrative measures saw the Board’s approval
of the Financial Policies and Procedures in October
prepared through MNP and Management; the
development of a Human Resources Policy continues,
oversight at the NALSC Timmins office in February
2020 for one week was an informative time with Staff
to learn of the services in NALSC East Zone.

The Board held quarterly meetings, with bi-weekly
Managers Meetings and Monthly all staff meetings
scheduled. Special Board Meetings were held with LAO
specific to the MOU and Aboriginal Justice Strategy in
October, December and February. It was agreed to and

planned that a meeting of the NALSC Board and LAO
Board would take place to discuss the results of the
consultation and report recommendations.

Other meetings attended included invitations from
Northwest and Northeast Regional Leadership Team
Meetings: (Court Personnel) Quarterly meetings; NAN
CEO quarterly meetings with the Indigenous Affairs
Office in December 2019, and in January 2020 the
Ministry of the Attorney General — Indigenous Justice
Group to present on the issues and strategies for
NALSC.

In mid-March with the COVID-19 Pandemic upon us,
the Board passed a motion for the protection of the
Health and Safety of NALSC Staff to close all NALSC offices
and Staff began working from home remotely until
further review of the COVID-19 pandemic public health
measures. The First Nation Band Council Resolutions
followed that implemented community safety and
protection measures in closing offices and restricting
travel to and from communities. Communications
to All Staff were initiated and we looked to ways to
providing NALSC services and programs and maintaining
communication with staff by phone, cell, email,
teleconference, website, and new technologies by social
media and virtual meetings through various tools such
as ZOOM, Microsoft Teams etc.

The scheduled Staff Training Conference for June
2020 and all the great planning with the community
based representatives will now be placed on hold until
the pandemic is over.

| look forward in the next year to meeting more
community based staff and to addressing the Justice issues
and strategies advocated by the First Nation leadership.

Miigwetch!
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NISHNAWBE ASKI LEGAL SERVICES CORPORATION
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INDEPENDENT FIRST NATIONS ALLIANCE

Kitchenuhmaykoosib Inninuwug First Nation
Muskrat Dam First Nation

Pikangikum First Nation

Whitesand First Nation

Lac Seul First Nation

WINDIGO FIRST NATIONS

Bearskin Lake First Nation

Cat Lake First Nation
Koocheching First Nation
North Caribou Lake First Nation
Sachigo Lake First Nation
Slate Falls First Nation
Whitewater Lake First Nation

KEEWAYTINOOK OKIMAKANAK

« Deer Lake First Nation

« Fort Severn First Nation

« Keewaywin First Nation

« MacDowell Lake First Nation
« North Spirit Lake First Nation
« Poplar Hill First Nation
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SHIBOGAMA FIRST NATIONS COUNCIL

 Kasabonika Lake First Nation
* Kingfisher Lake First Nation
* Wapekeka First Nation

* Wawakapewin First Nation

* Wunnumin Lake First Nation

MATAWA FIRST NATIONS

* Aroland First Nation

e Constance Lake First Nation
* Eabametoong First Nation

¢ Ginoogaming First Nation

* Marten Falls First Nation

e Long Lake #58 First Nation
* Neskantaga First Nation

e Nibinamik First Nation

* Webequie First Nation

Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

138-B Mission Road,
Fort William First Nation, ON

1805 E Arthur St.,
Thunder Bay, ON P7E 2R6

Toll Free: 1-800-465-5581
(T) 807- 622-1413 (F) 807-622-3024
www.nanlegal.on.ca

TREATY#9
1905-06

W Hornepayne

N

<

B Non-Indigenous Communities
O Nen LegalMain Offices Nan
@ Legal Finance Office Nan

Legal Program Offices
50 100 150 200 250

Attawapiskat
L] km
[ J
(]
Kashechewan @
Qe
Fort Albany
James Bay
® MooseGree
Moosonee @2y ocreenec
Flying Post
|

@ Constance Lake
B Hearst

W Kapuskasing
@ Taykwa Tagamou

B Oba ’l Cochrane
Wahgoshig
W Timmins
@ Missanabie Cree Beaverhouse
Matachewan
Chapleau Mattagami
Chapleau Cree ® m P W Gogama

Brunswick House
Chapleau Qjibway
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 Attawapiskat First Nation

e Chapleau Cree First Nation

* Fort Albany First Nation

e Kashechewan First Nation

© Missanabie Cree First Nation
* Moose Cree First Nation

* Taykwa Tagamou First Nation

WABUN TRIBAL COUNCIL

Brunswick House First Nation
Chapleau Ojibwe First Nation
Matachewan First Nation
Mattagami First Nation

Flying Post First Nation
Beaverhouse (affiliate)
Wahgoshig First Nation

INDEPENDENT BANDS  (Bands not afrlated

with any Tribal Council)

» Mishkeegogamang Ojibway Nation

* Mocreebec Eeyoud Coungil

» Sandy Lake First Nation

* Weenusk First Nation
(Peawanuck)



NALSC Programs and Services:

e Restorative Justice Programming
Community By-Law Education
Youth Intervention Services
Gun & Gangs Prevention Initiatives
Youth Justice Programming
Sexual Assault & Domestic Violence Prevention Services
Community Learning HUB

e Bail Verification & Supervision Program

e Community Release & Reintegration Workers

* Advice Lawyers for summary legal advice (criminal & family)
e NALSC Staff Lawyer

e Alternative Dispute Resolutions for Family & Child Welfare
Talking Together Programs

¢ Victim Witness Liaison Workers

e Gladue Report Services
e Gladue Writers
e Gladue Case Workers

* Public Legal Education & Communication

* NALSC & Ontario Legal Aid Services
e Area Director
e Community Legal Workers




2019-2020 Restorative Justice Program Annual Report
April 1% = March 31+

Submitted By: Chantelle Johnson, Restorative Justice Manager
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The Restorative Justice Program has continued
to thrive throughout the fiscal year with increases
in referrals from the Canadian Court System, the
communities and through Police intervention. This
can be attributed to the protocol that was signed by
Pikangikum OPP and Police, which relates to Pre-Charge
referrals and contributes to the increased caseload.

Unfortunately, at year end in mid march, due to
the Coronavirus 19 Pandemic, known as COVID-19,
there have been changes to ensure the safety of our
staff. NAN First Nation Chief and Council Band Council
Resolutions have ordered Safety Measures be put
into effect that includes travel bans into and from
First Nation Communities. The Ontario Courts have
cancelled physical court in communities and video
court has been used as a replacement, with NALSC in
attendance. However, due to the restrictions imposed
due to COVID-19, it has been difficult to complete the
required Circles as we must respect the communities’
orders. RJ staff continue to work these cases to the
best of their abilities.

As of March 17th, 2020 NALSC staff have been
instructed by NALSC Board of Director decisions to
work from home remotely to ensure the health and
safety of the staff until further notice. As such, we will
continue to provide communities with the information
they need through phone and regular updates to the
Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation (NALSC)
website to ensure any new information is posted as
quickly as possible.

12

Education

This year, education and training have been key
components to the success of this program. By
gathering the senior Restorative Justice team for a
strategic planning session, updates were done to assist
and benefit the program. During this meeting, it was
decided that updates to the current training manual
would be done. Updates to the brochure would
also occur, as well as the creation of a Restorative
Justice Newsletter. All three of these items have
been completed to assist community members in
understanding the program. We are currently in the
process of creating distribution packages for all NALSC
offices that include copies however, due to COVID-19
printing of the training manuals has been difficult. We
hope that this will be completed within the next fiscal
year. These materials are to be used as teaching tools
and education for staff and community members. Also,
it provides the staff with examples to assist them in
completing their client files, and letter examples to be
used with the crown attorney’s office.

It was also requested that the Restorative Justice
department provide education to current stakeholders
and court justice officials. As such, the Restorative
Justice Manager spoke before Senior Justices,
Justices of the Peace, the Director of Legal Aid, the
Northeastern Director of Court Services, the Director
of Crown Operations, the Federal Supervisor of Crown
Agents, and the Regional Coordinator of Criminal
Justice Modernization. The meeting was done in



Sudbury and Thunder Bay and was a great success.
It allowed NALSC to educate some of the individuals
that are key players in the court system about the
program, while also providing the opportunity of
creating working relationship that could develop into
an ongoing collaboration between the crown’s office
and the Restorative Justice Department. From this
meeting, it was requested that we continue to present
to local crown’s offices to continue educating them on
the benefits and services that the program provides.

We have also continued to provide the communities
about our programming. This would include educating
communities on changes to the By-Law Program
and what NALSC can provide them. Currently, this
presentation has been done in five communities
(Kashechewan First Nation, Pikangikum First Nation,
Bearskin Lake First Nation, Mishkeegogamang First
Nation, and Muskrat Dam First Nation) and based
on the feedback we receive the presentation will be
edited as needed. Request have been made by other
communities and we will attempt to accommodate
their requests based on resources and time allotted
once travel bans have been lifted.

Educationis also being provided through the updates
done to all the newsletters currently in the Restorative
Justice Program. These newsletters are based on the
programs of By-Law, and Youth Intervention. It was a
priority to ensure that the updates being made are
accurate and will provide our staff with the resources
they need for success with Restorative Justice. It was
also decided that a newsletter would be created based
on the Restorative Justice program, which has been
completed and will assist staff with understanding the
process of restorative justice and about some of the
different uses restorative justice can have on a case by
case basis.

Updates have been made to all the brochures within
the Restorative Justice Department. This includes the
creation of two new brochures covering the Community
HUB program and the Sexual Assault and Domestic
Violence programs. At this time, the Sexual Assault and
Domestic Violence brochure has also been translated
into Cree and will be printed for mass distribution
once the threat of COVID-19 has subsided. Should you
request a copies of the newsletters or brochures please
contact Chantelle Johnson (email: cjohnson@nanlegal.
on.ca) and copies can be mailed or dropped off to you.

Also, there have been other presentations done
concerning different programs in the Restorative
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Justice Department. These presentations were done
at the NAN/NALSC/NAPS Justice Symposium held
on March 3-4, 2020 and consisted of By-Law, Sexual
Assault and Domestic Violence, Restorative Justice, and
Youth Intervention. The participants at this symposium
consisted of Chief and Council’s, NAPS Officers, NAPS
Officials, and other outside parties. It provided the
department the opportunity to discuss what NALSC
can provide to communities, especially in the areas of
Pre-Charge and Post-Charge referrals.

When looking at in house training of staff members,
First Aid training has been provided to the Restorative
Justice staff in multiple areas. This training included
Mental Health First Aid, SafeTALK, and Wilderness First
Aid. This training assisted staff in the following areas;
it assists staff in identifying key behavioural changes
and emotional changes in individuals and clients, it
assists in identifying key behavioural changes relating
to thoughts of suicide and depression and would assist
them during events and excursions onto the land where
injuries may occur to participants. The Wilderness
First Aid training was key as many of the staff will be
providing Youth with cultural and traditional teachings
using land based activities. Through this training, the
tools and knowledge necessary to ensure the safety of
participants while on the land was provided to them
until medically trained personnel can take over. It also
trained the staff in adult and child CPR, as well as wound
care in controlled and uncontrolled environments. It
was requested by staff that all satellite offices receive
a portable first aid kit as well as a tourniquet. This
request has been completed and each worker now has
access to this equipment.

»

o3
5



Training also occurred for a select group of interested
staff members focused on sexual assault and domestic
violence. During a two-day conference on March
5-6, 2020 in Halifax hosted by the Domestic Violence
Conference, the staff was able to attend workshops
based on sexual assault and domestic violence which
covered a wide range of topics. NALSC was also provided
with the opportunity to present at this conference
which was facilitated by Annie Metetawabin. She
discussed the difference between the western style
court system and the Restorative Justice process based
on Indigenous teachings and values.

Finally, Leahan Parrott our restorative justice worker
based out of Matachewan has also completed training
during this quarter and can be recognized as a Mental
Health First Aid Trainer.

Community
Learning HUB

After working closely with our partner at Springboard
Alison Burkett, a new position of HUB Community
Engagement and Training Coordinator/ HUB Facilitator

for the HUB program has been created and finalized.
Stallone Quequish accepted the position, and we
expect great things from him in his new position.
He will act as a Coordinator for all workers currently
trained on HUB, under the direct supervision of
Chantelle Johnson the Restorative Justice Supervisor.
Stallone will be responsible for HUB programming
within the following seven communities: Pikangikum,
Sandy Lake, Big Trout, Attawapiskat, Kashechewan,
Moosonee, and Fort Albany. He will also be responsible
for providing these workers with updated training,
maintaining the equipment as needed, and will refer
clients to their designated community. Any client who
are not in the vicinity of a HUB trained worker will be
referred to Stallone who will be able to travel wherever
needed. Through this new position, it will also provide
the unique opportunity to work closely with the staff at
Springboard who have suggested that he be involved
in any updates to the current training curriculum
provided by HUB.

After the implementation of this new position,
Stallone and Alison focused on the overall capabilities of
providing the services of HUB to the NAN communities.
In this area, we found a lack of resources, affecting how




it is being utilized. To run the programs listed on the
HUB system, it is required that high-speed internet
services are accessible. Unfortunately, within some
of the remote communities, this is a major difficulty,
and it was felt that a new method of providing services
would be required. As such, NALSC partnered with
Alison to apply for a grant from the Ontario Trillium
Foundation. These funds allowed us to provide HUB
Facilitator within the communities an IPad that is set
up with an offline version of the HUB Program. This
will allow them to view the programs without the
need for internet access. They were also provided
with miniature projectors that allow the workers to
proved these programs anywhere. This has become a
major asset for the HUB program and has resulted in
increases in program completions.

Stallone will be involved in the planning of new
programming alongside Alison. This allows for the
opportunity of providing an insight into the current
curriculum. Currently, Springboard is working on
updating its Anger management program and want to
involve youth in its program development. Therefore,
Alison and Stallone have come up with a contest where
the youths from the communities will submit artwork,
poetry, or photos based on the 7 teachings and the
lucky winners will have their artwork featured within
the new programming.

In January, with assistance from Alison Burrkett,
HUB facilitators; Chris Beardy, Darryl Sainnawap, David
Chookomolin, Desiree Jeffries, Gloria Turtle, Heather
Faries, Josh Matthews, Ken Sackaney, Quincy Okeese
and Stallone Quequish, were able to put together
a focus group to assist with program development
at Springboard. This involved discussions on the
effectiveness of the program and led to the creation

of a new hub platform. This would include an addition
to the Anger Management portion of the program
focused on the 7 Grandfather Teachings. Also during
this planning session, it was possible to get all Ipad’s
and projectors set up with the programming required
to provide offline services to clients.

By-Law and Sexual Assault
& Domestic Violence

After careful consideration and discussions with
funders under MAG, NALSC changed the focus of the
By-Law program. The focus of the By-Law program
will now be based on education and enforcement of
by-laws through restorative justice. This will be done
through the promotion of restorative justice circles,
where NAPS/OPP officers can refer those with bylaw
infraction to the program and facilitated restorative
justice circle would occur. By providing communities
with the opportunity to enforce their by-laws through
restorative justice, NALSC will assist with mending the
harm done to the community and provide a process
that makes the offender accountable for their actions.

There have also been multiple events that this
team has participated in including; Honouring Our
Voices Workshop, NAN NAPS Justice Symposium,
and the Domestic Violence Conference. With regards
to the Honouring Our Voices Workshop, it focused
on providing individuals with the opportunity to be
trained in how to deal with cases of Sexual Assault
and Domestic Violence within their communities. It
also allowed participants the opportunity to begin the
healing process and return to their communities to act
as a support in community. Participants from each of
the Mushkegowuk communities were in attendance




totaling 20 participants. Throughout the training,
the participants were given training on identifying key
behavioural changes in adults and children who may be
experiencing some form of sexual abuse or domestic
violence. It also taught participants about some key
things to look for and how they can assist with addressing
the issue. It is the hope of the program that we can
continue this train the trainer program in the central and
western portions of the NAN territory should time and
funding allow within the next fiscal year.

The NAN/NALSC/NAPS Symposium in Thunder
Bay is the second event that the By-Law and SADV
programs attended. During this symposium, the team
spoke about their programs, and discuss the benefits
of using the circle process for offenses like by-law
infractions or for sexual assault and domestic violence.
The presentations discussed the use of enforcement
through a pre-charge referral to the restorative justice
program, and the benefits this process would have.
With continued education on this process to law
enforcement and Chief and Council, it is the hope of this
program that communities will begin to consistently
use this form of justice.

Finally, NALSC was given the unique opportunity
to speak at the Domestic Violence Conference held
March 5-6 in Halifax. The presentation consisted of a
discussion on the key differences between the western
court system and the Indigenous Restorative Justice
Process concerning Sexual Assault and Domestic
Violence. The presentation was very well received by
the audience with a total of 100 participants.

We are also pleased to announce that requests
for presentations from the By-Law program as well
as information on SADV have continued to come in.
To date, there have been 5 presentations within the
different communities of; Kashechewan, Pikangikum,
Bearskin Lake, Mishkeegogamang, and Muskrat Dam.
Once the COVID-19 ban is lifted, a request has already
been made by Brunswick House for the facilitation of
another presentation to their Chief and Council as well
as NAPS.

Restorative Justice / New Hires

Within this fiscal year, it was possible to re-
implement the Administrative Assistant position
within the Restorative Justice Program. This was
done to alleviate some of the workload placed on the
Restorative Justice Manager and allow for continued
progress for the program.
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Currently, all positions funded within the Restorative
Justice department have been filled. In addition to
managing the restorative justice team with all of its
programs, Chantelle Johnson is also now the manager
of the Sioux Lookout office. Chantelle is excited about
this new opportunity and looks forward to working
with the Sioux Lookout team to ensure everything is
running smoothly.

—
3

Restorative Justice

The Restorative Justice program has continued to
thrive throughout the past year with 266 referrals.
It is the hope of this program that the referrals rates
will continue to increase however, we have also
implemented the use of Pre-Charge referral forms to
allow clients to come through the program without
receiving a criminal record should their progress be
constant with the expectations of NAPS/OPP officers.
There have also been updates to both Pre and Post
Charge Referral forms as these will now be one page
in length and are carbon copied. Also during this year,
we are pleased to say that the first edition of the
Restorative Justice Newsletter has been completed and
printed. This will act as a form of education for those
interested in the Restorative Justice Process and will
also provide detailed information to clients.

Also during this period, the Restorative Justice
Program was asked to present at the NAN/NALSC/
NAPS Justice Symposium in early March. Presentations
outlined the benefits of using restorative justice
and the types of referrals that can be done. Natasha
Sakchekapo-Lalande spoke extensively on the use of
Pre-Charge referrals which can be used by NAPS and
OPP officers when dealing with offenders.



Youth Intervention
& Guns and Gangs Youth
Intervention Program

Due to the increase of both Post and Pre Charge
referrals, there was an increase in workload for all
Restorative and Youth Justice workers. This resulted
in Youth Intervention Workers needed to cover the
overflow of youth restorative justice referrals. Each
of the Youth Intervention workers have been given
training in the area of facilitating circles. With the
increase in caseload, the Youth Intervention workers
have also been keeping up with their youth-based
activities. There have also been multiple community
visits by Chantelle, the Restorative Justice Manager,
which has resulted in events for the youth. Darryl
Sainnawap assisting with fundraising and chaperoned
a Hockey event based in Pennsylvania for the youth in
his community.

We have also been inviting the Elders to participate
in activities and events with the youth such as
fishing derbies for an Elder’s feast. This provides the
opportunity for the youth to learn cultural teachings
while providing the life skills they may need.

We also applied for funding in Fort Hope and
were successful in creating a new program from the
Indigenous Guns and Gangs Youth Intervention fund.
The programisfocused on teaching the youth culturally-
based teaching while also educating them on the Gun
and Gang violence within First Nation communities.
The program is facilitated by Quincy Okeese who
is from Fort Hope and has a previous connection
with the youth through his previous employment
at Choose Life. Quincy continues to provide the
youth with life skills using land-based activities and
traditional knowledge. This program also focuses on
strengthening the connection with NAPs Officers to
bridge the gap between these officers and the youth of
the community. Planning is also underway for a second
Community Collaboration Circle which brings together
all of the youth-related programs in the community.

Due to the lack of supplies within the community
that focus on land-based activities, it was decided that
supplies would be ordered from local stores. Play it
Again Sports acquired sports-related equipment, and
DNR Sporting Goods acquired all of the outdoor-related
equipment needed for land-based activities. Music has
also been an interest of the youth, and as such Music
nights have also occurred.
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Towards the end of the fiscal year, NALSC had
partnered with the Reach for Life Tour, founded by
our own Stallone Quequish, to bring Indigenous artists
into the communities and speak with the youth about
music and the positive impacts it can have. This event
happened in Big Trout Lake as well as in Fort Albany
and was a great success. The event was a week-long
endeavor and involved the presenters going to the
schools within the communities, hosting different
events throughout the week, and providing the youth
with an opportunity to connect with their community
through music. There was also the plan to have this
occur in Sandy Lake First Nation before the end of the
fiscal year however, with the threat of COVID-19 that
became impossible at this time.

Within the past fiscal year, the Youth Intervention
program has had 275 referrals some from Probation but
mostly self referral from youth. This number has been
steadily increasing and we hope with the introduction of
our new comprehensive one page Pre and Post charge
referral forms this number will continue to grow.

Finally, the Youth Intervention program was asked
to do a presentation at the NAN/NALSC/NAPS Justice
Symposium, along with the Restorative Justice, By-
Law, and SADV programs. Darryl Sainnawap provided
participants with an exhilarating presentation on
Youth Intervention and how it has been used within
the communities. He discussed the difficulties many
of the youth go through and the programming that we
provide to ensure that the youth not only stay out of
trouble but are engaged in meaningful and culturally
relevant activities. Through his moving presentation,
we are hopeful that the relationship between these
workers and their local law enforcement may continue
to grow.




Restorative Justice Program Annual Report Stats
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Gladue Program 2019-2020: Annual Report

Submitted By: George Edwards, Gladue Manager

Waachay, Booshoo from the Gladue Program. 2019-
2020 was another successful year for the Nishnawbe-Aski
Legal Services Corporation (NALSC) Gladue department.
This year, Gladue Program remains focused on carrying
out the “Gladue Sentencing Principles,” as per Section

718.2(e) of the Criminal Code.
Objective:

NALSC’s Gladue Program obijective is to:

e Provide Gladue services to Indigenous Offenders in
Nishnawbe Aski Nation, Treaty #9 and #5 area, who are
before the courts for bail hearings and sentencing by
preparing Gladue Reports;

¢ Highlight the systemic and historical factors which
contributed to the individual’s involvement with the
criminal court system through Gladue report-writing
and to make culturally appropriate recommendations;

* Provide the Aftercare Program for Indigenous clients.
The Gladue Caseworkers assist clients in completing
the recommendations as part of the client’s sentence;

e Provide training to the Gladue Writers and
Caseworkers in professional development;

e And build partnerships with other justice stakeholders
(courts, police, corrections, lawyers and judges) and
providing Gladue presentations to NAN communities.

Our Gladue Writers continue to be busy preparing
Gladue Reports for our Nishnawbe Aski Nation
members in the 49 communities we serve. There are 2
Gladue Writers and 2 Gladue Caseworkers in each of the
three catchment areas. On average, the Gladue Writers
prepare 12-15 Gladue Reports per year. This reporting
period, from April 1, 2019-March 31 2020, the Gladue
Writers produced 98 Gladue Reports including Gladue
Letters. See below the total number of Gladue Reports
and letters produced in the three catchment areas.

Gladue Reports: April 1, 2019-March 31, 2020

North East: Timmins 34
North West: Sioux Lookout-Kenora 37
North Central: Thunder Bay 27
Total 98
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This year’s Gladue Report numbers are down due
to a vacancy in Thunder Bay since October 2019. That
position was filled in January 17, 2020. Also, the state of
emergency from COVID-19 had an impact. On March 17,
2020, COVID-19 stalled the court process and all out-of-
custody sentencing matters were adjourned. This affected
the request of Gladue Reports for March 2020. All staff
were required to work from home and were directed to
have not direct, in-person contact with clients, and travel
restrictions were imposed for health and safety reasons.

2019-2020 Gladue Reports
Completed for Clients
by Communities

Below is the chart showing the number of Gladue
clients assisted during April 1, 2019, to March 31, 2020.

The charts indicate how many indigenous offenders
assisted by each of the three court jurisdiction and by

community affiliation.

North East Adult Youth Male Female \

Kashechewan 3 2 1

Fort Albany 6 5 1

Attawapiskat 16 9 7

Moose Cree 7 5 2

Brunswick House 1 1

Peawanuck (Weenusk) 1 1

Total 34 23 11
‘NorthWest ~ Adult  Youth ~ Male  Female

Pikangikum 13 1 9 5

Lac Seul 2 1 1

Kasabonika 3 3

Poplar Hill 2 1 1

Big Trout Lake (KI) 3 3

Keewaywin 1 1

Cat Lake 3 2 1

North Spirit Lake 1 1

Sandy Lake 7 6 1

Sachigo 1 1

Slate Falls 1 1

Total 37 27 10

North Central Adult Youth Male Female

Webequie 2 1 1

Constance Lake 1 1

Marten Falls 3 3

Bearskin Lake 2 1 1

Fort Hope 5 4 1

Summer Beaver 2 1 1

Long Lake #58 2 2

Fort Severn 1 1

Attawapiskat 1 1

Neshkatanga 3 3

Sandy Lake 1 1

Aroland 1 1

Cat Lake 1 1

Wunnimun 1 1

Ginoogaming 1 1

Total 27 22 5



Our highlight in the Gladue Program this year was
three of the Gladue Writers enrolled in a Gladue
Report Writing Training that began on September
16, 2019. The three writers: Catherine Gull, Gillian
Schaible, and Lenny Carpenter completed the training.
The participants were taught:

e The law on Gladue Rights;

e The structure and function of Canadian criminal
courts, including trial and sentencing;

NISHMAWRBE-A5K)

* The required content of
e required content o LEGAL SERVICES

Gladue Reports including

proper composition, g -
B o

structure referencing and
presentation of reports;

* How to construct good
recommendations for the
court; and prepare for the
examination of the report
and the writer for court.

All three Gladue Writers received their Gladue
Writers Certificates from the Indigenous Perspectives
Society and Royal Roads University. The picture above
is Gillian Schaible being presented with her Gladue
Certification by Gladue Manager, George Edwards.

Gladue Writers and Caseworkers

The Gladue Department consists of 12 staff. Six (6)
Gladue Writers and Six (6) Gladue Caseworkers:

Timmins Office:

1) Catherine Gull, Gladue Writer

2) Lenny Carpenter, Gladue Writer

3) Shannon Naveau, Gladue Caseworker
4) Travis Larivee, Gladue Caseworker

Thunder Bay Office:

1) Melanie Henderson, Gladue Writer

2) Theresa Hall, Gladue Writer

3) Douglas Magiskan, Gladue Caseworker
4) Terri Zoccole, Gladue Caseworker

Sioux Lookout Office:

1) Bryan Phelan, Gladue Writer

2) Gillian Schaible, Gladue Writer

3) Marie Roundhead, Gladue Caseworker
4) Robert (Bob) Albany, Gladue Caseworker
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Gladue Writers
and Caseworker Roles:

The Gladue Writersand caseworkers work collaboratively
to collect information regarding the Indigenous offender’s
systemic and background factors for sentencing procedures,
as self-reported by the clients through the Gladue process
and prepare recommendations:

1) Interviewing the Indigenous offender to gather
information about his/her Gladue factors:

e Lack of education/Learning Disability

e FamilyUpbringing and Violence

e Physical, Emotional, Mental, and Sexual Abuse

e Indian Residential School/Foster Care/ 60s Scoop
e Community/Family Displacement

e Lack of employment/Housing

¢ Impacts of Colonization

e Loss of Cultural Identity

e Mental and Physical Health

e Early Loss of Family and Friends

e Substance Abuse

e Racism

e Current Circumstances

2) Aboriginal Community

* The geographical location of Community

e Historical factors of Community

e Economical conditions of Community

e The population of the community and Aboriginal
Language Spoken

e Educational and employment opportunities

e Economic Situation of Community

e Offender’s ties and relationship to community

3) Recommendations for alternative sentencing

and sanctions

e Non-custodial alternatives inside/outside of the
community for healing plan (e.g., anger management
and mental health counselling, treatment centres).

¢ Restorative Justice Options with the victim, accused,
and community.

e Culturally specific sentencing and healing specific to
the community

e On-going support from the Gladue Caseworker to
complete the recommendations

How to Request a Gladue Report

e A referral is made to NALSC by a defence lawyer,
crown attorney, judge or justice of the peace

* NALSC will assign a Gladue Writer and Gladue Caseworker

e Work begins on a Gladue Report—telling the offenders
life story that focuses on the circumstances, that have
brought the offender before the court

e Gladue Reports take on average eight weeks to
prepare (Letters take 2-4 Weeks).



NAN Justice Symposium
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The NAN Justice Symposium was held on March 3 & 4, 2020 at the Victoria Inn in partnership with Nishnawbe-
Aski Nation, and Nishnawbe-Aski Police Service. There were over 200 attendees from the NAN communities.
Above from left to right: Gillian Schaible, Gladue Writer; Retired Ontario Court of Appeal Justice Harry Laforme;

George Edwards, Gladue Manager; Terri Zoccole, Gladue Caseworker; and Danielle Wood, Legal Aid Area Director
presented on Gladue in the NAN Communities.

Challenges and Opportunities

¢ Increased education to the local bars, communities, and partner organization is necessary to share information
about Gladue Rights, the Gladue Report Process and to increase referrals to services.

* Monitoring for and acting onissues and complaints within the courts for injustices that occur throughout Gladue processes.

e Increasing the capacity to offer more services to more clients.
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Talking Together Program-Annual Report 2019-2020

Submitted By: Carol Buswa, Talking Together Manager

The Talking Together Program has had some
challenges this past year but continues to forge ahead
with the ADR program in providing service to all NAN
members. This report demonstrates highlights over
the past year. The facilitators have continued to meet
the demand for Circle service areas and continue to
track and work towards targeted areas, with the help
of a previous facilitator Lucie Longpeter who has been
on contract and instrumental in assisting with meeting
TTP pressures. Interviews and hiring for positions in
Moosonee, Timmins and Sioux Lookout took place and
we now have a full complement of facilitators. Ricarda
Ritch was hired to service Sioux Lookout and area, and
Melissa Sutherland for Timmins and area. Both have
received training but are still in the mentoring phase/
process. We did have an individual for our Moosonee
office. However, Covid19 became a safety issue/priority
and all hiring ceased temporarily. We eventually hired
Susy Cheechoo who received and completed TTP
training via Microsoft Teams video conferencing. The
Moosonee office is set up, but she is currently working
out of home due to Covid 19. Although this past year
has been challenging with shortage of facilitators and
Covid19, we continued to do our best with Talking
Together pressures. Theresa Hall previous CCCN

facilitator is now working in the Gladue department at
our Thunder Bay office. The position in North Bay was
posted and screened. Interviews have taken place and
we are hoping to hire an individual next week.

Another highlight this past year was presenting
at the NAN/NAPS/NANLEGAL Justice Symposium in
March 2020 which was a successful gathering for all
participants and presenters. TTP also planned and
acquired Vicky Visca from Mediation Services where
facilitators and other NALSC departments participated
in Mediation Training and Screening of Domestic
Violence & Power Imbalance which took place via
Zoom in June 2020.

Currently, facilitators are working from home but are
connecting with clients, doing follow-ups and making effort
to do Circles via conference call or video conferencing where
possible. Staff meetings are held weekly to communicate
and follow-up on updates and changes.

Moving forward Talking Together continues to provide
Indigenous Alternative Dispute Resolution service to its
clients, Child Welfare Agencies, workers and communities
as best as possible during this Covid 19 time.




Other Highlights:

e Student M. Waboose from Neeghaneewin-
Confederation College completed her placement with
us and was hired by Dilico CFS

e Completed File Review (ongoing) with Payukotayno
CFS, Tikinagan CFS, Kunuwanimano CFS and Dilico AFC.

* Two of our Facilitators have left, one moved to another
department and one has gone back to school. Lucie
Longpeter was hired to relieve TTP staff pressures.

* School Career Fair in Pikangikum with 212 participants
at our NALSC booth. It was a huge success.

e Neskantaga First Nation Chief invited NALSC where H.
Napash & S. Quequish presented our programs.

e A first Community Wellness Tradeshow took place
in Longlac where TTP set up a NALSC booth to engage
community members and promote the organization.

e Mushkegowuk Band Representative presentation
took place in Timmins to all band reps dealing with Child
Welfare where Talking Together was asked to present
the ADR program and received positive feedback from
outcome experiences utilizing the service.

e Talking Together Program presentations were done
at Kunuwanimano CFS, Tikinagan CFS (Thunder Bay
location), and Dilico CFS. Overall all the events were good
with positive remarks from staff after the mock Circle.

¢ Sandy Lake First Nation meeting with Chief and Council
where Talking Together was presented by H. Napash
introducing and explaining presence in the community.

e Participate in the Summer Feast by Justice Donio
Thunder Bay Indigenous Court House.

e Coaching Out of the Box Training for managers was
held in Thunder Bay that included two department staff.

* R. Howe from Tikinagan presented to our NALSC staff
on Tikinagan’s Service Model.

e Talking Together Program staff participate in the
Naandwe Noojimowin Mental Health Wellness Program
(debriefing) at Anderson Lake, Espanola, Ontario.

e TTP moved to new location in Moosonee
* SLAAMB Career Fair Sioux North High school October 2019.
e Timmins office manager rotation Nov 4-8, 2019.

e Family Well Being Conference hosted by
Kunuwanimano and Association of Native Child and
Family Services Agencies of Ontario Nov.

e Native Child and Family Services Confederation
College Presentation Oct.
NAN/NAPS/NANLEGAL Justice Symposium

e Other meetings/commitments; HR Policy Meetings,
CCCN-Talking Together Program Meetings, NALSC
Management Meetings, Budget Meetings, TTP Planning
Meetings, TTP File Reviews with Agencies, NALSC All
Staff Meetings, TTP Staff Meetings, TTF Training, PAAC
Provincial ADR Advisory Committee, IADR Subgroup
Meeting, LAO-AJS Consult Meeting.

Talking Together Program Statistical Report
April 1, 2019 — March 31, 2020

Talking # Open New # of # of # of Cases # of # of # of Circle
Together Files Client Cases Circles where Children Families Participants
Program Carried Files on Wait | Held Agreement || who are Involved
Service Forward Opened List at during reached the focus
Area at April During end of the Year J during the of Talking
1/19 the Year Fiscal Talking Circle
Year Together
Circle
James 20 20 17 47 30 110 40 240
Bay
Timmins 9 14 17 7 2 47 23 26
Sioux 6 5 9 2 0 27 11 10
Lookout
Thunder 24 19 24 33 27 112 43 194
Bay
CCCN 17 9 5 29 18 40 26 174
North Bay
Total 76 67 72 118 77 336 143 644
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Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Talking Together Program
Participant Satisfaction Surveys April 2019 - March 2020

A total of 281 surveys were completed by circle participants.
Did you understand why the Circle was convened?

Yes - 237 No -2 Somewhat — 10 No Comment - 24

What was your role in the circle?

CAS Representative 67 Parent 56 Family Support 28 Family Service Worker 20
Lawyer 1 Extended Family 19 Community Resource 25 Counsellor 9

Other 7 Band Council Rep 9 Elder 30 Police 3

Not Identified 1

Please indicate the extent to which you believe the circle was helpful to YOU
Very Helpful 181 Helpful 99 Not very helpful 1

Please indicate the extent to which you believe the circle was helpful to OTHERS
Very Helpful 163 Helpful 104 Not Very Helpful 1

Please indicate the extent to which you think the Circle Facilitator was prepared for the circle
Very Well Prepared 203 Prepared 71  Not Well Prepared2 ~ No Comment 4

Please indicate the extent to which you think the Circle Facilitator remained neutral throughout the process
Very Neutral 205 Neutral 66 Not Very Neutral 1 No Comment 2

How likely is it that you would recommend the circle process to someone else who was in need of an
alternative dispute resolution?
Very Likely 207 Likely 64 Not Very Likely 4 No Comment 1

Some of the Comments/Feedback

 Positive outcome, very helpful to reunification process.

* Where was the FN involvement?

e Circle was very good, and will hopefully have a positive impact on family. Thank you.

e Positive outcome, very helpful to reunification process.

* The circle is very effective and evidence based to help the family move along in their healing. Meegwetch.
* | recommend circles for families to strengthen and work on their healing journey.

e Both parents need to be in the circle.

e | find the circles are very effective. | agree that agreement or plans of action are put on paper to ensure follow
up and consistency. Meegwetch.

e Focused on issue to be addressed, able to reinforce reasons and plan.

e Have a translator present along with a grandmother.

e Cannot think of anything as they covered what is required.

e Offer it more to everyone in everyday struggles drugs and alcohol

e Everything was perfect. Very, very helpful.

e Every time a family and CAS gather is always a great thing!

¢ The facilitator was calm and confident. She applied the ‘firm and kindness approach’. Keep up the good job.
e Talking Together is helpful to help people get back on track. This should be done more than once a year.

e My first circle, very informative and productive. Is this option available to all of our clients?

e This TTC was emotional and the support was great by all participants.

e This is beneficial as it lets things be said and to know it stays within the circle.

* To be able to have more circles for other families. There is not enough.

* Well led, the objective remained very well directed and clear goals/planning.

e Let people know circles work.
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Victim Witness Liaison Program - Annual Report 2019-2020

Submitted By: Gillian Schaible, Victim Witness Manager

Since 2001, NALSC has offered support and
assistance to victims of and witnesses to crimes in
Nishnawbe Aski Nation communities.

The Victim Witness Liaison Program (VWLP) assists
victims and witnesses of all ages in dealing with
the consequences of victimization and helps them
understand the criminal justice system and their rights.
The mandate of the VWLP is to improve the quality
of service to crime victims and witnesses of crime,
including acting as a support, ensuring immediate
needs are met, referring to appropriate resources, and
assisting victims and witnesses with the court process
or restorative justice process.

VWLP offices are located in Red Lake, Pikangikum
First Nation, Sandy Lake First Nation, Sioux Lookout,
Thunder Bay and Timmins. Staffing changes
throughout the year, have left vacancies and as a
result, challenges in meeting the needs of all NAN
community members. Four vacant Victim Witness
Liaison positions are actively being recruited, including
a position reallocated from our Timmins office, that
will now be based in Kashechewan First Nation.

[
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For the time April 1, 2019 to March 31, 2020 VWLP
provided service to 326 new referrals from across NAN
communities. In addition to referrals, our VWLP was
asked to offer support and assistance to nine families
identified in the Office of the Independent Police
Review Director (OIPRD) report “Broken Trust”. This
report, which looked into investigations of deaths of
First Nations people in Thunder Bay, identified systemic
failings of death investigations and recommended that
nine of the cases that were reviewed be reinvestigated.

VWLP staff attended the Canadian Domestic Violence
Conference in Halifax, NS from March 2-6, 2020. The
conference offered mini workshops, allowing the
VWLP team to explore a variety of topics delivered by
content experts, as well as an opportunity to network
with other victim support workers from across Canada.
The highlight of the conference was the workshop on
creating Trauma Informed Work Environments. Other
conference topics included:

e A restorative DV program for Indigenous people:
The Way

* Northwest Territories and family violence:
Exploring strategies

e Rural solutions to support survivors

¢ Indigenous Restorative Justice and Western Court
System: Contrasting approaches to IPV and sexual assault

e Indigenous women and Familial Violence:
Moving away from perpetrator and victim identities

e A restorative justice approach to Intimate Partner
Violence: The Winnipeg Police Service Model

Steffany Fiddler, VWL Sandy Lake



Reflecting on our past year, and looking ahead to
providing appropriate and timely support for those
who experience harm and violence, are the words of
one of our northern court Crown Attorney’s:

My experience with Victim Witness Liaison workers,
is that they are diligent and have a strong sense of
resources in their communities. An example, one time a
worker was able to locate a victim in the community and
bring them to court, this was very helpful. Challenges
that all justice services face, is they are stretched to
thin with inadequate resources and people, there are
not enough workers to meet the demand.

A reminder of why we do this important work, came
in the form of an email update, after receiving support
from the NALSC Victim Witness Liaison program, it is
shared below with permission and stated in part:

I just felt like | should just update how I’ve been
doing since the case was dismissed last year. I've
been alright, in June 2019 | graduated from Seneca
College Police Foundations and right now I'm taking
Behavioural Sciences from the same institution. [I've
been successful but once in a while | always think of
my Dad, but lucky | got people to talk to, great friends
in Toronto, planning my future, | know my Dad would
be proud of me, knowing that | have chosen the right

path for myself. Has been over eight years since it
happened, clearly almost a decade. | don’t know what
to do next. | always wanted my Dad to get justice so |
can get closure, but eventually | will move on. | felt like
I should just at least update so you know that I’'m doing
alright. Again thanks for supporting us.

Tristan Quisses, Neskantaga First Nation

NALSC Victim Witness Liaison’s are made aware of
victims through referrals from police services, justice
partners, or directly from victims who self refer. A
victim in Canada, has rights under The Canadian
Victims Bill of Rights (CVBR), which defines a victim as
an individual who has suffered physical or emotional
harm, economic loss or property damage as a result of
a crime committed in Canada.

Know Your Rights;
Victims Have A Right To:
e Information

e Participation

e Restitution

e Protection

* To make a complaint




NALSC'’s Legal Aid Program - Annual Report 2019-2020

Submitted By: Danielle Wood, Area Director

Legal Aid Ontario (LAO) increased the financial eligibility guidelines for April 1, 2020 by 6%. The financial
threshold increased from $ 17,731 gross annual income to $18,795 for single applicants with no dependants.
Financial eligibility is determined on a province-wide approach and does not consider regional costs of living nor

the regional costs of hiring private counsel.

Financial Eligibility Guidelines

April 1, 2019 to March 31, 2020

Number Income For
of family | must not be | domestic
members | higher than abuse
cases
1 $17,731 $22,720
2 $31,917 $32,131
3 $37,194 $39,352
4 $42,726 $45,440
5 $48,173 $50,803
Single boarders

In April of 2019, the provincial government reduced
legal aid funding by over 30%. LAO responded with a
reduction in services, some of which are as follows:

e Criminal law duty counsel will provide services for
bail and certificate lawyers are generally ineligible to
bill block fees for bail matters.

e Criminal law duty counsel will not be in courtrooms
to assist clients in navigating their first appearances at
courthouses.

e Criminal duty counsel is no longer scheduled to triage
Indigenous Peoples’ Court in Thunder Bay.

¢ Bail reviews will be funded for 5 hours per review
instead of 10 hours.

e Lawyers will be allowed 3 hours Gladue authorizations
instead of 5 and only if using a publicly-funded Gladue
Report as part of sentencing submissions for Indigenous
clients.

e The enhancement for representing clients with
mental health issues, including with fitness hearings
and at mental health court was reduced by 2.5 hours.

e Family duty counsel will assist with variations or
motions to change where domestic violence is not
flagged, when possible. Certificate lawyers are ineligible
to bill for these services where domestic violence not
an issue.
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e The funding for parole matters was reduced to 5
hours from 10. Resources will be dedicated to services
for prisoners to have access to statutory release by way
of parole and to extraordinary remedy instead of “faint
hope” parole applications and “gating hearings”.

e Administrative fees for appearance and certificate
acknowledgement will no longer be paid to private bar
lawyers.

e Resources will be dedicated to services for psychiatric
patients (instead of substitute decision makers).

e LAO staff will be determining eligibility for the test
case program instead of an external committee.

More information on legal services and financial
eligibility can be found on the Legal Aid Ontario website
at www.legalaid.on.ca.



NALSC Certificates issued
from April 2019 to March 2020

NALSC continued to issue more certificates than any northern LAO office and issue more certificates than the

Timmins and Thunder Bay office combined.

Certificates Issued by Area Office

2019-2020
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NALSC hired an Area Director to undertake its
functions as an Area Office under the Legal Aid
Services Act, 1998, the 2004 NALSC-LAO MOU, and
NAN Resolutions 88/45, 89/40 and 90/26. The Area
Director has not been appointed by LAO which has
limited NALSC'’s ability to act as Area Office-48 to issue
certificates and authorizations, manage private bar
panels, and have a permanent role in the Corporation’s
decision-making processes.

Aboriginal Justice Strategy
Consultation on LAO

LAO committed to meaningfully consulting
NAN communities on its services and programs.
Cumulatively, NALSC contributed over 100 hours to
engaging, sharing and planning with LAO to develop
meaningful consultation models with NAN First Nations.
An introductory letter was distributed to NAN Chief
and Councils dated February 14, 2020 and a follow-up
letter and consultation package dated March 6, 2020.
The initiative was put on hold due to COVID-19.

2019-2020 NAN A0O48
Certificate Breakdown
941 13

B Other/Civil

89.28

Committees and Partnerships

NALSC worked with stakeholders and partners for
the following accomplishments:

* The establishment of a community court in New Slate
Falls First Nation (currently in initial discussion stages —
next step is a site visit)

e Transitioning Pickle Lake Court to the
Mishkeegogamang Community Centre (as a response
to historic concerns and the loss of Pickle Lake court
location)

e Engage in conversations to re-establish advance pre-
court days in NE Coastal First Nations (follow-up with
Crown Attorneys rescheduled due to COVID-19).

e CLWs implemented a schedule to be in base courts
for first appearances.

e NALSC Staff Lawyers/Duty Counsel discussions with
LAO. Continue with proposal development.
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Bill 161: Smarter and Stronger
Justice Act Omnibus
Legislation, Schedule 15 & 16

December 19, 2019, the Attorney General for
Ontario introduced Bill 161 which proposes broad-
scale reforms to the justice system, including significant
amendments to the Legal Aid Services Act, 1998, found
in schedule 15 and 16. Here are some key changes:

e Removes important purposes of the Legal Aid
Ontario Corporation to further “Access to Justice” for
“Low-Income” Ontarians and replace with business
terminology such as “Value for Money”.

e Regional board selection criteria is removed. No
protection for the geographic diversity of the province,
nor guaranteed Indigenous, NAN representation.

* The role of the board is expanded to include decision-
making authority over financial and legal eligibility,
panel management, payment of service-providers,
and to identify the needs of Indigenous clients and
communities.

e Legal Aid assistance for criminal and family matters
is discretionary by changing the terms from “shall
provide services” to “may provide services”.

e There is no mention of Aboriginal law and the
protection of Inherent and Treaty rights, including
traditional harvesting.

* The obligation to provide services in every part of the
province is removed.

* No requirement to work in tadem with Indigenous
communities.

e Aboriginal Legal Services Corporations funded to
provide legal aid services to Indigenous individuals and
communities is changed to, authorized under LAQO’s
rules, to provide services as “service-providers”.

e Authority of NALSC as an Area Office is removed.

e Process for how certificates will be applied for,
reviewed, issued, and refusal appeals is to be
determined by the rules made by the LAO Board.
Establishment of lawyer panels is to be determined by
the rules of the LAO Board.
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Community Legal
Worker Program

Community Legal Workers continue to be available
for the NAN courts. The CLWs assist NAN members
in navigating court processes, assist with legal aid
applications, and referrals to duty counsel, Restorative
Justice, NALSC programs and other agencies, as well
as with completing other legal applications. The CLWs
schedule community visits and also coordinate Clinic
Days and with Public Legal Education

* 8 sessions were held this year on topics including:
Federal Indian Day Schools Class Action, Wills & Estates,
Information on Firearms, and Band Bylaws.

Summary Advice

A summary advice lawyer is in the office three days
a week. The summary advice lawyer is available to
provide legal advice and brief services to Nishnawbe-
Aski Nation members. Summary advice lawyer is
available Monday, Wednesday and Fridays for 1p.m. to
5 p.m. EST.

e To access, walk into the Thunder Bay office or call
(807) 622-1413, 1-800-465-5581, or contact your local
NALSC worker.



Nishnawbe -Aski Legal Services Corporation
Legal Aid Ontario-Duty Counsel Statisitics
Thunder Bay Advice Lawver

April 1,2019 - March 31, 2020

TOTALS

Criminal 84| Phone Call 216|Male 113
Family 79| Walk In 61|Female 164
Employment 24| Email 0

Civil 33| Follow Up 0

Admin 0

Estate 20

First Nation 5

Treaty 0

Other 32

Matawa Windigo

Aroland 3 Bearskin Lake 7
Constance Lake 8 Cat Lake 3
Eabametoong 13 Koocheching 0
Ginoogaming 9 North Caribou 2
Hornepayne 0 Sachigo Lake 4
Long Lake #58 4 Slate Falls 2
Marten Falls 11 Whitewater Lake 0
Neskantaga 1 Total 18
Nibinam ik 2 Wabun

Webequie 7 Beaverhouse 1
Total 58 Brunswick House 3
IFNA Chapleau 0
Kitchenuhm aykoosi 5 Matachewan 3
Lac Seul 11 Mattagami 0
Muskrat Dam 3 Wahgoshig 3
Pikangikum 8 Total 10
Whitesand 0 Mushkegowu

Total 27 Attawapiskat 10
Independants Chapleau Cree 2
Flying Post 0 Fort Albany 5
Mishkeegogamang 7 Kashechewan 5
Mocrebec 0 Missanabie 0
Sandy Lake 16 Moose Cree 10
Weenusk 2 Taykwa Tagamou 1
Total 25 Total 33
Keewaytinook Okimakanak Shibogama

Deer Lake 5 Kasabonika Lake 1
Fort Severn 5 Kingfisher Lake 8
Keewaywin 6 Wapekeka 2
MacDowell Lake 0 Wawakapewin 0
North Spirit Lake 1 Wunnumin Lake 1
Poplar Hill 3 Total 12
Total 20 Other

TOTAL CLIENTS ASSISTED = 277
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LAO Monthly Expense Reports 2019-2020

NALSC’s Duty Counsel and Certificate Lawyer Program in NAN Courts

Duty Actual Budget Variance Persons Total Cost Per | Total Cost
Counsel Assisted / Amount Person/ | Per Person
Type month month
Criminal $2,069,709 $1,949,187 ($120,522) |0 0
Duty (6.2%)
Counsel
(Aircrafts)
Criminal $20,002 $15,739 (S4,263) 67 386 S48 S52
DC Adult (27.1%)
(per diem)
Criminal $1,523 $3,934 $2,411 0 31 $49
DC Youth 61.3%
(per diem)
Criminal $2,173,763 $1,934,753 ($239,011) 236 3,885 S476 $560
GDR (12.4%)
(DC &
Certificate)
Total $4,264,998 $3,903,613 ($361,385) 303 4,302 $1,566 $991
Criminal (9.3%)
DC
DC Family SO $4,427 $4,427 0 0
Court 100.0%
(Per diem)
Advice $65,866 $89,502 23,636 17 316 $244 $208
Lawyer 26.4%
General
(In office)
Advice SO $2,459 $2,459 0 0
Lawyer 100.0%
Special
(Special
DC)
DC Civil $65,866 $96,387 $30,522 17 316 $244 $208
Total 31.7%
TOTAL $4,330,863 $4,000,000 ($330,863) 320 4,618 $1,496 $938
Crim and (8.3%)
Civil DC
. o Chart
Persons Assisted (Criminal & Civil) Data
Total Expense — Actual
and Budget % of Persons Assisted
600 #
500 Per?cms
Month Actual Budget Month  Assisted
400 Apr 195277 161.556 Apr 218
May 295,843 295067 May 564
300 Jun 373765 362034 Jun 409
200 - Jul 438,627 235475 Jul 280
Aug 381,733 560,580 Aug 394
100 - Sep 213,386 260,700 | Sep 377
0 - Oct 208776 297 657 Oct 396
Mow 427 852 453 657 Mow 433
vﬂ"\\ RIS & o@é & * ‘;oé éoé &oé \,@C\ ‘\;5“\ & Dec 474,318 235930 | Dec 341
L L E S N Jan 357631 324793 | Jan 230
o Q Feb 430,869 293 681 Feb 551
hdar 475 786 510.367 hiar 320




NAN ZONE 1(EAST COURTYS)
Northern Court April 1, 2019 — March 31, 2020

ATTAWAPISKAT

FORT ALBANY

KASHECHEWAN

April 10/19, April 17/19

May 29/19, June 12/19

July 17/19, August 14/19
October 9/19, November 20/19
November 27/19, January 15/20
January 22/20, March 11/20

April 24/19, June 26/19
August 28/19, October 30/19
December 18/19, January 29/20

January 17/19, February 21/19
March 14/19, March 28/19

April 18/19, June 13/19

June 27/19, August 22/19
September 26/19, October 17/19
November 14/19, December 12/19
January 16/20, February 13/20
March 12/20, March 26/20

MOOSONEE

PEAWANUK

April 2, 3, 4/20, May7, 8, 9/20

June 4, 5, 6/20, July 9, 10,11/19
August 6, 7,8/19, September 3, 4,
5/19, October 1, 2, 3/19, November
5, 6, 7/19, December 3, 4, 5/19,
January 7, 8, 9/20

February 4, 5, 6/20, March 3, 4, 5/20

May 1/19, August 29/19
February 20/20

CONSTANCE LAKE, MISSINABIE CREE, CHAPLEAU CREE, BRUNSWICK
HOUSE, CHAPLEAU OJIBWAY, WAHGOSHIG, MATACHEWN, MATTAGAMI,
NEW POST, MOCREEBEC, BEAVERHOUSE, FLYING POST, HORNEPAYNE

Nishnawbe-Aski Nation members attend urban courts in NAN territory

NAN ZONE 2 (CENTRAL)

Northern Courts April 1, 2019 — March 30, 2020

EABAMETOONG

NESKANTAGA

MARTEN FALLS

April 25/19, May 30/19

June 13/19, August 8/19
September 26/19, November 21/19,
February 6/20, March 12/20

April 10/19, August 15/19
November 6/19, February 13/20

May 8/19, August 28/19
November 27/19, February 19

NIBINAMIK

WEBEQUIE

FORT SEVERN

April 29/19, July 8/19
October 28/19, February 20

April 29/19, July 8/19
October 28/19, January 29

May 13/19, August 19/19
February 10/20

AROLAND, GINOOGAMING, LONGLAKE#58, WHITEWATER LAKE

Nishnawbe-Aski Nation members attend urban courts in NAN territory
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NAN COURTS - ZONE 3 (WEST)

2020

BEARSKIN LAKE CAT LAKE DEER LAKE
February 11 January 28 January 13

March 23
KASABONIKA KEEWAYWIN KINGFISHER
February 12 (Trials) February 18 January 30
March 19
MUSKRAT DAM NORTH SPIRIT POPLAR HILL
January 6 February 24 January 27

March 30
SACHIGO LAKE SANDY LAKE WUNNUMIN LAKE
January 20 February 3 January 21 (changed to

April 6 video-small docket)

PIKANGIKUM PIKANGIKUM PIKANGIKUM
YCJA, CFSA/CLRA, Lists Trials
JPT’s
January 7 January 8, 22 January 10, 14, 15, 16
February 4 February 5, 19 February 21
March 3 March 11, 25 March 2,4 10, 17, 31

NAN COURTS - ZONE 3 (WEST)

2020
KITCHENUHMAYKOOSI | WEAGAMOW WAPEKEKA
B
January 9 January 23 March 20
February 13 February 20
March 12 March 26

LAC SEUL — DRIVE IN

MISHKEEGOGAMANG
PICKLE LAKE - DRIVE IN

January 29
February 12
March 25, 26

January 17, 24, 31
February 7, 14
March 5 13, 27

NEW SLATE FALLS, CAT LAKE, MACDOWELL LAKE, WAWAKAPEWIN,

KOOCHECHING, SAUGEEN

Nishnawbe-Aski Nation members attend urban courts in NAN territory
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Indigenous Bail Verification and Supervision
& Community Release and Reintegration Programs
Annual Report 2019-2020

Submitted By: Oana Cristea, Gladue Staff Lawyer

The closing of this year marks the second anniversary of the Indigenous Bail Verification and Supervision Program
and the one-and-a-half-year anniversary of the Community Release and Reintegration Program. The programs
celebrate their milestones through measurable successes in meaningful client services rendered and through the
development of strengthened relationships and collaboration with:

¢ Nishnawbe Aski Police Service * Kaakewaaseya Justice Services
¢ Pikangikum Health Authority e Ne-Chee Friendship Centre

e Legal Aid Ontario Duty Counsel e Ininew Friendship Centre

¢ John Howard Society of Thunder Bay e Choose Life

e Elizabeth Fry Society of Sudbury e Living Space.

This year, the program teams joined together for a 3-day learning, planning and acting session to develop a joint
mission and vision:

Mission Vision
e Prevention through programming e To empower and promote self-determination and to
e Advocacy be the bridge to healthy relationships and healing.

e Intervention

e Education, guidance and direction
e Self-respect and autonomy

* Embrace Challenges

e Returning Voice and Power Back
e Spiritualism
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Clients in Bail Supervision Program
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Reintegration
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6 land-based
prevention
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66 clients offered reintegration support, including navigating local systems for income and housing, referrals
for residential treatment for mental health and addictions, healing plans that include local life skills development
programs and connections to local services and legal help.

Successes

“Keith McKay is a good worker here in our community.
He does a lot of work with youth and people that go
to jail. He knows what he’s doing. If there’s court, he’s
there. He always comes to Council. He is a good worker
in Kasabonika.”

— Chief Tom Semple of Kasabonika Lake First Nation

“This program addresses the needs of our indigenous
community comprehensively and effectively. It has
significantly improved outcomes for Legal Aid clients
since its inception in our District.”

— Nancy E. Cooper LLB of Nancy Cooper Law — Private
Lawyer
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“l would have got ZERO people out during COVID if it
was not for Lenard Comber and his setting up transport
from the DJ to remote communities. Leonard has been
awesome.”

— lan Ritchie — Duty Counsel in Sioux Lookout

“The Indigenous Bail program has meant a real change
for many vulnerable accused people, Indigenous and
non-Indigenous alike in Timmins, and has given them
the opportunity to get back on their feet and to defend
themselves against criminal charges in the community
rather than from jail.”

— Calvin Ferrier — Manager- Duty Counsel



Human Resources Annual Report 2019-2020

Submitted By: Colette Shwetz, HR Manager

Staffing

Recruitment: We made considerable changes and
amendments to our recruitment strategy during 2019.
NALSC hired 20 new employees in 2019/20, including
6 contract employees. We have had 8 staff successfully
move within the corporation to other NALSC positions.
The total NALSC staff compliment is 80 and at year end
there were 14 vacancies still to be filled.

Human Resources Policies

We have fully reviewed the current Human Resource
policies and are currently updating them. The document
is scheduled to be presented to the Board of Directors
for review and approval in final draft by fall of 2020.

Compensation and Benefits

We are carrying out a full review of our compensation
pay grids, and benefit carrier. This will be completed by
September 2020.

Heath and Safety

There has been a complete safety audit of our office
space. The Joint Health & Safety Committee continues
to work with all NALSC staff to ensure our safety
standards comply with the Ontario Health and Safety
Association through safety surveys, safety inspections,
and staff feedback.

Where Have We Made
Improvements?

e Electronic Records: We have adopted a new electronic
personnel file system. This system will improve record
storage, and availability. With this, we are working on a
comprehensive file audit.

e Staff Training: We have made improvements to
our staff training plans. All Staff receive up-to-date
mandatory, online training regarding their health and
safety. All onboarding of new staff includes all required,
newly introduced health and safety training.

* HR Processes: All job descriptions have been updated
for all positions along with all job postings, recruitment
strategies and onboarding practices.

What’s Next?

e Working with all staff to promote inter office
and regular communication;

e Enhancing recruitment from NAN Territory; and

e Improving training for skill set requirements and
staff retention.

Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation, more
specifically the Human Resources department, will
continue to support all staff in their Human Resource
inquiries with the goal of promoting well balanced,
employee/employer relations.



Thank You!
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Management's Responsibility

To the Board of Directors of Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation:

Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the accompanying financial statements, including responsibility for
significant accounting judgments and estimates in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations. This
responsibility includes selecting appropriate accounting principles and methods, and making decisions affecting the measurement of
transactions in which objective judgment is required.

In discharging its responsibilities for the integrity and fairness of the financial statements, management designs and maintains the
necessary accounting systems and related internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are authorized, assets
are safeguarded and financial records are properly maintained to provide reliable information for the preparation of financial statements.

The Board of Directors is composed entirely of Directors who are neither management nor employees of the Organization. The Board is
responsible for overseeing management in the performance of its financial reporting responsibilities, and for approving the financial
information included in the annual report. The Board fulfils these responsibilities by reviewing the financial information prepared by
management and discussing relevant matters with management and external auditors. The Board is also responsible for recommending
the appointment of the Organization's external auditors.

MNP LLP is appointed by the Board of Directors to audit the financial statements and report directly to them; their report follows. The

external auditors have full and free access to, and meet periodically and separately with, both the Board and management to discuss
their audit findings, as required.

July 20, 2020

Tara Thompson, Céntroller




Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors of Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation:
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation (the "Organization"), which comprise the
statement of financial position as at March 31, 2020, and the statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Organization as
at March 31, 2020, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting
standards for not-for-profit organizations.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Organization in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Supplementary Information

The supplementary information contained in the schedules is presented for the purposes of additional analysis and is not part of the
basic audited financial statements. The information in the schedules was derived from the accounting records tested in forming an
opinion on the financial statements as a whole.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Canadian accounting
standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Organization’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Organization or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Organization’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

MNP



° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal

control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit

evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Organization’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Organization to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

MNP cer

Thunder Bay, Ontario Chartered Professional Accountants

July 20, 2020 Licensed Public Accountants

MNP



Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

Statement of Financial Position
As at March 31, 2020

2020 2019

Assets

Current
Cash 2,189,910 996,047
Accounts receivable (Note 4) 79,071 141,270
Prepaid expenses 25,617 22,515
HST receivable 232,754 261,481
2,527,352 1,421,313
Capital assets (Note 5) 158,971 136,708
2,686,323 1,558,021

Liabilities

Current
Accounts payable and accruals (Note 7) 1,403,267 1,214,246
Deferred revenue (Note 8) 869,657 146,523
Governmentremittances payable 125,659 50,437

2,398,583 1,411,206

Contingencies (Note 9)
Significant event (Note 14)

Net Assets
Invested in capital assets 158,971 136,708
Unrestricted 296,167 177,505
Restricted (167.398) (167.398)

287,740 146,815

2,686,323 1,558,021

Approved on behalf of the Board

e (e~

Director Director




Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

Statement of Operations
For the year ended March 31, 2020

Restricted Unrestricted Invested in 2020 2019
capital assets
Revenue
Legal Aid Ontario 2,196,086 - - 2,196,086 2,196,086
Northern Ontario Heritage Fund
Corporation - - - - 10,138
Department of Justice 551,792 - - 551,792 551,792
Ministry of Attorney General 3,807,393 - - 3,807,393 3,674,457
Ministry of Children, Community and Social
Services 1,721,133 - - 1,721,133 1,748,133
Community Counselling Centre of Nipissing 117,468 - - 117,468 117,468
Operation Springboard 120,000 - - 120,000 154,762
Other revenue - 1,543 - 1,543 3,358
Interest income - 37,827 - 37,827 12,609
Internal management and
administration fees - 736,271 - 736,271 835,924
Add: prior year deferred revenue (Note 8) 146,523 - - 146,523 760,817
Less: current year deferred
revenue (Note 8) (869,657) - - (869,657) (146,523)
Recovery from (repayable to) funders 90,343 - - 90,343 (1,181,075)
Total revenue 7,881,081 775,641 - 8,656,722 8,737,946

Continued on next page

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

Statement of Operations
For the year ended March 31, 2020

Restricted Unrestricted Invested in 2020 2019
capital assets
Total revenue (Continued from previous page) 7,881,081 775,641 - 8,656,722 8,737,946
Expenses
Advertising 44,044 5,132 - 49,176 53,932
Annual meetings of members 24,018 - - 24,018 23,430
Bad debts expense (recovery) - (7,585) - (7,585) 803
Bank charges 180 4,956 - 5,136 5,856
Board of Directors - meetings 87,597 135 - 87,732 107,931
Community partnership 21,974 - - 21,974 50,462
Computers and equipment 105,145 49,353 - 154,498 113,629
Elder honorarium 59,698 50 - 59,748 75,490
Insurance and security 5,922 44,780 - 50,702 24,580
Internal management fees 736,271 - - 736,271 844,503
Law Society fees 7,244 - - 7,244 7,917
Lease rentals 10,567 - - 10,567 5,015
Library 3,437 - - 3,437 1,088
Miscellaneous 1,017 1,264 - 2,281 18,704
Office supplies 191,760 23,168 - 214,928 257,538
Professional fees 43,196 61,981 - 105,177 151,075
Program evaluation 27,428 - - 27,428 9,031
Rent and utilities 492,037 48,483 - 540,520 543,492
Repairs and maintenance 28,753 6,349 - 35,102 30,700
Salaries and benefits 4,681,641 381,587 - 5,063,228 4,930,248
Telephone 132,949 10,021 - 142,970 201,659
Training 367,283 9,314 - 376,597 196,725
Travel 707,279 17,991 - 725,270 1,003,439
Workshops/circle expenses 101,641 - - 101,641 54,935
Total expenses 7,881,081 656,979 - 8,538,060 8,712,182
Excess of revenue over expenses before other - 118,662 - 118,662 25,764
items
Other items
Amortization of capital assets (93,232) - - (93,232) (87,119)
Capital assets acquisitions included in
expenses 96,077 19,418 - 115,495 84,709
Loss on disposal of capital assets - - - - (6,038)
2,845 19,418 - 22,263 (8,448)
Excess of revenue over expenses 2,845 138,080 - 140,925 17,316

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
For the year ended March 31, 2020

Restricted Unrestricted Invested in 2020 2019
capital assets

Net assets (deficiency), beginning of year (167,398) 177,505 136,708 146,815 142,600
Correction of an error - - - - (13,101)
Net assets (deficiency), beginning of year, as (167,398) 177,505 136,708 146,815 129,499
previously restated
Excess of revenue over expenses 2,845 138,080 - 140,925 17,316
Change in invested in capital assets (Note 11) (2,844) (19,418) 22,262 - -
Net assets (deficiency), end of year (167,397) 296,167 158,970 287,740 146,815

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended March 31, 2020

2020 2019
Cash provided by (used for) the following activities
Operating
Excess of revenue over expenses 140,925 17,316
Amortization 93,232 87,119
Bad debts - 803
Loss on disposal of capital assets - 6,038
234,157 111,276
Changes in working capital accounts
Accounts receivable 62,199 396,911
HST receivable 28,727 114,594
Prepaid expenses (3,102) (21,737)
Accounts payable and accruals 208,134 607,086
Government remittances payable 56,108 18,426
Deferred revenue 723,134 (614,294)
1,309,357 612,262
Investing
Purchase of capital assets (115,494) (84,709)
Increase in cash resources 1,193,863 527,553
Cash resources, beginning of year 996,047 468,494
Cash resources, end of year 2,189,910 996,047

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2020

Incorporation and nature of the organization

Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation (the “Organization”) is registered under the Income Tax Act (the "Act") as a
charitable organization and is authorized to issue charitable receipts. In order to maintain its status as a registered
charitable organization under the Act, the Organization must meet certain requirements within the Act. In the opinion of
management, these requirements have been met.

The Organization was formed to plan, develop, deliver, coordinate and administer the provision of legal education and
restorative justice, for the people of the Nishnawbe-Aski Nation in a manner sensitive to and respectful of their unique
cultural heritage.

Change in accounting policies

Capital Assets Held by Not-for-Profit Organizations

Effective January 4, 2019, the Organization adopted the Accounting Standard Board’s (AcSB) new accounting standards
improvements for not-for-profit organizations related to capital assets under Section 4433 Tangible Capital Assets Held by
Not-for-Profit Organizations. Applying this new Section results in changes to the determination of impairment and
write-downs of capital assets and allows for the recognition of partial impairments of these assets.

There was no material impact on the financial statements from the application of the new accounting recommendations.

Significant accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit
organizations as issued by the Accounting Standards Board in Canada using the following significant accounting policies:

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash held in chartered banks and petty cash.
Capital assets

Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost. Contributed capital assets are recorded at fair value at the date of
contribution if fair value can be reasonably determined.

Amortization is provided using the straight-line method at rates intended to amortize the cost of assets over their estimated
useful lives.

Years
Computer equipment 3 years
Computer software 1 year
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
System database software 5 years

Long-lived assets

Long-lived assets consist of capital assets. Long-lived assets held for use are measured and amortized as described in the
applicable accounting policies.

The Organization performs impairment testing on long-lived assets held for use whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset, or group of assets, may not be recoverable. The carrying
amount of a group of long-lived assets is not recoverable if the carrying amount exceeds the sum of the undiscounted future
cash flows from their use and disposal. If the carrying amount is not recoverable, impairment is then measured as the
amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its fair value. Fair value is measured using prices for similar items.
Any impairment is included in excess of revenue over expenses for the year.




Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2020

Significant accounting policies (Continued from previous page)

Leases

A lease that transfers substantially all of the benefits and risks of ownership is classified as a capital lease. At the inception
of a capital lease, an asset and a payment obligation are recorded at an amount equal to the lesser of the present value of
the minimum lease payments and the property’s fair market value. Assets under capital leases are amortized on a
straight-line basis, over their estimated useful lives. All other leases are accounted for as operating leases and rental
payments are expensed as incurred.

An arrangement contains a lease where the arrangement conveys a right to use the underlying tangible asset, and whereby
its fulfillment is dependent on the use of the specific tangible asset. After the inception of the arrangement, a reassessment
of whether the arrangement contains a lease is made only in the event that:

° there is a change in contractual terms;

° a renewal option is exercised or an extension is agreed upon by the parties to the arrangement;

° there is a change in the determination of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of the
specific tangible asset; or

° there is a substantial physical change to the specified tangible asset.

Revenue recognition

The Organization uses the deferral method of accounting for contributions and reports on a fund accounting basis.
Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue of the Restricted Fund in the year in which the related expenses are
incurred. Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the Unrestricted Fund when received or receivable if the
amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

Restricted investment income is recognized in the Restricted Fund depending on the nature of the restrictions. Unrestricted
investment income is recognized as revenue in the Unrestricted Fund when earned.

Fund accounting
The Organization reports using fund accounting, and maintains three funds.

The Unrestricted Fund reports the Organization’s revenue and expenses related to program delivery and administrative
activities.

The Restricted Fund reports assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses related to program delivery that are funded with
restricted contributions.

Invested in capital assets reports the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses related to capital assets.
Allocation of administration and management expenses

The Organization engages in various programs. The costs of each program include the costs of personnel, insurance, rent,
utilities and other expenses that are directly related to providing the program. The Organization also incurs a number of
general support expenses that are common to the administration of the Organization and each of its programs.

The Organization allocates certain of its general support expenses by identifying the appropriate basis of allocating each
component expense, and applies that basis consistently each year.

Contributed materials

Contributions of materials are recognized both as contributions and expenses in the statements of operations and changes
in net assets when a fair value can be reasonably estimated and when the materials are used in the normal course of the
Organization's operations and would otherwise have been purchased.




Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2020

Significant accounting policies (Continued from previous page)

Measurement uncertainty (use of estimates)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue
and expenses during the reporting period.

Accounts receivable are stated after evaluation as to their collectability and an appropriate allowance for doubtful accounts
is provided where considered necessary.

Amortization is based on the estimated useful lives of capital assets.
Accounts payable and accruals are estimated based on historical charges for unbilled goods and services at year-end.

Deferred revenue is estimated based on management's assessment of the unspent amount of funding received as at
year-end.

These estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically and, as adjustments become necessary they are reported in
excess of revenue over expenses in the periods in which they become known.

Financial instruments

The Organization recognizes its financial instruments when the Organization becomes party to the contractual provisions of
the financial instrument. All financial instruments are initially recorded at their fair value, including financial assets and
liabilities originated and issued in a related party transaction with management. Financial assets and liabilities originated
and issued in all other related party transactions are initially measured at their carrying or exchange amount in accordance
with CPA Canada Handbook 4460 Related Party Transactions.

At initial recognition, the Organization may irrevocably elect to subsequently measure any financial instrument at fair value.
The Organization has not made such an election during the year

The Organization subsequently measures investments in equity instruments quoted in an active market at fair value. Fair
value is determined by published price quotations. Investments in equity instruments not quoted in an active market are
subsequently measured at cost less impairment. All other financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortized cost.

Transaction costs and financing fees directly attributable to the origination, acquisition, issuance or assumption of financial
instruments subsequently measured at fair value are immediately recognized in the excess (deficiency) of revenue over
expenses for the current period. Conversely, transaction costs and financing fees are added to the carrying amount for
those financial instruments subsequently measured at amortized cost or cost.

Accounts receivable

2020 2019

Staff receivable 9,533 1,775
Receivable from funders 69,538 147,455
79,071 149,230

Allowance for doubtful accounts - (7,960)
79,071 141,270




Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2020

Capital assets

2020 2019
Accumulated Net book Net book
Cost amortization value value
Computer equipment 266,312 216,108 50,204 36,083
Computer software 66,378 66,378 - -
Furniture and fixtures 373,218 264,451 108,767 100,625
System database software 20,000 20,000 - -
725,908 566,937 158,971 136,708

Bank indebtedness

At March 31, 2020, the Organization had lines of credit available to it totaling $100,000 (2019 - $100,000), none of which
were drawn (2019 - $Nil).

Accounts payable and accruals

2020 2019
Trade payables and accruals 223,052 104,170
Amounts repayable to funders 803,594 856,714
Salaries and benefits payable 376,621 253,362

1,403,267 1,214,246

Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue consists of unspent contributions externally restricted for delivery of various programs. Recognition of
these amounts as revenue is deferred to periods when the specified expenditures are made. Changes in the deferred
revenue are as follows:

2020 2019
Balance, beginning of year 146,523 760,817
Amount received during the year 6,003,479 2,196,085
Less: amount recognized as revenue during the year (5,280,345) (2,810,379)
Balance, end of year 869,657 146,523

Contingencies

The Organization is contingently liable to its funding agencies for any expenditures that it may have made in contravention
of the contracts/agreements with these agencies. The actual amount of the contingent liability, if any, is currently not
determinable.

The Organization has identified measurement uncertainty with respect to the classification of restricted and unrestricted net
assets arising from its accounting policies for the allocation of administrative and management expenses as described
above. Specifically, Legal Aid Ontario had identified amounts from 2014 that it believes should be reclassified from
unrestricted net assets to restricted net assets. While management disputes this assessment, the impact of the change, if
realized, would be to increase restricted net assets and decrease unrestricted net assets. Any reclassification will be
recorded in the period the amount becomes measurable.




Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2020

10.

1.

12.

13.

Commitments

The Organization has entered into a lease for a postage machine with Neopost that expires on January 31, 2021 with
quarterly costs of $1,088.

The Organization has entered into a lease for a multifunction printer with Xerox that expires on November 1, 2022 with
quarterly costs of $390.

The Organization has entered into a lease for two multifunction printers with Wells Fargo that expires on May 15, 2024 with
monthly costs of $298.

The Organization has entered into a lease commitment with Immeubles Eindev Inc. that expires on August 31, 2023 with
monthly payments of $20,925 until August 31, 2020 and $22,613 per month until August 2023.

The Organization has entered into a lease commitment with Abela Holdings that expires on December 31, 2022 with
monthly payments of $2,662 and $2,701 in calendar 2020 and 2021 respectively.

The Organization has entered into a lease commitment with 401731 Ontario Limited that expires December 31, 2023 with
monthly payments of $6,785 for calendar 2020 and $6,997 for calendar 2021 to 2023.

The Organization has entered into a lease commitment with 401731 Ontario Limited that expires December 31, 2022 with
monthly payments of $1,868 for calendar 2020 and $1,926 for calendar 2021 and 2022.

The amounts payable over the next four fiscal years related to the above leases are as follows:

2021 408,026
2022 407,880
2023 377,007
2024 176,336

1,369,249

Change in invested in capital assets

The change in invested in capital assets is calculated as follows:

2020 2019

Purchase of capital assets 115,494 84,709
Amortization expense (93,232) (87,119)
Disposal of capital assets - (6,038)
22,262 (8,448)

Economic dependence

The Organization's primary source of revenue is grants from various government agencies. The grant funding can be
cancelled if the Organization does not observe certain established guidelines. The Organization's ability to continue viable
operations is dependent upon maintaining its right to follow the criteria within funding guidelines. As at the date of these
financial statements, the Organization believes that it is in compliance with these guidelines.

Financial instruments

The Organization, as part of its operations, carries a number of financial instruments. It is management's opinion that the
Organization is not exposed to significant interest, currency, credit, liquidity or other price risks arising from these financial
instruments except as otherwise disclosed.
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Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended March 31, 2020

14.

15.

Significant event

During the year, there was a global outbreak of COVID-19 (coronavirus), which has had a significant impact on businesses
through the restrictions put in place by the Canadian, provincial and municipal governments regarding travel, business
operations and isolation/quarantine orders. At this time, it is unknown the extent of the impact the COVID-19 outbreak may
have on the Organization as this will depend on future developments that are highly uncertain and that cannot be predicted
with confidence. These uncertainties arise from the inability to predict the ultimate geographic spread of the disease, and
the duration of the outbreak, including the duration of travel restrictions, business closures or disruptions, and
quarantine/isolation measures that are currently, or may be put, in place by Canada and other countries to fight the virus.
While the extent of the impact is unknown, we anticipate this outbreak may cause reduced customer demand, supply chain
disruptions, staff shortages, and increased government regulations, all of which will negatively impact the Organization’s
business and financial condition.

Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with current year presentation.

11
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Vb Ad e aab 9da” bPMCLbo<t AAMQAa” BN BDD>V: PLPAIMA> A DoboCLSY BBV Db
<oPA> <Nb B>C Db> CAYd™ PadoQA-c* VASAT'AV-" Vb BBV AIMQA> L~ b7 BbPhobCa .

g0 0209090909090 BEedyN0 |

PAIPBUP> CS9A° Bado9A> PalMGA e’ Ta F<PNobUP> AIMAa> Ta AMAV-Aa> CAYd"
M<PNobUP? >aS'V-A- BCYCLY AMAV-Aa® Db bAT'AVLLP? Vb DC boVCIMAVLbLP? Qda”, la
<TCLYA=, DCYICLYY, <77 CLS° P'Po"LIA>, Vb OMAa” Vb ASMAa” AAL o2 CS9AR?
<TCLAA e AMAV-Aa® bliba o™ a” <A bASCbP-.

DOraa-&Peraa-o. I
e ALAD?D>PLAR, Vb ALIMD>A> e ATAD? * SP'AV-A2 ba V-29A >
° PFA© M9A> TaNP'ADA? A-CoPI DA ° PPCLA>
° LYbA-YA"Ta UVPA- e PIL<INAA? o UV°PA->
* ofbNAA~

>V >SA'AL T

Vb dofaV P N<do9A: ATAV-Aa?
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MTod7 MN<or7' BP>L AAM9A-o. Vb C" Bill161 IYC"A DPLA> I'9-Lb>
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>CACLA' PNaPlA 0]

rc VN, 6cba NCLI
Independent First Nation Alliance

NP LY,650956a NCLI~
Windigo First Nation Council

PEAYALC, DL o ’"AYB>ba V-9
Matawa First Nations

N <N",CACL9
Wabun Tribal Council

C, bCACLY
Mushkegowuk Council

P=A" bPLI\,DCACLY
Keewaytinook Okimakanak

N\ALPA- o ACPb,CACLY
Shibogama Tribal Council

CeANPGSN,DCACLY
Unaffiliated First Nation Member
Mishkeegogamang First Nation

Pt <I<o'
P=A‘d*A d"Cr->, Attawapiskat
First Nation

Pr'<i7 obN\'<lo'
<

Pr'<ts o"°
Y1 4->", Eabametoong First Nation

UA <\, PrP>PLbo"
Ex-Officio, Nishnawbe-AskiNation
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NISHNAWBE ASKI LEGAL SERVICES CORPORATION

FIRST NATIONS COMMUNITIES

a4
<872 Ay,

<
.\'b . Fort Severn @
g £ Hudson Bay
6 s
v %
E z
o
% § 9 Weenusk
0 7
,
"tea, seanct®
o Bearskin Lake
Sachigo Lake Kitchenuhmaykoosib Inninuwug
® Wapekeka
Muskrat Dam Lake @ o Kasabonika Lake TREATY#9
Sandy Lake ® Wawakapewin 1929-30
Koocheching
K . Kingfisher Lake
S-Debr Lake CERaVNIE North Garibou @0 e
TREATY#5 @ Lake e @ Webequie
187576 @ North Spirit Lake
® Poplar Hill @ MacDowell Lake
. Pikangikum ® Neskantaga
Cat Lake
[ J
m Pickle Lake ® Eabametoong &
Marten Fall;
B Red Lake New Slate Falls arten rets
® Mishkeegogamang
Whitewater Lake
TREATY#3
1873 Lac Seul Ui S
W Armstroni
B Kenora .o ’
o Dryden — Sioux Lookout © Aroland

|
Ignace

INDEPENDENT FIRST NATIONS ALLIANCE

Kitchenuhmaykoosib Inninuwug First Nation
Muskrat Dam First Nation

Pikangikum First Nation

Whitesand First Nation

Lac Seul First Nation

WINDIGO FIRST NATIONS

Bearskin Lake First Nation

Cat Lake First Nation
Koocheching First Nation
North Caribou Lake First Nation
Sachigo Lake First Nation
Slate Falls First Nation
Whitewater Lake First Nation

KEEWAYTINOOK OKIMAKANAK

« Deer Lake First Nation

« Fort Severn First Nation

« Keewaywin First Nation

« MacDowell Lake First Nation
« North Spirit Lake First Nation
« Poplar Hill First Nation

Long Lake #58 Y
Geraldton W @ Gincogaming

Lake Nipigon

| Nipigon | Manitouwadge

W Thunder Bay

Lake Superior

SHIBOGAMA FIRST NATIONS COUNCIL

 Kasabonika Lake First Nation
* Kingfisher Lake First Nation
* Wapekeka First Nation

* Wawakapewin First Nation

* Wunnumin Lake First Nation

MATAWA FIRST NATIONS

* Aroland First Nation

e Constance Lake First Nation
* Eabametoong First Nation

¢ Ginoogaming First Nation

* Marten Falls First Nation

e Long Lake #58 First Nation
* Neskantaga First Nation

e Nibinamik First Nation

* Webequie First Nation

Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

138-B Mission Road,
Fort William First Nation, ON

1805 E Arthur St.,
Thunder Bay, ON P7E 2R6

Toll Free: 1-800-465-5581
(T) 807- 622-1413 (F) 807-622-3024
www.nanlegal.on.ca

TREATY#9
1905-06

W Hornepayne

N

<

B Non-Indigenous Communities
O Nen LegalMain Offices Nan
@ Legal Finance Office Nan

Legal Program Offices
50 100 150 200 250

Attawapiskat
L] km
[ J
(]
Kashechewan @
Qe
Fort Albany
James Bay
® MooseGree
Moosonee @2y ocreenec
Flying Post
|

@ Constance Lake
B Hearst

W Kapuskasing
@ Taykwa Tagamou

B Oba ’l Cochrane
Wahgoshig
W Timmins
® Missanabie Cree Beaverhouse
Matachewan
Chapleau Mattagami
Chapleau Cree ® m P W Gogama

Brunswick House
Chapleau Qjibway

MUSHKEG TRIBAL COUNCIL

 Attawapiskat First Nation

e Chapleau Cree First Nation

* Fort Albany First Nation

e Kashechewan First Nation

© Missanabie Cree First Nation
* Moose Cree First Nation

* Taykwa Tagamou First Nation

WABUN TRIBAL COUNCIL

Brunswick House First Nation
Chapleau Ojibwe First Nation
Matachewan First Nation
Mattagami First Nation

Flying Post First Nation
Beaverhouse (affiliate)
Wahgoshig First Nation

INDEPENDENT BANDS  (Bands not afrlated

with any Tribal Council)

» Mishkeegogamang Ojibway Nation

* Mocreebec Eeyoud Coungil

» Sandy Lake First Nation

* Weenusk First Nation
(Peawanuck)



NALSC Adr9A-a."Ta. AT"AV-A-a.":
e bl oo bU >ado9® AIM9A->

CJS9A° >adoq9®

PPo<L9A->>YbN"

ALT'AV-A-a >

<"PPbR&IbAA: PANT9A”

>Y6N" >ado9° AJM9A-

PLLOMAAR&IBbAA PANG9° AT'AV-A'a®? CS9A°
PA-MqA-> DOMA-o

* bNPJado™ P<A-DblM d*'&ba <I<M9° AJIM9A->

e CS9A° DOMA-2&bP>abod™ JoPabal

o DC7ICLA bM<~ A-CLAA” (LLoA2&NV>M9A)
e NALSC<oPa b D>CYICLA9

[0 9A~ bllabo™ NV MA? Na IS AIM9A-°

* bLMIOCIbo™ BPAT'AV? < oPabal

e >a do9A- ALIIA> AT'AV-A®
e >ado9A~° BLPa"AQ
e >a do9A° DCoPCLY

o 7 CLAA” P'PLo"ILAA &I7T"ADA?

e NALSC &P>°UAAN =Ad= V/ ATAV-A-a®
o ><IV-alfq® <oPab?
e CS9A° Pado9° <oPabal
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2019-2020bl oro"bU’ Pa.do"9° AIr9° N<rdA-°
]

bP<PNa‘:n”U= LN, 6/ ocbU"' Pa do9A-> PPL

D VAS>19-L=731

bLMNo rbU Mo abU' >adoq° AIMQA-> b~
Ad PAI<lobU DP>V- bPY'P<I Ta VPIJSaNP?
ASNAa? DL bPBMSLLP? bo”NY° Dado9A-
>aMAc), Ta CJ9Aa>> Vb  JSlboJ®
AT'AV-A-g. Vb BDD>L DNLLL? Ab IbC SLbow
Nlaa JLbowv' bPLAQ'I-  9QDrbuy, Db
b>a dabo<l” <AV Ta MN<KobbUP? blolS'aNP?
D>ado9Aa’.

Vb Nd7, b~ bYACe 'P< TPIAPS, DBV
PPr<IPdI<:AoA> TPV bASY, Vb bAMbUY dA/
19, P<Clrbo<> Qa~ Vb a?C rAD<-
PCoPaboaal <oJSaV® DPLL> Ta
>aSV-Acgo<® >LYa"Abo<? PAPD<®
r>SrouP? <%bTPA-  D>al9Aa” Db2 Vb
r<<Myo<" dofaVe CJS9Aa”. Vb D URAY
D>ado9Aa® DPPANaa< Vb PANS~ CJS9AQ?
Vb LaUPMba A’ <<KC? bPadobo<t, Vb
<oPaba' A< AC<. NdT, PYo<? 9da?
bP>a bUP> D>hC dA’ 19, L~ <oL” rDOroup?
bPabaAaoc< b<y["ADa o< CAob CSA?
oPro>CI> bDOCI<~. Vb bY% <oPabal
ASALoP<,

O_D

Vb TPPAPC 17, 2020, BBV AIMQA> <oPabal
>PA-CLJ> DCACLS? VPP>a 9o~ P7< bAS YT
M>r<oP<I~ 9fa” Vb o”C MADL~ P9o<
<oPaba' Vb bA2 L7C MPYCh olad'. Vb,
IV Ad QASATATI7b: CS9A” Ma?
ATQAa® DDV oSV 1P N<do9A ATAV-A->
L'"CLPA> AAP9A> LLCA- A<AJ' bCb:ooP?
Mo~ A< PP AM9A P<I<bUN

A“doA-°

Vb BP>V- b7P'<1Y, AYdoA> Ta P'Po"<LIA->
L™ PP<<KCL0? I b oY B>V AIMQAR. Vb
bPL<Dabo<~ blooalld”™ PDadocqA? Ta
b<lV:aMq<d-, PA-CLbo<> o> 9OrbuU‘ B>pPV-
P> oY AJP9A>2. o bL<IMADa o<,
P> MbU P'Po"<HLA° LPa"Ab> M<I-V-ara'"AbU\
N LPa"AboN° M<IV-C'"AobUP? bAPDLLP?, [a
<rdA- LPQ"Ab? P> bUN. B9o<® o> Qda® <N
PPSITBU 02 FAT'A7b o<~ oSoo<
CJS9A ¢ b~ Vb b~ oCob(Cl? >9od?
P<PNoLP> ocCoPAbId bASCLP>, NI~ alh
>>V-dIA’ 19 DI, Vb [JS? VPB>JSDYP?. Vb
o<dVCl Mo <'P< <N P<YP?. Vb D9 o<
Qda”® CP <<KCo® [IPPPOHdL<Ibo~ Ta
PAYdo"db o~ DCoP' Na CS9A ¢ bbVS<,
Vb Fa, PAM'Ada < <oPaba' by M<dobd<-
<A, Ta LPa'"Aba? bY<CP? M<IKCP> B>PL
PP>CYICLA  DLPa"AQABIdY  bAJS<PNobUP?
b~ >a.do9A-> bAISLB.

Vb PaCV-2rbU BP>V: Tgog9° Dadoc9A-?
AJMQAA2 P<PNa' AYdoA? DPQQo<? (Ta~
bACoPL™ lTa Padoq° <oPaba’ Vb C°,
oo 9° >a do9A-? >PL >pPyy>
>ado9A'co<l?, D>adoc9Aoh>, Vb =Ad* V’
>PL>, PV-No‘obA'<o? P>adaq® AT'AV-Aa?,
PPr>adoq®° AJIM9Aa>, Vb PP>PL baablfy~
D>adoqAco<? la LLoAa? bPIrba<<<CP>.
Vb BDBL PCSLLMADa o]
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YVEA Vb CPC V Vb L™ by PASYT 0. Vb
B>V AIMQA> PCANe MPPO'AILT™ N dA7?
CAYd~ DPL bAS<oPCLAc” Pado9Ac' Ta
bAaU' AIMQA-=>, b~ by bAIr<PNobU' D>ICLAA
b FACoPTNac<tt Ta o’C r>JSrovd
bATA-CoPID<~ DPadoq® DLIa"AAbLMT Ta
Moo 9° PadoQA> AIM9A2. Vb BBL LIMADA 0,
PaDClLo<> PAI<I<C'<b o<~ AJIM9A-bIrd?
bASCb-P> Vd™ FATIBUP? AIMAA-> b<PNaP>.

Vb Ta V- VASATATD?P? CS9Aa” DPL
AJIMQA- DI Vb b7 VP'Po'AL-<I7 CS9A> CAYI™
bYNobU' B>ado9A> AIMA> Vb [a o> DP>V:
AJIMAA> QAS ALY, Vb o, BBV A-CLAA o7a”
doJSaV® CSAa” PN daoc<? (bAM<1>, Ab>rbl,
MPb>Nb"Abo, LUPb-bLY Vb <IL"do ) Vb o-C<LIOMM™
bPAPDI™ A7 Vb b~ o<IV-C'"Aal>. Vb dCP7>
CSAa? PalCV2Ca< AN Vb ob9-DCr>
MFOCLY PaDCLA 0> Db ASAMI7b: Ta A
<PNobU' PY< Mo LMPA-Co< B o<? CS9A >
bA-TDYP.

Vb P'PO'<ILAA> DL DIrAN<PNabU Db bPa
N<rJA- Lla'"Aba? DPPL looc9A> Dadoc9A-
AIPQA-c DI Vb Do NKMIA L/a'"Aba?
N<rroU<>? Pado9A: AJIMPQAa® Vb DUYbNNY
bAT'AYbo<<~. Vb PobalbU Afa~ A-CLAAa > b'%
PASabP? Ta abod” <oPaba' P>Yod?
<L rba> baCV2CI™ VI by FTASY DadoQA:
AJIPQA->. Vb Ta PD>o2rbU D>BL LPa"Ab Pr>JSTHUN
Vb TooQA> PDadoqA> AIMQA> PNLLrbUY, Vb
<N PPSTBU Ta <aPaba' Mo?DCIKY bASNY
bllocobU' B>ado9A” Na bAa<C' P>adoQA-c.

Vb NKPA- A-CLAA @ <'A NLPIA Y QU2
AAL Tog QA P>adoQA> AIMQA-a. <'A> by oJ>
>UP N<P1A©N  Db>  bNLrrbUP? CJ A
AT'AV-A2  AIPQAR Ta bASHIDOC<bo™ Ta
bllbabo™ AT'AV-A-  AIPSA” Vb b~
bASbMDC<Ibo™ Ta  blbabo™ N<CIA©ON
AV IbU< 0> LYPdIA 0 DI Vb b7 CIb o< <A
<oloW> Qda” Vb aCV2ClLo? PYo<d?
LPa"AboN° o ”C N<KIrAoN V' bo" KPU= L=K?
(LLCA- A<AJdY: cjohnson@nanlegal.on.ca) Vb o”C
bAS VL' o ”C BbP<PIV-Ac>.

Vb Ta. dC7P> AT9A@” PIOrbU<Lo> Db
bLINo>CIM"AV-LP> AIMAa® BPPL MNoo9A

>ado9A? AIMAC). Vb DL bPACLbo<t
>9-o<> (NAN/NALSC/NAPS) AJPA-Q?
BLATIADA o< FPPAPS 3-4,2020, Vb
bP<lo-IMbUP? o J'V-A>, ASbTDCV-A Fa [bAA-,
broobU' >ado9A>, Vb >UbNN' bATIAYL o<I—,
Vb bPAN<I™ D>PLba Mo DaSV-A oo, SLbY,
SLb>S° <oPabal, Vb dCPY> AIM9A-Q>. Vb B>V
AIPAA2  PASY PN<LPIC<~ 9doa® CJS9AQ?
bATIAYb o<~ Db bL-4 Daf'<’~ >adocrdAc Ma
bPAYb: >a J'<I¥~ >ado9A-c\.

Vb bba<<rbU' bP'Po'<LIbol~ <oPabal,
faa <7blP° PPO'FLIA> Plabody [oo9°
D>ado9A> <oPba' Vb dCP7> aab 9da”. Vb
D>V P'Po']ILIA> by Py LMNorb> oYA”
AT'AV-A>,  <GbT/A<T'ADA>, Vb AN
P'Po"'<LAA>. Vb DPAM'Ada<l <oPaba‘ DPL;
ba?CA'abU' ASYA° Ta AaLMP>AR Do JAY
>, Fa AT'AV-LL? Ac/CA-abU' aab bASL7Pbo
>ALNAA- <> Db> bLIMNo Cld~ M>CAal]"
>ALNAA o< Ta bSbUPCII™ Vb Ta MFAT'AIT
<IA? a”C PPrAS o~ <AY?. Vb oA P'Po"LIAA-
Plrabo< PCoPCLA Ma <<~ B>YbNN° aab IS a Ve
OMAa> PPL AbCPY DClAQ” Ta PPV
P'Po"<LIA 9Ma” Vb a’C FAD™ <A b~ oA
a”C bAD™ Tod' AAT'A7bo<™. Ta <oPabal
>bPPPCa << DCLL” <PCa PCA™ dAY? Ta
<S>, PUA° BC o”C MBFANG ™. Vb PaDCLI
<\oPabal >CoP? AAL bASCb-oaP?

D>CoPAbBIMd<> DP>V: PPO'KLAA> Mabol™. Vb
D>V a DCLA PPMbU Vb <N <oPaba’ PCYa <
<LPrba <KD PUA? o 2C B AS Y.




Vb Ta oPaba' PPoabo<’ VPMabol~
P'Po"ALAA> Db> AJSBNP° DMAA> Ma FbAA>
DMA=>. Vb b~ oPJSb bP P'Po"<Lbo <1 March5-
6,2020 AAL <FA bP<PNa I~ LMDOCV-A->
FbAAR P'Po'LAA>, PAS Yo <oPaba' MNAN™
>9o<? aab 9da’® bPNLILIBUP? DL
PP o"dLAAc. Vb DBP>V- AIPQA> PAJSNo
QA0 < P<PNa I~ bASPIMQ<~ Vb bPobaVb®
<o T/ C<IA>. DP<odC? bASLYPYbLEY VI NJS°
>a.doqA> Vb [goq° DadoqA” <'A by<C
<oJaV° PPOo'<LAA'a® Ta DMA-a>.

Vb C° =A'<P V2 0T oo P>adoq® <LoPab?
<A B>P<oP LCP< 9A° DPPSD? PIPo'<ILIA
To~ bAr<IoPao<I* Vb >PUAQ> LTN0Mb2 Moy A
AT'AV-A? DPPo'<ILIA T,

CJ9A° PY°Mr9A > I

Vb VA bACoPId?  ocACoPaboa?
AVEARNE FEAN VEPY, DUP <IoPab CSIA
APADA® Ta PPO'<ILIA> ><IV-ar9d/<doPab?

b _AlA Y “.:F‘l: —

o
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P>>V- AIPQA> bPPalbU' a bPBJSTBUN. Vb
A"CED? PPN DPB>CAa” DBV <oPAR Vb LI~
b7 Qda® o<d4YwolLl> MNDOCP> BPL BPDOYP<oPAc.
Vb b7  DPbldValqCLl>? <doPaba” b~
bAMP'Po"ALIb o=, Vb [PV PLAMbaI<C
NPU=E LYY Too9° Pado9A bobotb. ANCED?
CLKLIY Prbad<C" "' AJM9A> Vb- LL® o/
CJS9A @ ABNbS  ©b°\b'Abo?,  Pra’ldSAY,
<CIAM, BN, Yo Vb <F <I*<o. Ta CLKLTIV
Mfba<<L™ <doPaba’ la P'PoO'<LIbooc™ Vb
P<LrO<L- <<Lffba”, Vb bdob<lbol~ b7
M>albod™ DCSA <. <A bdoblbo™ VI
CACL<lbo I<<L™ ACP>> PY< AN
bASa CV>CdY~. Vb BBV DP JoPA> b7
CA-CoPLbo< <oPabal Py < Nd bY
PAI<ATbUP? Qda” bDrbUP> la P'Po"<LAA
b<PNa‘P>P>V- AIMQA-c.

Vb LP<oPblrbUN BP>V- DUP1oPAR, ACED
Vb <CAN° [PV bPa. 9da® Pbba <I<Ca< Db
b>Tb-o<<' AMAV-Aa® DL '<' Vb bllabo<~
a? CJ9Aa”. Vb, o<d<Cla”® obCNYAa> Vb
>rlo s D>V

B
e,

b—- 7

S



bAa<PbU'  AJMQA>. Vb bAIFBUP?  AJIM9A-Q?
bLPa'ABUP> ' AIMQAcY, <dVvCb>  bPSW
LLCOAIADY AT'AV-A-a® M<7P2. Vb bA>, DD>L o AN
CJS9Aa” bCbP>, LI~ PrLMYo, Vb P<dYCh> P77 DYP
94> r<AKC'  bPMabot™  AMAV-A” Db
b<d\w’Cb-P>. Vb, DBPV- AIM9A> bA-CoPL™ <FAW
FALC™ FaDCL™ cvo7a” DPPL PPURAY UZ=EAYC
AIPQA-c. Vb DIV oo oPAMAIP P77
<oPab bAT7~ CS9Aa> Vb LLCAAIAI" PBalbU
FAT'AV-LLY  DPL <" AJPQAc. Vb [7d”
MbaI<rouUP? P>Yo<I> AIM9A” Vb Cb-
LLCAAAY M<KC. Ta Plabo<' LZaU/lboh
Mba < <CI<~ <oPaba’ PN Ad VIy<—. LI~ DDV
FoN'AVLL? ' AIMPQAc Vb Ta Yd™ ol SaNo?
AJIM9A-a> bPSTHUP>.

A"CEP>? QA= CAMAV: <IV-albUo BUP AIMQA->
Vb DbA-CoPL> <=AN>. Pbloda< DBICLAA> Db
o> L7¢ bAaU' DPPV- PPO'<LIA>. Vb b7,
ANEANKE DCobC? ViaD™ PP</A° DPLAR
AIMPQA> Vb V<dhwol~ PY%NN° FATCo~ PPV
AJIMQA> bB>a fbUY. Vb, <=AKN? [a. A"CEP>? b MMAV-A-
>P>a Da < Vi<t >YbNK >OSA'"Abo<1>,
D>Lra"Abo<?, a.”>C BLbUPMbo <> Maboo’ Db o
P'Po'dL9A-a® P Vb b<Pa9<d~ DPDSA'Abo<
CadfbUo Ta C%drbUc DL DB AdrQA-c?
b> A<l obUo P> 9da .

Vb DITbaAPS, bPALTC <=AN? VEP/, ' DALCY,
PEA" VEN, UD>= Ya<T!, UA’ JdI=A>, UYFA TAZA",
PEIAY UD= '"W/UE VEAN L LN°", 92 Sbo, PA>Y
>pP", Vb ACED? PPN DPATMDa o> 9ASab
AIMQA> DPL <oPAcd. <'A b7 DPolCa< o>
QAST o5 AIPQA> Vb V- A BBV: bPB>JSTHU

>UP AIMPQA=. Vb b<U PS<A2 DPLA> DL AIMPQA-o
Ob> Mba<d<rbU' ohd Pleola P'PO'<LIA”. a
bAT<IV-albo<l’, M>alP? LLCAAIAJN Vb

LYaUrMboh? b<dWwCb-P Mabod~ AMMAV-Aa.

P>a.do9A-> ASbM9A-°
&PITbAA° LIFM9A-°

<4C' bPLIMNrbUN N bP<loIMbo < B>Yo<* >C
coo7a® b<PNa <~ DB>L AIM9Ac (MAG), AIMQA->
[Vd~ DPIMdrba<<C? D>adoq° AIM9A°. <A ["d~-
Cba<I<rbU P'Po"<LAA> [a P>adoQA> DL Moo 9°
>adoqAc. DP>L CProroU lMoo9° PadoqA-
PobaAAc, V' SLBA Mba<I<CI<d~ bAdabU
>adoQA> Ta FAMD<™ bPobaAaoc<' [oco9°
PobaAAc). Vb Mabo<d~ CJSAa> PDICLAAR
by<MO<~ Pado9A-a® DPL Noo9° D>adoqA o, Vb-
AIPQA> DbATD? MMoabU' bP>LLAY CS9A? Ta
Ao~ DLLo P<obUaP? DPSMTA Q.

Vb <N o< [J? 9da® Drbud o B>9o<
bACoPID<~ bPATC<~ Db by bProrbUP?
PoCdiA‘ga> Mo a”C SLboV P>adoq® LIMADA->,
Vb TbAA> LPMA> LIMADAR. Vb bPMrorbUP?
PoCdiAca> <'Aba<l<rbU b<VJSdl~ <AV
>PCLAAR Py~ DL PPO'FLAA G DI o>
POC I~ <obCI~ AL NP ASTAAQ” e TbAAQ?
LPMrAAa® AAL DPCJSAc<. Ta oCA'DAR
D>PCLAAR DPRCa<t bASBLEY Ta AN CS9AR?
V72CA: AP'AV-<- M VI<C'AV-<-
DAMAV-A <. <A by bAS<VILP? LYqd
CJ9A QA< PALC< Vb LLe
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ofSCa PC/<. Vb b~ bPAIPPO'<Lbo<,
> o<’ bPATC <™ Plabo< No?/CAa <™ <o
LYC BASNYP? ASYAQ® DL <AV Ta <<t PUA°
>C bPASBTDOC<bo<™ Na bPIbabo<<~ LA
D Ta bPANT™ PPPO<LIbo<' 9doa?
Pror<CI~ o> lNa PASAMAV. <dYv©Cbh-
>>V-  AIPQA2  PACIDYY  PPO'<LIA°  Ta
P'Po'<LAA> AIMA° b<PNobU' DP>L "\ Ta
OOA'<eY oSV AP a coo?? <y~ DIV
Py oP<Ibo<' lNa <o <'P<.

Vb AIPQA-a? (NAN/NALSC/NAPS)
bPLIMAD<I~ CPC V V' Dadg9A° Na dCPY?
AIPQAa® BbPANT™. b~ bL<MADa o<,
<oPabal >P<o ICa < AIF9A-Q? Ma
bASAMAV-LL' bPabaAaoc< Db> bPAdabU
>aSV'Aa” a”C AT DCV-A? Na bAA2. Vb
bPN<MTbUP? QA <CP? dL4 Dado™ <Ay BDDL
[oo9° >a do9A-> AJMPAA-o Vb Ml
bASAMT'AV-LE'. Vb ATA-CL<bo<~ D>PLL> Ta
>aSV-Aco<, <dVCb? DBV AIMAAR 'A°
CSAQ? <KD~ PDOadaQA o< DI,

Vb A%y, DPV- AIPQA (NALSC) Plabo
DPrCAA> M7~ DPL PITAA? LIMMADA o b~
MPPAPS 5-6 AAL <FAL. Vb bP<odrbUP>
bASLYPY VINIS® Pado9A” Ta <oSaV®
Foo9q° P>ado9A- b bLMNo>rbUP>
ASBDCV-A>  Ta PLTBAAR. b7 QASS
bPA-CLbo<1' Vb- LL® 100 <A PCY.

Vb e caaddl™ VACL' PYA”™ VaDClo<?
FALProUY BDBV- BaSV-A° AIMGA> Vb Ta
ATAA> DP>L AJIMPQA-c (SADV) PYA~ ACCIN.
Vb: BBV- b, ova? <N AT9Aa® POrbU o
DL b2, AbMbIM, TTb2Nb"Abe, MVPhb-bL>Y, Vb:
<U"do Y. Vb dA” 19 AYB-ASY, <N oDl dlr>
DL PANYY AS<PPAY <b"Abo PNLLICI
>PLL> MTa PadV-Acol? >JSLb>J°
AJIMQA->.

f[aa "

Foo9A->/>YP <doPaba' N

Vb bP'PY, PASNY MFaA <oPD7 DBV
>LPa'AQS" JoPab’ <JoPA> DPL bASChH?
[co9® DaJV-A> AIPQA-c’. Vb bPD>IOrbUY
F<JalIbo™ DIV [oco9® Pado9QA~ DPPL
>Do9A> Na Ad PY<TVd™ b7 <1871 JCPY> 9da >
FAI<\obUP> >>L AIPQA-c.
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Vb b7, <oPAa” <\ bPa 1'PoN\< 0> BPL cvay?
b> < oP<lbo< <"AM oo 9q° >a do9A-°
AIPQAc . Vb Ta oo 9° Padaq® <oPaba' <N
DAIDa< AIMQAa”, Vb NPU= Dobo'b> AAL
<ga<b' LZa"AQAbBIM bCb. LI~ \PUF DIoC°
>>V- DUP DIrCLAAR M<obC' Ta MACoPL-

<oPaba® <oa<b'bld7o™ [a b7 FAIMACLS.

Js

s
f

PPl oo9A-

Vb Noa9° Padoq9® AIM9A> Al<obU D>V
bAI7'"P<I Vb LL® 226 ASNA . <obU< 0>, Vb-
<d\Cb> DPPV- AIFQA> CAYd"™ ASNA?
FAANP? N7, <N oCoPIl? L4 PadoqA-
V<o (Tabol™ <A FAMAboI~ DPL
AJP9A-:a Vb [Yd™ PFLLoA? MMabo<d™ PUYA°
bAS<dNYold<~ JLb>N. Vb by
PIV-C'AocbU<I 0> LL® L4 Ta A Pado9°
V<o bA<IKCP? Vb VSIV<? AL, Vb by
b~ bYP'<Y o o”Cl? PACLY Too9° NLKFdA-?
LPa"Ab> VPPJSTBUN Vb: CAT'AV-S
MP'Po"AL<Ibol™ A7 DBV T0o9° PadoqA-~
bAI<oblbU' e 9da” M>FA-CL<Ibol~ <A
>9q-o<? b7 ob<lbo<-".

Vb- by b-~, DBV FToo9° D>ado9A-> AIM9A->
PbAlLbo PN/l b~ D>9o<d> AIP9A-Q?
(NAN/NALSC/NAPS) bPL<IMADG A<~ TPZAPC. Vb
PAMT'AV-Lbo> bPNKICIL~ DPV: Too9°
>adgQA> DI Ta aab ASNAa? bPNLICI-
QDrbUP?. aCuwr ALPIrb<e =<=<>’ DPolC?
bAa<C' blL4 PDadobo<' DrqAa-> V' by
QA<D a' Vb DAA JLbA b~ by ob<t-<1~
>LIJS>2.



DY AMAV-A>
&<"P¢b> e FbAA-> BUbN"
AT'AV-A-

Vb bAYANP? LL° bL4 Ta bPAY LLoao<"
ASNAQR, L™ <A? AANa bPa. Toagq° Ta
>UbNP° <oPaba ' >CoPA <. Vb JA> >UbNP°
AT'AV-° <oPaba' PaCV-2CHH<" MN<obC I~
bl S'aNooP? ASNA Q. Vb DYo<' <oPabal
P'P o"JLAAPPIabo< Db> NocCPabaA'AV-<~.
Faa  bAYANW?  ASNAQ?,  DYNPe  AM'AV-°
<oPaba' aab P>UNY° DMA-a® B>OMraCLI|?
>UbNN°. Vb by PEPA-UI CS9A >, N\PUF Taaq°
D>a daQA> DPL PY"Aws. Vb UD= Pa <! PATC:
bovag7bo<tago' Ta PPAN? Prald? B>UbNN°
bP<PC° ALJV<"AQo~ P IPLa P

Pr'<d7’ b7 caaldlla' Aa< FAATC"
aab 9ba” bIMACLIbo<™ Po< P>UbNN°
Ob>  1o"AQA: bYSArMqA=> Vb <A Pridy
bLbU'<b o<, PAMAda<< DbV JoSa Ve
AJSTA > MP>PPI°CUL™ Ta o> ASALMD><T~,

Vb coo7? aPaDCLI> BBL AYALD Vb: PI o4
>>L bP>Na 7' Vb BYP AIMQA-> bPB>SD7 DL
coo7? bPRIYT <"Prba” Ta [blAa” D>YdN"
AIPA> 0oV AT'AV-A> bPILIY7 . Vb DYbNKY
P'Po'dLIbo<’ doSaV® DMAa” Hd- b?
PA-CL<bo<" <"Prba> Na [bAA2 VLYVAV-LBY
PCoJSaV® CS9A'ga’ Vb PA=Y DP" A7ALDY
b>~ bPobo™' Vb <IN Ta PUYbNN°
PPLobl<o> DP>L J" 'L PARY V- Ad
VASATAT? BYbNN° VP'PLO'L]~ <'P° 9da”
Na JoSaVe® PPCLA . Ta b7 ATA<Ibol~
a'™ SLb2»' Yd™ byt FATAD<™ SLb ' Vb
B>UbNNY. Vb TIb™ gur CS9A° LIMMADAR
Pob-a>A> DalbU Nd™ bPa BVbNP° AIM9A-a®
CALDMLLP> AAL CS9A 0.

Vb Vb UV® Qda” b<7P> DBL CS9A 0 Db°
Ab-CPY  AST9Aa” bAASY<CP?, Vb <A
PA©TbU <'A> o CCAblda” Plalflfbo<.
AZVR P> TICV AR PDalallbo<> TCV-AY'A>,
Vb dC' ACAbIMN C2C V bChb Parllbo<l> 9da”
<b M bASIKCP?. Vb Plo’Ca< DPUbNW
bPrMa<t~ Vb LL<IDb<1 bNAbo VPIMa<t~.
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Vb bdo A% cvo7A- 'PY, DBV AIMQA-
(NALSC) PPA-CoPL> =A™ <= ALNAA> <<TYA-,
Vb bPIbY AYCEP>> P-P", VAJa™ <oS'aV° Dob P
>D>L CS9Aa? a V7™ DBUbNN DBV
ogbdA> DI Ta <o 9ASToN'AIL™. Vb BPL
PCSOrbU Prald’AY Ta <* <I*<o Vb b7
PASY 0>, Vb B>V VIAlNdab PCOrbY, aab
Qda® VPOroUP> b~ bAldab', Ta DBYbNN
VPlabol~ DPIrCLAA> Db> PP S o<
>CSA o< DPL obldA:ct DI Vb PBaU?
©b°\b"Abot FCSDIrbUY Nd-, BBV dA” 19
Pr<IPdI<-AoA> bCb-* P<l-al9Lb>.

Vb BBV bPAY% cvo7A- 'P<LY, BUBNN
AT'AV-A= AIPQA-> LL® 275 ASNAa® PCb o>
Vb N/ b>ba V-2Cdr<l~ PBILbo> Vb 9b’ bPa
>N\ Vb BBV <IPCY? oAl AYANLL Vb
o<dv’CI rF<PNal' B'P bVJS9b* bL4 Ta AYb:
LLoA> 1PoA"Aba> CAob DDV IPCH°
CAIAYAYbLb>.

Vb A7, BBV BN AMAV-AR AIMQA-
PbALbo rN<rd- >Q-o<> AJIM9A-Q?
(NAN/NALSC/NAPS) bPAJSLIMAD 9], V' by
QA-a<' T 9° Pado9A>, Ba S'V-A>, Vb (SADV)
AIrQA-a”. Vb U= Yo' DPMa” DA-CLAA
bPANo™ DPBV- BUbNPYe AMAV-A2 Vb o
VAa<C' AAL CS9A . PPA-CP doTNAQ? [P
>N\ baPUbldd~ CCAPSD Vb BB>V- AIMQA-°
blfa?b: 9fa™ Vb DYbNN\Y M>ILLo<™ [Yd™ b7
<oJ'aV® 9da” VI abo<~ QIl1o’Cl<". Vb
bPNLPL, o<dYodl? b7 ATAD?> My~

>9o< <oPaba'la JLb2S° <oPabal.
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B Referrals to the RJ YJ Programs by Community

RJ Program Post Charge vs Pre-charge
Referrals

M Pre-charge Referrals M Post-charge Referrals  Probation
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M Referrals to the Youth Intervention Program
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P=<D AIM9A-°2019-2020:N<rJA-°

b<PNa.“:L-=" VNV='" pP=ID BPL

<4, > BPBL PEID AIMPQA 0, b 2019-2020 PAJS™S
ooV <P N<dg9A: AMAV-A> PED AIM9A-
b>PAIPBUN. DPBV- bY'P< PE<D AIMQA> P7A~
D>ba <I<C° PAID™ “P=<ID <dV" MA@’ bAaU' BD>L
W2 718.2(e) LLo® LPa"Abo.

<dv’raaA-: I
D>D>V- AIPQA= PE>D AIM9A= 9OrbUN:

° Mabod~ PO AMAV-Aa? oSV
bLI /">~ AAL oSV 7P, USAN #9 Vb- #5,
bA o SPJabo<~ >a doqAblNd> a”C
bAP>adabol™ P>V b>albU PEID NKI 1A >;

e [a MKKC'A<c<Y APCal P>a QA Ta
ASNYAa® Vb DIV A7 bBIPANAGSY” DL PlPLLe®
>a do9A- >a QA ¢ Mo >>L P=<D
N<r1LPa'A9Ac b7<C' Ta b7 <doSaVe®
<d“"M9A-a > P<IKCP;

° Mabod™ baV2r9® AIMA> Bo< doSaVh
Vb PEID doPaba’ FATY<I™ by oPCLI<I™ bt
MPS Do~ <dVMA-a® Ob> BLLo bPAST>a CLIbo™;

e Mabod™ P'PO'FLIA> PEID DPLFPa"AF Ta
<oPaba' M>rePCl<~ 9OCIL;

e >JSTbUP?  ACoPlDAa” dCP7 bAaoP<~
(>adaqAbld>, LLba\Y, bAT'AV-<-, DCYICLSY
Na PadoqA'aco<?) Na PED A'CLIA Mabo~
a” CS9A .

Vb b PO PlLYa'A9Aco<t DCM?
Vira'dld~  PID N<IMdAa”® Qabo<~
doSaVe Q%P 49 CJS9Aa” b7oblvb. 2 PID
DLPa"AQY Vb 2 PO doPaba' DP>L o9bl
bAS Ca oP<I~. Vb, PEID BLAa"AQ BbyNaa < 12-
15 PO NI dA-a®> CCPY'"P. Vb NKMAA= BLLPY
a"PAPC 1, 2019 oA~ TP/A/S 31, 2020, Vb P=<ID
D>LPa'AQY 98 N<IMAa” Dlla'da<d <'A> by
P=<D Lla'dLDAa”. LJS" AaA® bCPP? PED
N<JAr9A-a°.

Gladue Reports: April 1, 2019-March 31, 2020

North East: Timmins 34
North West: Sioux Lookout-Kenora 37
North Central: Thunder Bay 27
Total 98
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Vb DBV b7'P< PE<D N A a S < o” PR bPC
<oPA? BPL CPC V ddat <DVEAY™ 2019, Vb <UB?
<oPab? PP>Nabo DUMbaAXS 17, 2020. Vb by dA’ 19
P<al9aLb>. Vb TPYAPS 17, 2020, A’ 19 DPPANQ>
P>ado9A~ Vb bPa 9d> PPANcbU. Vb by P=<D
N<PlA-a? P<al PAPS 2020. <oPaba’ bASCI™
P> <oP<I bA2 M><PNabod™ V- <A P<I<L<I~
Mo P<<LT7< MVd™ P<rb TP,

2019-2020P=<1D
N<rJA-a.° blab.o<-"-
dA7' CS9A

L<SD Lla’Ab®  <PCrla®  PID <AY
b>M<ob<tb.o<™ o IPACS 1, 2019 ©A~ TPIACS 31,
2020. LYa'AbU<0> <PC° <ofaV' bPLLo<t
o> B>ada9Abld® bPATIAIK" Vb by CSAG
b>PNV>Cdr<I,

PV-No' <o PP’y  BY%N"  aV A9 |
bAr<> 3 2 i
</<d<e 6 5 1
<AC<AD! 16 9 7
I P=A 7 5 2
ANE<PPA 'DQA" 1 1
Al (A'Q."‘) 1 1
LLe 34 23 11
Abrbe 13 1 9 5
>AJSdb 2 1 1
<h<ab' 3 3
<-<tnb' 2 1 1
PraTdrA (K1) 3 3
PV-A-> 1 1
Acohb'Abo 3 2 1
T79:uhb"Abo 1 1
ob°hb'Abo 7 6 1
<rdhb'Abe 1 1
ALP 1 1
Total 37 27 10
PV-No' o'\ PRIty | YN aV AY
V-AQ: 2 1 1
b.DCDnl\bllAbf\ 1 1
AP <z~ 3 3
rrbohb'Abo 2 1 1
AYALD 5 4 1
aALD 2 1
Pobl\#58 2 2
<.I\II>\ 1 1
<C<-A"Y 1 1
oYbCb>" 3 3
ob°hb'Abo 1 1
v;>s<:/ 1 1
Acohb'Abo 1 1
<-aL>hb'Abe 1 1
Pobl 1 L
LLe 27 22 5




Vb DDV bPYIPY bPOMbUN DL PEID
AIPAG Do o> PEID DLYQ'AR <A
PAPC<I' P*ID N<IPIA> LPa"ARP PP o'<ILIA G
<QU<BAACE 16, 2019. Vb o'?> DL 'AQ: bN=A2
b=, P=AY> WV=, Vb *Va b*AU= bPPS D", Do
bPPIP o< <tb o<t

° >a do9A> D>V PE<ID AaPrAa® DI

¢ bAaU'la bDMbU bo>Ny? PPLLe® Ba do9A e
o bATTAV-A Vb Aado9A-;

NISHNAWBE-A3
LEGAL SER'WCE?

* b<d'"’Cb-* bAa U
P=<D N<MlAa”Ta
b7 FASa b ATA” Ta
bN<rroUP? N<LPlAa>;
° o b7 QAS > U
<d“V“M9A- P>adoqAc?
M Mb7NabUY NI IA>
Vb DL "AQDD>L

>a do9AbId.

Vb a'?? PE<D BLYa"AQ Plabo<d PPa A Q>
bP>MYP? <oSa Ve A0 ClAa” AIMAA° Ta =I8=
ba” VoVEN. bLbUS'a<I™ AYAI M=AY> \V=
blabo™ PEID PPa"9° V<> Vb blfa-d™ P=<1D D>PL,
L.B— an.glﬂ‘

PO PL/a."AQ' [a. doPaba.}

P=<D AIMQA-= LL® 12 <oPaba’ CP<. JCA (6)
>Lra"AQ* Vb dC-A (6) PE<ID <oPaba:

Nr-" <oPA-bIN:

1) bN=A b=, P=<ID LYo 'A9

2) *Vor b*AU=P=<D BLra A9
3) ha? ©>,P=<ID <loPa b

4) NP<I<P =<=AA P=<ID <IoPa b?

C°CV doPAbI:

1) 5o "VPU=2, P=<D >Lra"Aq
2) UPAN'I=,P=<D D>LYa"Aq

3) CP=<I" LP"b> P=<ID <.oPab?

4) UPA ¢d%P=<D <loPab>

<'oa.<'b' doPAbIM:
1) A=<y VE<P,PED BLAa A9

2) P=AY> \V=,P=ID <LoPab?

3) T=A =102V P=D <IoPab?

4) =AV=/(< )<<, P=<ID <doPab?
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PO PL/a."A9'\ Ta

<oPaba' bOCId ™ -

PE<D DLPa'AYT Ta <oPaba' PlL<Daa<t
ATAA? DDV DN <oSa Ve LLoA>? AJMA° Ta
D>ado9A>, bAallld~ bCdabol~ DPL PED
ATAV-A-c,

1) Mb9-rLbo doJSaV bLIS'">~ PLKS- Db}

AT9A° PPV PEAD AS VA QP P

e bA> AYd oA My /oalN B>PAMQA ¢

e bPASD>AP™ [a PITHAA -G

e bPLMNDC<'bo~ >AYY, >No°>M9A 0,
>LMNo>Mbo" Vb bPASBDC<Ibo™

e Vb~ AYdoA>/bPba V->CdrV~/bP>CAabo™ 60s

e CS9A?/B>NVAM9A-2 bLMYe

* Vb b7 oP~/<I'b"Ab>

e VI NdJS° AIMPAA> bLPN'AJ™

e b<oD <<oon”

e LMN©>Mb> Fa AY" T oYA->

e A< b<a?~ DNV MAA> Na >DUL?

e b->C 9da > bY<<ror

e LN IV-A”

¢ b~ ASNAQ?

2)doJSaV° CS9A°

* bASCb CS9A>

e A>Ca ' 9da > DBV CS9AR B

° o 79A ASNA P DBV CS9A2 B

e bGP/ CS9AP Ta oS aVIA2

° PIPO'FLAA> Ta <oPA> DPCLAAQ?

* cvo79A ASNAR DL CS9A 0

e bBYPS DLIS'D Ta BASATA-CY CS9AR

3) <d%Y°M9A-a.> PPL Aado9A-°> Ta. PANG9A >
e Vb DPado9Aa” Df9Aa” ANbMY/<b M
CJS9A . PPV aCA'DAR IV-al9A> (Ob°
PY<tA> b7 obUY, e LIN©M9° <17MADAa?).

° [009° P>ado9A> bl7P> D><IV- bLIMY,

bDCA V-~ Ta CS9A>.

° JoS'aV° 9d° by<C' Aado9A° Ta a CA'D>A
CJS9A 0

° bAISLLY AT'AV-A= b9~ P=<D < oPa b "d™
FPSOM° B>9o<> <dYrqA-a?

9DOCL° a.OCL° PO NLrlA->

o |PoA"AB? M~ AJIM9A-° b<PNa >CYICLY,
>ado9Ago, PM>adoc9A-go a’C >adoqA-o"

e AIMAA> Db>a N BPLYa"AY [a <oPaba?

e <JoPA> DILIY PED AJMQA-c — VA-CLL-
DLIS'D>> N<PAA? bba<I<fbU' ASNA'a?, Db
>LIS'D> b D>adabo™ Pado9A bl d

° P00 N<KMJA‘a® LL° VAa ©° Al'dab
b7MrbU<I> (LPa"Ab> LL® 2-4 Al'dab AI'SLb?).



a.’ Pado9A-° LK-MADA-°

oJSaV 4P Pado9A> LIMADA= POrbU IMPYAPS March3&4,2020 AAL AYCEAY bVSAbLID Ta
bPATC I~ doSaV 1P DPLAR Vb doSaV 1P S'LbaSAAIMQA>. IS TLL® 220 <A 7 PANT o
CJS9Aa® PBNYTN. bLPaPP<™ DalloP' oA~ DPIoP): =AY WVE PE<D BLYQ"AS; PMP>adoQA oo
'WEA =S LE VNVE0, PED BPL; UBA Ad®, PEID <oPab’ Vb Co4® A/, *Ad® V/ <oPab?
bPNLMC PEID AIMQAR o® CS9A .

doMYA-a Ta >rCL/A o T

e faPrbUt P'PO'FLAA> DPL CS9Aa”, Ta bACLPIDL™ MACLD™ PO AM9A@>, la PO
N<FJA=> DM9A=> Ma FAYAcbUP? ASNYAa® Vb AMAV-Aa®.

*[aablMbUP> MNa M<IobUP? ASNAa® Ma boMQA o> BPL Ba da9AbIMd> b~ bAIY PE<ID DA Q.

° FAYAcbUM AIMAAR Mabo<~ AMAV-A-a® DLIS'D.
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LL° <7T"ADA- AIMA--N<r1A-°2019-2020

b<PNa“:9*P>= <<, LL° <F"ADA> PPL

Vb LL°® <vT"ADA> AIMQA-> VYb© Do N2
Qda® BP>V: bPY'P< Nd™ V- Ad VASAINba<
>>V- AIMQA-> (ADR) bla™ bPa. AT'AV-A'a® a?
<AY2. DBV NKPAAR <I<C'AV-Lb> bPDOroW
D>D>V- bPY'PN. Vb bP<IYMAV-<~ <I'V- Ad
BASAIILMI O~ PobaAA> ATAV-A° Ta
VP<obCI<~ 9da> by obUg P> Na VPANT'AI™
>Q-o<> =Y EB<IPAUZ bPP<oPYbo™ Ma L~
by'  bBAMAV-~  LIMADAa®  bIrbUcP-.
bQUA'a® Na <oP'AV-A'a® PDOrbuU<> I¢g, N1
Vb <oa<b' Vb <N doPaba' oC7<Tal
EALEC *A~ P<oPYbo AAL <'oa<'b' ©9bl, Vb
T=N NUE=<R’ AAL Nr=" o9bl. Vb <A
bAS oS~ P'PO'<FLAA> Plabo<< “Nd~ PYA~
NAMP'Po'L<Ibo b~ bAI<oP<~. bA2 <AY
r>r<y<iy AAL o <oPA-bIMdY. Nd™ dA’ 19 AalL
P>rybTPaoc<? lMNa Pobo lbU Vb PPANcbHU
<oP'AV-A>. Vb N\d= A NJ P<oPybo Vb
>PUAQ” Na DPPSD? P'POo'ALAA> BDL LLCA:
A<IADY bP<LKCoo'. Vb o <oPAbLM <N
b>a MbU, Nd™ BBV b~ bASC™ BMr<oPCL9 DA€
dA’ 19 bDraLb:. Vb BP>V- bPAIY'P< L~
oba oCN> doPaba’ bI7MAV-<I~ Vb dA’ 19
b? P<alfqlb> A~d- V- LL° <YT"ADAR
bASBADCLY. Vb UEAN <& DIV APCal

>CYIMAV: <N PO AJMA'c AAL C°C V
<oPAbIMd* CaoP. Vb a’ V <oPA> P<drbu.
b 10"~ P Lbo P7P? LA2 Ay CYyoPybo
Mo Al'dab'.

Vb [a bPOrbUY B>V bP7'P< bPNL M da o<
AAL P>ado9A> LIMADA-c b~ TPYAPS 2020
Vb L™ b7t PASSY LIMADAR Ta <A
bPAN™ M bPIY 11—, VA b7 PaDLbo PALYI-
>V AP A CAYJ™ QA2 DPNaoPA-”
bP>faDlbo™ Vb Na dCP7> AIM9Aa® QA<
>>V-ae DPPL  PAN<T' P'PO'<HL9Ac' Ta
bPba<I-<IbU' NbAA> Vb baoChY' LYbAYA> Vb
LLC°AIAY PY<C> AAV: b~ J2APC 2020.

Vb BBV o, DCYMAVY <A bASC-
P>r<loPCLA< Nd™ by DCYT7<° brobl<, Ta
Vaabl7<~ e VbIDCII~ PobaAAa”® <A
LLCOAAY o”C LMPD? VoD, Vb Ta
CANIdab <\oPabal L<AD< Mo
VAICNLPICO<™ <MYAQ? DI

Vb bLFATBUY LL° <7MADA>  blbo<?
oJaV® Toog9A> AMAVA>  blabo<~
by oblbol”, Ta IISS° AIPQADLId?, Ta

<oPaba' Vb CS9A > LI~ bYDroU BB>V- b~
dA’ 19 b<loTM9Lb".




dcry> do.>: G

e DNYdo [ I>" DPL oboA” - b>VDIZEVS?
b-=1= DPPSD> DPL bPA-CoPldy' Vb NZAJ
>PloPy>

e DPPSD?  aablMAA>  (PYAT) DL <JdU'b
AIMAA>, Ta NPab> MNa &P oLalo Vb NZAJ.

e g S? DCYICLY FLLY, VU™ <b? PASYMb Vb Ta
dC' P<PCA" a A LMdo. Vb =D>¢Y =<PPAU* P<LoP7bo
FALC.

°* AYdn° <oPAa” PDOrbU AAL AbMbS LL° 212
PCla o< bPASYAY. LI~ Ad BD>V: Pl o\

e ©'bCb DPPLL> P>PaDL> AIM9A> Vb aA” Vb
ACED? PPN PN Ca< o AIMA caa”.

e Vb <IBV: o’Cc CS9A> [o7A> <oP° A-CLIAR
bPOrbU B>L Pobl™Y Vb BB>V- AIMQA> QA= P77
<Ay CS9A 0 b o™ INa VP<loIC I~ AIMPQA-.

o LVqd< <7 doPab? PN NM2" bPa. <27
bl obC i<~ BBV A< S SA AIM9A> bAID<~ Vb
>>V- LL° <Y"ADA- PbAlLbo M<oIC DBV
AJMQA-> (ADR) Vb: b7 abV-S'T9A‘a® Plabo CAYd™
>P>V- by<C' ATMAV-A->.

o LL° <UMMADAR AIPQA> DPNKIICS? Do
do<olo, NPab’ (C2C V bChb Na. N=AJ). Vb bPa
JMAa” b% PAST0? Vb by DPASobCa<t
<oPaba'bPA': PobaAaa<.

o Vb LL® <’ T"ADAR VU a <" DPya IC<L> P>PLL>
N PadV-Aco<?la VPACL™ <o OrbU B>L
CJS9AC.

o oPALTCT> o'"A° LIULA? bP<PNa‘ Padoc9A-
CoY CPCV dodaV P>adoqAbld.

° P'Po"LA V<o S P'Po"ILIA bl aboI~ D>PLY
bPOrbU' CPCV P>Yo< b7 oS> <oPaba

e *> DPL NPab’ DPNLIICL? B o<> AINS°
<{oPaba” NPab>B>AT'AV-A-.

« Vb LL°  <BMADA®  AMPA®  <oPaba
PATIAV-<* DBL 0>V of JA® LFNoMb> [ovA>
AIPAA>  (b<BTAD<) DL <PCh>  Nb'Ab,
VUA0=<, >2UPAY,

* NNA PPb<t~ DY <IoPABId BL o

o =< LIDUbA? AVdoAbId PN <DV= 2019,

* NM>" <oPABM BPL <7 MUbA=> Nova-8,2019.

e NVMA=> T o7A> LIMADA bP<PNa' dololo
N PPAIMAA? <ofaVe IS [a NVPMA-°
AT'AV-Aa® AIPA-a® DL BPUZAY oVEVE

e JdofaV® IS Ta NVAMrA= AMAV-AQ®
PrAYd oA~ bPA-CLY <\DV=E
a’/a'"/a” *Ad* P>ado9A> LIMADA

e dCP?7> LIMADAa?/<dYM9Aa>; <\oP°
LIMADA>; LLe A-CoPIDA AJIM9A->
LIMADAa?;, AIPQA> LIMADAR LIMADA >,
o7 LIMADAQ?,  IVal9®  LIMADAQ?;
baablbUP> AIMqA-a”; <oPaba’ LIMADA-a>;
P'Po"<L9A>, BC7b T IV DCACLYY, LIMADO"
LAT'ADA?; DCoPCLAS <IN LITMADA.

(o) ] oD - o

LL° <t7/T"ADA- AIMA- N<C 1A

= =-—

B VA<D 1,2019-1% 31,2020 NG
Talking #0Open NewClie #ofCas #ofCircl #of #ofChildr #ofFami #of
Together Files ntFiles eson esHeldd J Caseswhe enwhoare { lies CirclePartic
Program Carried Opened WaitLis uringthe J reAgreem thefocus Involved ipants
Service Forward Duringth tatendo Year ent ofTalking
Area atAprill/ eYear fFiscal reached Circle

19 Year during

theTalking

Together
James 20 20 17 47 30 110 40 240
Bay
Timmins 9 14 17 7 2 47 23 26
Sioux 6 5 9 2 0 27 11 10
Lookout
Thunder 24 19 24 33 27 112 43 194
Bay
CCCN 17 9 5 29 18 40 26 174
North Bay
Total 76 67 72 118 77 336 143 644

- 23-



doJaV 4P N<do9A-° LL° d7"ADA-> AIM9A-°
B -\ "C<~bUAV<VA=>2019-L.=2020 G
LL® 228 b9-U°V<5° POrbU<->9-0-<" bPATC-<;
PP-YDC>a <o bBIPob-ara’Ady°?

Vi<t 237 bA22 %10 bA= A6 oCL>24
9d-v°> P> bPPab-ara'<L>?

CAS<IoPa b7 PoP'AdL56 NVIra-28 NVr9A- <oPa 6220
BCHCLA <dLba 19 C/94-25 BCHIAVS

JCv PoboCLB PrI<1530 SLbo 3

bA-> rPIroU
Vb: FA-CL° 9d0° bA©>CL> bPPob-a.ra."dL> bPA-MAdY>

gPrAr"Ad”181 TAT'AINRY  bACLATAYL

Vb FA-CL> do A< ST bASUVCCL? bPPob-ara.'dld " bPA-M"AJ~ JCPY

aPrAar’'Ad”163 gA"AIP104  bA-2 LA"AdYL

Vb FA-CL> o A< ST A©0°CL> ><-V- doPa.b? bPb-7MD~ bPPob-ar'dL>

PPrb-5203Pb-571 bAPb-512 bAP a’C rAPI54

Vb FA-CL> bA©°CL> >d'V: doPab® o> bPASCACA Yo' BBV bPOrbU

PPPCACA-205 PCACA-%66  bA°Ir>rCACA-S1 bAP a”’CrarIs22

Vb <o 9DCL> PP V- <dVY°M9A-°> FA-CL~ dC' dA'Y Pob-a.ra"A9A° Na. ba.CV->Cb-* <b> FOrbU?
Feo9A-"?

V<t bA-C207 agbA-CH4 bAP obA-CA bAP a”’C raros-1

4N’ APDA-a”/abV-sraA-> I

ob7 PASY, AT'AVS DBV DUPALTA DA DMQA-.

c<PNdoSa V' PATAV-Ao<2?

oL < b7 Pobrara"A9A->, Vb <dWCb-> by FAT'AI™ NVM9A2. b

obyN PASS AT'AVS DBV DYPALA-DA> DA,

*Pobara"A9A> Pl o a ab? QASAMAI™ NVMIAR e Pa CA'AJA <. T~

Vb o<dV’C> PobaAV-Aa® Mabol™ NVNM9A-a> [Vd™ FLYbAY<I™ bAINCIL™ Ba CAD'Aa<.
*Vb: LL® BoP'AdL' Ao KA~ Pob-aAA .

e <|<C? PabaAA-a VI o4P>. Vb cUVeC> adl DA a”’C <V:al9A MLL°cbUP? V<" Aa™ MAlaablTbU
Mo Pro%. 9.

ba<I<MbU' b7 obU' ASNA>, Ta bBMOMbUN Vb <IV-aMA->.

Vb >NoCLA <y~ FAL<™ DdIL>.

°bA-> 9d> 77> <\ VP<oIrbUP> b<d“wCb-P>.

o['g' bPa <A Pob-aAA> CAPSD byo["Ad<T~ LPLYPP? . T 9-A

°bPa 9d° Pl o4 L7, LI~ AT'AV-LB.

*Vb: CN- NV MAA> Ta AIM9A° bL<IDo 9™ LI~ byt B>V bDrbUM

D>CUMAV- L~ PABLMY. Ta PPIKID? “<4C Vb NP'AV-A> DMGA>". Vb b7t AlT<IoPCLAN
oLLO <MADA> AT'AVLL? PAMAIT™ <A b7 PASST . Vb Nhdat B>V CPOrbU<.

DBV oVCE gPobaAA?, LI~ by QASN. Vb BBV bCh ClMabo<d a by oPCLIbo<I~7?
Vb PId"bALL> e AT"AV-A> Pl o4 DBL bPa. A7 bPAN.

oL~ AM'AVLB? Db> by bATBU' bAPDa. o< Vb APDA-a” <I'>L Ad VCb-P? Pab-aAA-c.
[a Mabod™ PabaAAa>dCP7> NV MAA-a>. P7A™ DBV o CV-2Cb-.

ob'7* DPBV- PASY, P<7UCH 02 AIMA-a?/<IV-al9A>

cACLAJ AV PobaAAa® V7 oPYP>.
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bLMrOCIbo™ AMAV-A°-N<I1A-°2019-2020

D>V b<PNa“:M=AY> \>=,L/rDOCVA° AI"A

Vb- 2001, AJFQA-> (NALSC) AITQ AT'AV-A->
Vla™ bLMOCboo™ lTa bA<Clo~ LLoAa?
AAL <oSaV <P CS9A .

Vb LMDCV° <I<9A° <oP° AIM9A-> (VWLP)
>AL72 bLMIDC<Iboo™ Na b<l<qo~ Do D>C
aab bCHPAo©<~ Db> bYobUP? ASNAQ® la
VAT'AYb o<~ MPo?DCI<~ PMLLo® D>adoc9qA->
AJIPQA> Ta PNaPlAc<. Vb <dVWCb> D>P>V-
AJPQA> by PPAT'AV-AR  CbY DDV
PPLLoA'a® Ta b<<rbUP? LLoAa? <"A bY
AT'AV-A>, Ao~ baCV2CbP> MOrour?, la
P<yP? <<Prba>, Na PAT'AYb o<~ bLPNY<~ DD>L
>adoQAca [ococ9Ac.

Vb <oPAbIMd? <'AY ASCb o> MNd\b'Abo,
ABMbS, ©b°\b'Abo, <oa<IbY, C°C V Vb NIr-",
Vb LIMYdry<t <oPaba’, Vb <A® <oPabal
a CV2Cdr<, Vb MVd- <o\
PPOADMrACL<bo<™ DoCYAc<d? o> CJS9AR
<AV, AP PYo<? <oPAa” AT<obU< 0>, Na
AAL MMM <oPAbIMd* bBILLLAMBUY, TVd™ bhr<]?
FPASCb.

Il‘é.

V-2 DPL

Vb o'PAPC 1, 2019 oA~ TP/APYC 31, 2020 AJMPQA-
PPCY AT'AV-Aa® Vb LL® 326 ASNAQ? P72

V- o CS9A” Vb ASNYAQ? oAdMAca?
PaDCLIbo AT'AV-A> Vb Kdd DPAMA7>
NVM9Aa> bPo?CA'a<Ibol™ DP>L NS> SLba S A
aablrf9®  <oPCLAAc N<ITIA?  “bAdabUl
UVPA=". DL NLKPlA-c’, PaablMMU<? JoJSa V'
bP><I= CC V, PILIbU Vb b o>A?
VP>LaablbUP? Vb Sbd  ASNAQ®  bPa
bPaablbUP> Ma MFaA aa CAPIIbUP>.

Vb <oPaba' bo’Ny?
PANSE =<,
L<IMADA G

PPIbAA? LIMADA G
o< AYdN b~ L 2-6,2020. Vb
aab 9da’® PdolrbU<>, Ta
<oPabal >Paa CI<Ca PPr>PCLY
bPN<PClro~, Fa PrCLAA? bPI<L<~ dCP%>
<oPaba” [PV baC. Vb LIMADA> bP>JSTHU
LPSA2 <oPA-c B, Vb dCPY> bP<PNobUP>:

° [ 9A> AIMAA> DBV oS a V' DI
>>L

* PV No obA'<o' [a LIDCV-A=:
>9-0<1> DMA-a?
o AT'AV-A-a® blrabo<<~ bPA>"b I~
e <JoJSaVlocogqA- P>adoqA>a PadoqAbMh
* AIMQA2:b7 obUY ASBLIDCV-A
e JdoSaVi'la LMCV-A>: bababo™ bLIDCA-V-~
* [009A> P>ado9A° b7 obU [a ATADA
PPLLoA>: V.oV SLbaJ° AMAV-A>
A"U<o ANZVE,VWL0b°46'Abo!



bba<t<PbU' ABCa' bylP<, Ta ob> bASINICLA> Voo < LL° VAao%'P <A?
bAaAac<' by MTbo<t APAV-A® BAady  bPASSP<S b7 T LLO [CHY'P. Vb b [PICL?
baPUb i<t~ LPDCVA> Fa TbAA>, Vb <IV- <Id <o [a 9ICL2 oP<dYC? b%' Padorddo

A6 0~ CC Y™ PY6PaLl? BS YA Ad™ CASS
PALSS2 Vb oPADC? P7< NIty MPI°CL> <o

VAPD™ B<IV- VSN PV-No Pado9A-oo:

Vb bAS<I<Lb: PrLNYA> <I<94-° <oPaba '
L~ VAPD<~ [a VI%ALbooP? 9da-
b5<ro<t- PClrU%co<'. <Nb >C BBV Db
VS <oPab? VPIb<I~ bPLIOC<Iboo~ AAL
CSl9UAhc" a VAJa<I~ Pado9A-b/d), L<-~
PV LATAVS Vb <ol %4-a” baPPbUP>
A% ASab> Vb b5 V<ILP? b65<IT6UP> [a
A5 Vb- aA~ aoCh<~ <JoPaba'
PANDIrbUP> 9da.>.

Vb VA-CLAY' o> bPIMDOCLY bPrAo°Chb:
<oPA>, Vb LLC® A<AD' AJab? ocAM9A>,
bPAYS: AT'AS™ LPODCV-AR <I<QA> AJIM9A-,
Vb L<JS " LY "AbU Vb- APDLb>:

Vb cPA© C> P7< NI Lr? <o <h VAST9?
<NZ gN8%A2 bP<PNobUP<? PCa ' b5'P<-'. Vb-
b5\ oS5, Vb J? 2019 oPPSdo PLL Sob b-5<~
SLboS° AYIoA> Vb To-~ AS7Aa” PN'do Ca”
PPL Sob PrAYoAbld. Vb bF' of1do Vb

<4Y%¢ oCC oIrLMbA>C< Vb hd™ <45
976 <o, [a oDUL' <7<t 15720,
b<IVasr? VN obd, Vb oCC oPIC?
MPIloCL<S<E, [PIPCP<? bF' Qda” DLV

bASB>CNT97°

16~ VIOCL? [a Paad da<tbATAS 7"
U=A"C> P-¢", 0%6°Cb <o JSa V° CS9A 7

Vb BPBV- AJIMQA> DDOFAM'A7> MPPClo™
bLMYo~ BPL ASNVA@® BN SLboJ° AT'AV-A-,
P>adoq° AMAV:-Aa® o”C L7 bLIY<™ A7
bLFIDC<Ibo~ DPPL bal, PCra< A<
9a.CLd<~ BPV- Pado9A-> (CVBR) Na MFATYbo~
Vb APDLb> bLMFOCIbo™ dAY DAY o”C
>ALNAA-c, b<loDr> Qda> PANC DLIS'DA-C
>D>L ba C.

P9>C>
aCL9A:-a.°;P>LLe
aCL9A'a.":

e ATQA>

o AT'AV-A>

e aAal9A”

e o CLAA"

e bA-CL> LIMA~




NALSC’s*Ad= V/ AIM9A-°-N<rdA-°2019-2020

b<PNa.“:Co4= A" ,>PL

Vb: 2Ad*= V/ B>2UFANY (LAO) BPPAYAa cvo7° ANQYA> DMA-a® BB>V: o'PAPC 1, 2020 MNod* 6%. Vb:
o'?? 9da® P>PA'Aaa® DP>L $17,731 C/Y'P oA~ $18,795 Do bVSI<I™ Vb Vb <AL b1yt
coa7A- ANSA2 BBL Dr>o2rbU MPV- BPURAY bDC Vb bA° Na <b? 9da” MLIMo°Chb* 9OC Db

bAaPU' PV N bVeLA? a”C b7 A7 b7 oP7bo™.

o 7° ANQYA-° OM9A-a®

VA=>1,2019MNa L*731,2020

bCrY<1- Vb <81 | P

NV>PA-> | DBV PASY FbrAA>

<A ASNAQ?
1 $17,731 $22,720
2 $31,917 $32,131
3 $37,194 $39,352
4 $42,726 $45,440
5 $48,173 $50,803

bVJSdt™ <A

Vb o"PAPC 2019, DPURAN DPLA? DP<Ja> =Ad*
V' coo7a” A<LST 30%. AIPQA (LAO) <A
P>P<Jaa AMAV-Aa?, P9 o<<> <N’ 9da>:

e LLocA® Pado9A” DPC/ICLY  DPb<PNa’
AT'AV-A-a® BDPL SPMAV-AR Ta DCYITCLS? Db
b> <o IrbUP> SPIMAV-C ASNA Q..

e LLoA? DPadoc9A> PCYICLY bA-?
P>ado9Abld> FANTY<™ DlLo> CAYd™
bANA<-~ Pado9A-blhd>.

°eLLoA? DadoqQA> DCYCLY bA~ Vb CL7/°
o S'aV° P>adoqAbld* AAL CPC V.

* SPMAV® aablMM9Aa” 5 CAbY COrbU bA-
Vb 10 Ch<bh.

o >CYICLY VC 3 Ch<bY PO Bb7 obCa < Vb:
bA= <A> 5 CAIbhY <'A VC cvo7? b<PNabo~
PEID AJIrQAa® P b<PNobUP> <oSaV°
>LLo DI

o JI<JST bATYbO~ DPlLo PLIN©oNbo<?
ASNAQ®, Db bA<W7bol™ Ta LMo
>a doQA> DBV od' 2.5 ChIbh P<JobU.

* NVM9A> >CYICLY aab 9da> CAM'AV: a”C
b7 b<dNobU' PITbAA> Vb bab, P'A> ASab.
b>LAa"Abor/<I~ DCYCLYY bA-2 FANQNT-

(@S

0_UCC
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° cvo7” b<PNabo™ bYPJabol™ DlLLo" PN 5

C\bS BPL 10 P <K<ffba” CY<Co?
AT'AV-Aa® bllabod™ P<-<Iba' a “PMAV-Ac

fa  Mba<<rbU'  “b<V-ab'  <dvr9A="
1PoATAb Vb “Dado-dAa".

 <oP° N<'A9AQ® bPANET o Lla'Abo"
bo?CAGbU'  bA® Vb <b> DCYCLY
CPN<<IL<Tbor<,

* <I<Pfba Crabo< ATIAV-AQ?

bPY"I<I Ao~ (bA> <b> qd° Na. PCIKCY 0°).

e <oPaba(LAO) BPbba <<Ca < ANQYAa> DL
bAT"AV-° AIMQA-o* bA> Vd~ DCACLAY<,
<<STAPSCL? *Ad® V/ Ta JSo7° ANQYA> DL
Aa N> =AdE V/ DRPUSAY LLC® A<ADY DPL
www.legalaid.on.ca.



NALSCL/a."Ab-oA° bPIb-o~<-}
>P>L VA=P>2019Ia. L2020

>>V- AIMQA= (NALSC) P7A™ PAIT A~ LYa"AboN DBL PV N’ *Ad® V/ JoPAbIMd> bASCb-P> Ta
PYA~ Do FLLTb:o<I* N Ta. CPCV <oPAbIMd>.

Certificates Issued by Area Office
2019-2020
3000 2827

2500
2000

1500

1000 801
500 219 I
0 =
P
v

D>D>V- AIMQA-> (NALSC) PP<oP'<®? <oPaba?
MP<obCP?> DMrA-a” DPL <oPAbLM bChY Ta
>>L D 5Ad® V/ AT'AV-Aa® Da VA2, 1998
adClLAa”® adlV'A? Ta a’ PadVAQ?
88/45,89/40and90/26. Vb: <oPab? bA=> LS
M>ardd™ AIM9A> DA <b b<d¥P> LPa"AboN° la
Vb VPIb:a<?, Ta M>PLALIBUP? <yTAa>, Vb
Faa FPoAryY DDV AaPlAR AAL AIMQA-G
<I'V:aMQA-a> dDrbUP>,

doJaV° N<da9A-° d.oP°
A-CoPIFDA-° BPPV-LAOAIMQA-°

Vb AJMQA->  (LAO) L~ bt DACoPL?
VACL]™ o” CS9Aa? PAMAV-AQ® Ta
D>AJIMQA-a® DI Vb, AIFA>(NALSC) <N <I<-J71
100 ChbS DAII?? Ta PDACoPL? Vb
>AL<IV-alfqL? >>V- AJIr9A-> (LAO)
A>MMosv<™ o <ofaV. Vb Lla'"Ab>
Plrabo< >PLL> Na PaS'V-A'aco< bLb-P/~ AP
14, 2020 Vb: PaablfbU LPa'"Ab” Vb- 9da’
bAS IS CUP? TPPAPC 6, 2020. Vb AaL PPANcbBU
>AC dA’ 19.
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2019-2020 NAN A048
Certificate Breakdown
941 3

® Other/Civil

89.28

PCACLA’<'Ta. A-CoPlDAQ?

AJPQA-> (NALSC) DA-CoPL> aab bA-CoPld”
Ma bA:CoPLM> Vb: >9o<1> 9da.® bPUAGbUP-:

e To~ DUPU DBV ada9A> CSA> DL D>YP
=V <= CPIAT T AT<odrbU — Vb <IA°
CPACa<?)

*  bACIrbU' BbPNb'Ab? Dado9A= DBL <A
L'Pb-L>  PPIb'"Abo’  (VbolbUP?  DACa?
ASNAQ® Ta b<lolbU' B>bPb'Ab” >adaqAbM
bASChbY)

e PALT</MADaoc<' lMaA DPaflbUP? AYba
>adoq° PSb> AAL aoPlbc CS9Aa” (FaA
P>albU' BCY/ICLY BATC <™ N<doQA-a” DA€
dA’ 19).

° AAMQA>  (CLW) PPPaDa”® N<do9A«<a’
bAJSCbP> >P>V: oVC bA-DIbUP>.

e AIP9A>  (NALSC) <oPaba' DPCYICLY
PadoA oo’ DPPAN<odCLI<>  AAM9A-°

(LAO). M'a. PAI BJSTBUN AIP9° . DCLA.



V=161:bPC° Na. L’bA-F°
PaJV-A>bAaU'15&16

Vb LdLPSba AP 19, 2019, Pr>ada9AP DL
>2UAY DP<PNa® V= 161 MPr>afbU DBV-
N<dod° AIPAA>, <A by P<ICPa"AbU" BI>V- =Ad*
V/ AP'AV-A? >a do9A=, 1988 bIPbU' DL bAQ U
15 16. >o<> <IN’ MdNo-9A-a>:
¢ DDCAQ® bPPADCh DBV *AdS V/ BAUAY
PPafAQP/A® Vb o “bB>Nal<~ N<dodA>"
DA<t “<P  b<IYbo< DAUTAY  [Vd-
PMYdNobU* oo 79° APDA> Db “bAaPr~ coos™”.

e D> o9 DCACLY® Poo9A> bAaU' BDCAabU.
bA> <A aCL9A> <y DPBL DRPURAY, bA-2 by
PPN A<ACL<bo<™ oS aVh, a® <oPabal.

* Vb <AA? DCACLYY <PNabo<' MP>o2r9d-
D>LPA:c DI Db> cva7a Na ANGYA>, <7IMADA>
>PLA-, N<"AQA-, Vb Fo?CA-ocbUP?
ba CV2CII™ Qda? dodJaV' bAIM7bol~ Ta
CJS9A Q..

e SAd® V' AT'AV-A? DDV LLaA> Ta NVM9A-
ASNAa? CL7PSY Db2 ASabMA> DBV- “Clb o<
AT'AV-Aa”?” TYd™ “a”>C CMba<> AMMAV-Aa””.

¢ bA® PAPBU'  <dofaV®  D>ado9A?  Ta
bbaVorbU'  PP<ACLIAQ® Db <dofa Ve
o CV2r9A~.
«D>CAcbU  b<\YCdr~ D2UAY [PV T9-
APIAV A,
¢ bA® P<d¥Cb PACOPL- DYo<® <dofa Ve

CSAa>.
¢ dNobU <ofaVe =Ad® V/ AaPlAa? cooh?
b<PNabo~ bla<~ AMAV-AQ® <lofaV? Ta
CSaAa>, BBL D AIPIA? BDado9Aa, M-
AT'AV-Aa® Db “APTAV-Aa? bra<~",

« >PLO AIPAA> <IA® P>CAabU.

¢ b>MTbo<"  Lla'AboN? TYd-  MaDClo<,
Pba<t<PbUP?, MMbo<l), Vb ab’P9Aa> Aal
Mba<t<PbUP> bDC I~ ><HV- AIPAA> CACLY.
PUA? DITBUY <TMAD® T AQ® VI M>o2C A<t
AJPAA> >CACLY.
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CJS9A>doPab’ AIr9A>

Vb CS9A>? =Ad® V' doPaba' V- Ad
VASATDO<™ o N<do9Aa’ Vb <oPabal
>PAY<® a” <AY? Do N<do9Aa> la
ATAV-<IY  I'PoA"Aba”, Ta  bACLL<-
>adoqA'co<l>, [a AJP9Aa> Vb dCPY>
<oPAbId?, T MPPSTBUP? 1PoA'Aba. Vb Ma
>alfbU< 0> bPA-Co<' CJS9Aa” la dJCPY>
P'Po"<LAA o> b<PNobUP>,

*8 A-CLAAQ POrbU o> bPY'P<
bP<oIrbUP: ba C DPL AYdoA- AIMQA->
>ado9A, ablMQA-a> <YPPb> ATAA>, Ta
>aJSV-Aa>.

vr=A A-rea->
Vb NTEFA AMAR PDCYICL9 o'/PSb <Yy
<loPAbld* VS Aldab. NFA AMA- PDCYICL9
D>l a” =Ad= A CLAAP Ta AT'AV Aa® oSV P
oJSoo<” LNFA AMA>? DCYICLY CASN
bY oPAPSbaY, bYAC<oco' Ta b<3SboPJSbo
1p.m.<|da.‘5 p.m. EST.
e Vb aCV-2CL>, AN9> C2C V doPAbIMd* a”C
AJSPD? (807) 622-1413,1-800-465-5581, a.°C bV
PCoPogabo<.



oSaV "P N<do9A> AIMQA-> =Ad*® V/ D>2UZAX-

P>a do9A> ASNYA«®> CPC VBA-CLS
>CYICLS

VA=>1,2019 - L*731,2020

LL®

LLoA 84|LMPDA-c 216(aV 113
NV>M9qA- 79(bPANba< 61|AQ 164
<oPA? 24|LLCC AN 0

DMqA- 33[aablMMqA- 0

AJIMPQA-> 0

bNV>CY 20

<oSaV 5

coo7° adl DA 0

DbPy? 32

LC< A~Nd

WED=<R/ 3 "b>\b"Abg 7
b->C>"\b"Ab> AcoNb"Abg 3
AYALD? 13 arr>» 0
Pobl™ 9 <-A-4bL} 2
<-=2VR 0 <rd\b"Abo 4
Pobl>' 158 4 ALPBLY 2
LEN> <= 11 <'Ad"ANb"Abg 0
©'b>Cb 1 LLe 18
a A< 2 <<

V-AQ 7 <d<b'Ab? 1
LL® 58 NE<PZAN <IB"AB? 3
N<> AINAA> AIPAA2 LA=D> 0
PraTdPAY 5 LCrA- 3
>AJSdbY 11 LCblr 0
<L"do 3 <dn 3
Ab2rbM 8 LLe 10
<I<CLbY 0 LUPd<

LLe 27 <ICIA2b/ 10
bN<a P~ LA=D>PEA 2
N=42N >0 0 </ << 5
MPb-bL> 7 bh\r<> 5
APEAVY 0 M\rA-> 0
©b°\b"Abg 16 A" PEA 10
Aa™ 2 Cb- Cb 1
LL® 25 LLe 33
PV-No' >PLba J>bl

<INd~b"Abg 5 <N\<ab® 1
<N 5 PUPLAP<] > 8
PV-A-> 6 <I'APb 2
LPCV-=1b'Abo 0 < <IbAA- 0
119-A\b"Abo 1 <al>5\b'"Abo 1
<-<tNb} 3 LL® 12
LL® 20 dCPY>LLe <A

bPAT'A7bo<1"=277
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(LAO)TNo9A-°> CAAY- N<r1A-a.°2019-2020

NALSC Pa.dor9A oo Na. LYa."Abo" BCYICLA PP>L a.°> N<do9A-bld>

Duty Actual Budget Variance Persons Total Cost Per | Total Cost
Counsel Assisted/ Amount Person/ Per Person
Type month month
Criminal $2,069,709 $1,949,187 ($S120,522) 0 0
Duty (6.2%)
Counsel
(Aircrafts)
Criminal $20,002 $15,739 ($4,263) 67 386 $48 $52
DC Adult (27.1%)
(perdiem)
Criminal $1,523 $3,934 $2,411 0 31 $49
DC Youth 61.3%
(perdiem)
Criminal $2,173,763 $1,934,753 ($239,011) 236 3,885 $476 $560
GDR (12.4%)
(DC&
Certificate)
Total $4,264,998 $3,903,613 ($361,385) 303 4,302 $1,566 $991
Criminal (9.3%)
DC
DC Family SO $4,427 $4,427 0 0
Court 100.0%
(Per di em)
Advice $65,866 $89,502 23,636 17 316 $244 $208
Lawyer 26.4%
General
(In office)
Advice SO $2,459 $2,459 0 0
Lawyer 100.0%
Special
(Special
DC)
DC Civil $65,866 $96,387 $30,522 17 316 S244 $208
Total 31.7%
TOTAL $4,330,863 $4,000,000 ($330,863) 320 4,618 $1,496 $938
Crim and (8.3%)
Civil DC
. . . . . Chart
Persons Assisted (Criminal & Civil) Data
Total Expense — Actual
600 and Budget # of Persons Assisted
500 Per:_;ons
Month Actual Budget Month  Assisted
400 Apr 195277 161556 Apr 218
May 293,843 295,067 May 564
300 Jun 373765 362,034| Jun 409
200 - Jul 438,627 238,478 Jul 280
Aug 381,733 560,580 Aug 394
100 - Sep 213,386 260,700 Sep 377
0 Oct 209,776 297,657 Oct 396
Nov 427 852 458,657 Nov 4338
‘,.Q‘\\ @'5\ \o*‘e’ \&* o‘«")‘} N éoé @é (;9"‘ \;od ‘\;&* ,b@‘\ Dec 474318 235930 | Dec 341
Q'@' o’ oée’ & \'bo Q';? & Jan 357,631 324,793 Jan 280
o & Feb 430,869 293681| Feb 551
Mar 478786 510.867 Mar 320
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o’ APL(A<o' N<do9A-a.)

PV-N.o' N<do9A-> VA=P>1.2019-L*-31,2020

<-CQ-Ab/

<* <o

bif-°

April 10/19, April 17/19

May 29/19, June 12/19

July 17/19, August 14/19
October 9/19, November 20/19
November 27/19, January 15/20
January 22/20, March 11/20

April 24/19, June 26/19
August 28/19, October 30/19
December 18/19, January 29/20

January 17/19, February 21/19
March 14/19, March 28/19

April 18/19, June 13/19

June 27/19, August 22/19
September 26/19, October 17/19
November 14/19, December 12/19
January 16/20, February 13/20
March 12/20, March 26/20

Jlo

Al

April 2, 3, 4/20, May7, 8, 9/20

June 4, 5,6/20, July 9,10,11/19
August 6, 7,8/19, September 3,4,
5/19, October 1, 2, 3/19, November
5, 6, 7/19, December 3, 4, 5/19,
January 7, 8,9/20

February 4, 5, 6/20, March3, 4, 5/20

May1/19, August 29/19
February 20/20

b-°>C>hb"Ab>, Pa.A PEA, LAZD P=A, A<-°7A <:b"Ab>, LAZD B>V,
b-dJS™, LCr<->, LC:bI, o° >, IPEAVY, AIM:b"Ab>, A=7p> >, 12>

loSaV L BPLAR AV PAN<T CAo* N<doQAbIMd® BPL oSV <Pb*.

Q_D ‘]32(0-“'\0)

PV-No' N<do9A-a.> VA*P>1,2019-L*730,2020

A7ALD>

©"6°Cb

LN <-=n

April 25/19, May 30/19

June 13/19, August 8/19
September 26/19, November 21/19,
February 6/20, March 12/20

April 10/19, August 15/19
November 6/19, February 13/20

May 8/19, August 28/19
November 27/19, February 19

oAal?

V-AS

<.I\II>\

April 29/19, July 8/19
October 28/19, February 20

April 29/19, July 8/19
October 28/19, January 29

May 13/19, August 19/19
February 10/20

V==, Pobl>", PoblM'#58,<4-Acd"A \b"Ab>

oSV L BPLAR AV PANn< CAo* N<do9AbId° BPL <oSaV <17Pb*.
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a® N<do9A-a.°—~>3(obA"<>)2020
b Ab"Ab> Acuhb"Ab <Ndhb"Ab°
February 11 January 28 January 13
March 23
<i\<ab! PV-A-° PUPL Y 1->
February 12 (Trials) February 18 January 30
March 19
<L"deo T19:/Ab"Ab" <-<iNb}
January 6 February 24 January 27
March 30
drdhb'Ab> ob°hb'Ab? <-aL>\b'Ab>
January 20 February 3 January 21 (changed to
April 6 video-small docket)
Ab2rbC Ab°IbC Ab-IbC
YCJA, CFSA/CLRA, bLZa"AbUP> N<do9A-a’>
JPT’s
January 7 January 8, 22 January 10, 14, 15, 16
February 4 February 5, 19 February 21
March 3 March 11, 25 March 2, 4 10, 17, 31
a> N<do9A-a.>-A>(obA"<>)2020
Pra.T1d/A} <-A-4bL} <:APb
January 9 January 23 March 20
February 13 February 20
March 12 March 26

P>AJSdb'-AAA]?

AAla o<

F"Pb-bL>' >br/hb"Ab"-

January 29
February 12
March 25, 26

January 17, 24, 31
February 7, 14
March 5 13, 27

o° PV’ <=1, Acuhb"Ab>, L'CV-*4b"Ab>, < I-bAA->, MY, N-P°

oSV L BPLAR AV PAN< CAo* N<do9A b d° BBL <oSaV <17Pb*.
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doJ aV° APIMAV-A-°> OM9A-° Ta ba V-°IMq9A-° &
CS A <PNo9A° Ta aA AJMr9A-a°
N<rdA-°2019-2020

b<PNa.‘:Pda. PA"N,P<D JoPa b BCHCLYI

Vb b7 AY%b-7P< Ta BPBV- bAIMBUY oS 7'P oS 'a VO NPMMAV-A> DMAA> Ma baV2M9A> AJIMQA-
Vb < VJd7'P JAC APCa' 9ASS BBV CS9A2 <PNo QA Ta baV-2r9° AIM9A->. Vb BBV
AIMPQA= L™ b'7' Qda AT'AV-Aa® DPMa” <AV Ta LYBAPYA? Ta ACoPIDAc' bP>ILbP>:

e JoSaV L"P SLb>S° AIMQA-° ° bP<IN7 Badg9A= AT'AV-Aa®
* AbIbc [ o7A> D>PLA e o >DUILLM

° *Ad*® V' D>PURANY N<do9A- e Ac®° B>DOUrLen

o L2 'AV-E AIMQA> CPC V o J" ALNAA-

o Jor/<' V¥ AIMQA> NVEA °* bBASbVSa o<

D>D>V: b7'P<1, AIM9° JoPaba bLLA' < oAPJSb VP P29, VP I'V:a 9~ [a VP J7MADA-
F>SO<L™ DMA° Mo ASa dA>:

Sraa> I Ao I

« PANG9A> DL Baf9Ac * LAY M o L£CL> Ta P<obCL> oA
« <oPCLIA" APADQ> Vb o CA>A>,
« PANG9A-

° AYd oA, PPoJ 0>, A-CLAA"

* PPUPCL> MNa bAa PP7?

* PPUPCL? <o ["AV A

e fa>CAal> PO Ta
PLYbA-YA->

o JJLJALNAA
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Clients in Bail Supervision Program

80
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Timmins

M New Clients M Closed Files

oll_l_.

Self-Identification (#s of Clients)

9

56

® Substance Misuse

® Mental Health Issues

aA AJr9A-°

® Concurent Dis

66 JA7' Plabo<d™ aA AIMGA> AT'AV-A->,

“P/ LY bY' doPab® ocCJS9Acga” LI~ b¥
>Cob<> BYbNK? e <A7? P<A-DblMd* bANo ™.
>PQ>C> L7< 9OC PA° N<dobo<, <MAL <N
r<7-. b7 Ta PACOLPL?> DPoboCL9. b7
<oPab? BPL <h<ab'.”

- PPLYL> C-€ 4 >= PPL dh<ab!
“DP>V- AIMQA> DCob(C? oCYAa® doSaV®
CJS9Aa® bASCHP? Ta b7 ASNLE>, b7 b7

A7 o<1 <A DBL ©9bl™ bPLIMbUP<<?.”
-a’ A. dVF o’/ dVE PCYICLY - N<
>CYIrcLq
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Sioux Lookout

B Average Number of Indigencus Clients Under Supervision

&6
Reintegration
Clients
Assisted

11 Healing
Circles
Held

6 land-based
prevention
activities held.

b2 b7 VPAT7bo<1™ DIMCLAA? Ta bVSAR, Ta
ASNA-a® DOb> bASAN7bo<<™ BLIMN©Mbo<> N PNbADA <> BN, Ta a CA'P>AR <IV-aMQA> DDL
b><PNobUc P> Na <7 CLAA: AIMAA> AT'AV-A-.

rovA-o NG

“BbAR A7 o CPPM\PJa<o' b A’ PUA° Vb
VR0 dVE Ta bPPaC<Y MPAdabo” DDBL
P<ADbIMd* DA™ oAMN CS9A . LI~ by 5V2o*
AJSY7”

- A7? =FAr->CYICLA PPL <-'ora.<'b}

“LoJ'aV® NPMAV-A> AIMQA> LI~ DMAda<t
>Qo<t A bPLISM'D><™, dofaV' Ta bA”
oJSaV' AAL N7, Vb Ta Ploda< BPCLAA
d~ b Moaldd™ PALNAAc<? Ta MaCLY<™
PPLI SM'B><1~ DCSA o< IAFA= P<ADADBI Y
-b*A°> VZA4* -PPL-Pador9A o



oP° AJM9A-a° N<M1A-22019-2020

b<PNa.“:d*V’ S'V-/" JoP° >PL

<opabe

<oP"AV:A-2: Vb <\ [VC"A obCrar= CAvd-
D>V JoP'AV-A> DAM9A= bAaU' b= 2019.
AJIMQA-= 20 DYP<oPaba> >C7<1> 2019/20, V'
b7 6 <oPaboh. Vb LL® 8 <oPaba’ <b> BP>L
AIrPQA-c? PAS<CoPCLA <oPAa?
bCb-ooP>. Vb- LL® AJM9A-> (NALS) 80 <oPaba?
<70<> Vb: bAYBY'P< 14 PCANT 0° <oPA .

doPA° P>asV-Ac® N
Vb < oPAY%aablDr> <oP° AI9A>
PaSVAQ® b by o<IVC'Aala® Vb
PCACLY  C<I<C'<dbo<® Mba<t<CI<~ Ta

M>a 1<~ BP>V- Cb-Poo 2020.

N<'A9A-> Ta >rCL/A> R

Vb b~ o Al'ba<<ClMa® bAaUP? NK"A9A @
Naa PrCLAA>  bAICQCLd?Y. Vb bPJSTBU
<<U<bA-AF< 2020.

rova>ra <vora->

<\ b o CoPAbIMda PAYaablbU. Vb: LL°
Fo7A> ITa <7bTPA> DCACLY DAIA-CoPL]>
AJMPQA> JoPaba Gra~ I7blPA-a> MUANP?
P>PURANY To7AR Ta <7bTPA> D>Nal9A> DL
bAIU°V<Lo>, <7bT7° aablf9A> Ma <oPabal
>NPDOA-a<>.

<I°N <\ bPAS

Foo9%' AIF9A-o? -

*A<‘Ad' ba V- MAa”: <N DYP LLC® AAY
baV-2MAA> AIMQA> oCo2. LI~ byt DDV
baV-MaA= ASY, Ta bCbY. Vb, b~ olL®
<obCl bl ba V2M9A2 M7y

e doPab’ P'Po"'dL9A>: <N Ta PPV b7
oPP>a Il <oPab’ P'Po'JLIA> <IV-al9A-a>.
bPa.  doPaba' <dIVCIH<KY MP>CAal”
P'Po"LAA> To7A> Ta <7bTPA> DI bPa BYP
<obaba' QA <IWVCIKHIY Pod?
M>CAal.

° JoPA-> Ir9A-a.>: <\ oP° V<o?
PIV-C'AcbU<l 0> DYoo’ <doPAa” DI
bPIdrbUP?, Ta <oP'AV-A'a® 9DOMbUY Vb N
b~ bDrbUP>.

qd-°> ra.?

*"A-CoPL7" <oPaba’ <o 9DOCI-
<LoPAbBIMd* Ta <7M"DA->;

e b M>a Ut <oP'AVAR oS aV dP; Vb

e b7 PPO'FLAA PSY <dYrQAa” DM Ta
<oPaba' P~ <oPAc.

doJaV d"P N<do9A- AT'AV-A> L'"CLFA>,

BB>L PC <doP° AdMP9A-c', PbATALY?

<.oPaba” Db> BPCoP° bQUA <> Brrvd- b

FASN, <oPab?/Ta PCoP'AV- ATADA-c.
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bN<Orot
B>C AJ ACA\ Visit us @ www.nanlegal.on.ca

N/-Aoa.>
FPP-AAPS 1, 1990 <ofa V<P’ DPL-AA® P DS Co<o<? PP ACH' BC 10 AP <oJ'a V<P PP
P o<I<C\ [PV CD <'Va b AC’ <o-Sa V<P«
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boboobUP
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V <N P<<L? o N<PIA® oAaadl < C<P<boaa’ o"C boba AN
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Aco < b P-<AMCP -APAV-Acx
P b-AMaPrd<® b P >SC/ [PV Ybo®
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bP>PL-A' PN<Krld-A> 2019-2020

B <n°>c>HDbP AJ bUPCLM

a"A” oP"UacU? V D>PL-A7> -V-V-AAZC 16 2019b
PLA<IKNP7? o AaadL<* b DPolL-AM -o"C
<KL <ba' b A"AM LYb-AB<-AM b P B>NCP 30
A>2b PNAYbILLY 1 NP<b-AAPC 2020

Do VIv' NLrlA® BC b<PNcbUBL P
<DO"YA> bAS aCVoCHPI ofoABUY b AS
1"U4abU

VAIAM <oJSaV-Ago<
COb APLNIIM<IVoba ‘P o/CAal' b
PUaC-bP

o"C
A"AP

AC"bor-Aax P P>NCL" b-ADMbUx

b AS CV40CL> b ANCb' b AS NKPTb-AY
<o bNALN o<}

88/45  SP<b-AAYS 30 1988x b P
<PNobU-b<*P>PLboA a"dIAa90/26x B>PLba ' b
P <PNab<’x A"A Ta bA dN PP<ocCo-<"
<DO"GA> [PV b P AN LM< <I<N-Ac AUQ BC
oJaV d"Px b P D>SCo <P

N Pr P I<NPLEY Aco1"P* AU9x D>PLB?
a"dD-Aa 89/40 bAC/aUP b P <PNaP'P>PLba’
‘V-V-AAPC 27 1989«

oJaV DPLba' Aa-°
<O"9-Aa 1990 b A>x

b P Da"CM Db

PP <odfbU® b P AS aoU<ocAdaoc<
N<"doc9-Ac' AUAQx D>PLba' D>a"dlAc<® b P
<PNobUob<> 90/26

bAC/aUcP PV CD <IVa PCbAC o"C CD
b DPLAM b P ASadColooxb P AS
<dvodaoc-< >PC doJaV Pk Pr
PA <o Co<’x b P DS Co ' AVdaba D> PIN P
ACH' PP o<dLY-A P P AralPaoc <" Pl Pl o<ox
9ba b P"UolbUP ALNY: PPo<ILYAaAcx
AC"bol-Aa b ASabP Vd B> b P <o dMbUP b P
<TADaoc<Ix Do b PLIN DooClAdaoc < [ Do
Lb Po?DrbU-<1 B>P> Q-bax

b AS 1"UsorbUr P P DSCo<®q9 P
Pro<I<fbU' DL AULb>x P b9 Drour pPr
o0dCo<* N<K<doYA <DO"FAa bY™ Pr
PolCo <P b AC"U* PacuV-Aa [PV IVa DI
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NISHNAWBE ASKI LEGAL SERVICES CORPORATION

FIRST NATIONS COMMUNITIES

a4
<872 Ay,

<
.\'b . Fort Severn @
g £ Hudson Bay
6 s
v %
E z
o
% § 9 Weenusk
0 7
,
"tea, seanct®
o Bearskin Lake
Sachigo Lake Kitchenuhmaykoosib Inninuwug
® Wapekeka
Muskrat Dam Lake @ o Kasabonika Lake TREATY#9
Sandy Lake ® Wawakapewin 1929-30
Koocheching
K . Kingfisher Lake
S-Debr Lake CERaVNIE North Garibou @0 e
TREATY#5 @ Lake e @ Webequie
187576 @ North Spirit Lake
® Poplar Hill @ MacDowell Lake
. Pikangikum ® Neskantaga
Cat Lake
[ J
m Pickle Lake ® Eabametoong &
Marten Fall;
B Red Lake New Slate Falls arten rets
® Mishkeegogamang
Whitewater Lake
TREATY#3
1873 Lac Seul Ui S
W Armstroni
B Kenora .o ’
o Dryden — Sioux Lookout © Aroland

|
Ignace

INDEPENDENT FIRST NATIONS ALLIANCE

Kitchenuhmaykoosib Inninuwug First Nation
Muskrat Dam First Nation

Pikangikum First Nation

Whitesand First Nation

Lac Seul First Nation

WINDIGO FIRST NATIONS

Bearskin Lake First Nation

Cat Lake First Nation
Koocheching First Nation
North Caribou Lake First Nation
Sachigo Lake First Nation
Slate Falls First Nation
Whitewater Lake First Nation

KEEWAYTINOOK OKIMAKANAK

« Deer Lake First Nation

« Fort Severn First Nation

« Keewaywin First Nation

« MacDowell Lake First Nation
« North Spirit Lake First Nation
« Poplar Hill First Nation

Long Lake #58 Y
Geraldton W @ Gincogaming

Lake Nipigon

| Nipigon | Manitouwadge

W Thunder Bay

Lake Superior

SHIBOGAMA FIRST NATIONS COUNCIL

 Kasabonika Lake First Nation
* Kingfisher Lake First Nation
* Wapekeka First Nation

* Wawakapewin First Nation

* Wunnumin Lake First Nation

MATAWA FIRST NATIONS

* Aroland First Nation

e Constance Lake First Nation
* Eabametoong First Nation

¢ Ginoogaming First Nation

* Marten Falls First Nation

e Long Lake #58 First Nation
* Neskantaga First Nation

e Nibinamik First Nation

* Webequie First Nation

Nishnawbe-Aski Legal Services Corporation

138-B Mission Road,
Fort William First Nation, ON

1805 E Arthur St.,
Thunder Bay, ON P7E 2R6

Toll Free: 1-800-465-5581
(T) 807- 622-1413 (F) 807-622-3024
www.nanlegal.on.ca

TREATY#9
1905-06

W Hornepayne

N

<

B Non-Indigenous Communities
O Nen LegalMain Offices Nan
@ Legal Finance Office Nan

Legal Program Offices
50 100 150 200 250

Attawapiskat
L] km
[ J
(]
Kashechewan @
Qe
Fort Albany
James Bay
® MooseGree
Moosonee @2y ocreenec
Flying Post
|

@ Constance Lake
B Hearst

W Kapuskasing
@ Taykwa Tagamou

B Oba ’l Cochrane
Wahgoshig
W Timmins
® Missanabie Cree Beaverhouse
Matachewan
Chapleau Mattagami
Chapleau Cree ® m P W Gogama

Brunswick House
Chapleau Qjibway

MUSHKEG TRIBAL COUNCIL

 Attawapiskat First Nation

e Chapleau Cree First Nation

* Fort Albany First Nation

e Kashechewan First Nation

© Missanabie Cree First Nation
* Moose Cree First Nation

* Taykwa Tagamou First Nation

WABUN TRIBAL COUNCIL

Brunswick House First Nation
Chapleau Ojibwe First Nation
Matachewan First Nation
Mattagami First Nation

Flying Post First Nation
Beaverhouse (affiliate)
Wahgoshig First Nation

INDEPENDENT BANDS  (Bands not afrlated

with any Tribal Council)

» Mishkeegogamang Ojibway Nation

* Mocreebec Eeyoud Coungil

» Sandy Lake First Nation

* Weenusk First Nation
(Peawanuck)



BUbNP-A <D"9q-A°
e ASbNP-A LooMFA°
aablMCA-
CAC-Ac PPOoLYA

° b<a'A <PNo’ IVa VLS [d’ rnAC"do’
e AC-Acg baablA’ bN<K"do’

e bQ"PI-V-A> DC7I"CLSY° Br

e JoJa VA <LLI<b> NK"daFA> B

e TUbMA APAV-A? N<"do A DI
e LL-A'A> <D"QA>

* b-bCPA’ bBNKI LA Aa <A’

b DO NKIIA>

°ebc D BLPAaAS®

° b D ILM<b?

e <DO"QA? [PV IVab” B

e JdoJa VA <IL<ba' N<K"da A~ DI

* bD>PL-A’

* AC-Ac' NKdo A <<LM<b>




2019-2020 N<"do9-A A<I'<db” PN<rJ-A-°

B o "PAYC 1 AcV TPPAACC 31 I

U= L>P2 b DPL-AY v"DN' N<K<"da9-A> D>PL°

s,

AAN

<oP bPoba A V 77 N<"do9-Ac
AUQTY P<PNabo<a' <IVoba'bN<"do™
DC P AS of Al Aca<"P* b ACT VdLb
>P<D> VY- PLYaDNA<c' Pl P <PNocbU
>L P DrbUx

Do Lb cxnd™ P PP [TaV4aChb> b P
<INCd<o <dF-A> b d"CN-bY <P bLaJeun-A’
P PANcbU <<NP-Aa. PC oJaV <P
VLalAM Aco<)x NDa Ad YV 9b> P
Ir<c® <A PL o"C PPLba’ P<PNaL}
>PLLb> a."dIA LYaAboo® V-ArbU Y-V 9b>
PP PAr<c DC QP b AS ACYx vkhd™ CO
<Va b AC"K? PIP>DAbIdY P PJSAY
VN<da’ Lb"U<Lolbo' Ad DI of<bo-<PPx
o"C ACbH> PPodLIA> DL P d/-A°
o<c® o"C PLY<I' ©"C PI" ©"C aab®
ACba 9D <<AFADa o< Tb™ DL V AP
©"C bC ACba L/aAba 9 <N <<PNabUP
V-ACLbo<t® 9 DrbU Vbo VYb? oL
<D"9A°  bPobaAac<d® V dodrbUP
Lo<oAa bC ACba LaAba PIr -<<-ArbU*
VOoroUx <"Vodaoc<PPlTa <NA>Q9PM P AN
o<oP Qba Pl P <D"brouUP B> NK"dao9-A
<0"9-Aa. V-bo VJ' <dYodM NK"doQAc' b
<I<NPMx

Vbo b AS <dvodaoc<P< P ACH
PPo<dLIA> DL DI NK'daoFA <D"9-Aax
<oP b Pobol NK'doqr/-<* b P AJS <dNo ™
Lo<oAa b ofCM <Ado9Aa PacyV-Ac
AU9x <oP YV o"C CDO%V b ACM b
D>PL-AM DL bP AU PEPDMCLAM B> 9ba
N<"'do9-Ac’ AUAx 9 P DI To<cAdA’ V
<DO"brbUoPx

oP<LAMNdaoc' Aco<d QMo "o
A b ©"C LYP-bbL" ©"C LG/ C¢ -Aa°
b P-ACP' VI o<ooP D> <D0"YAa b AS
<I<LPCMx o"C VPITaM 9 ASo<M A"A V
POUM DNC-Ac<t DI »"C VN<AbUgP
D>ASAY-Ac<|<x bC -ArbU° Lb A"A <-Va. 9P
<A AbU PP ADU DNC-Aa Dx

CJ o ACba PPodLYAa V-AMBU 9 AN
Aot o"C V ACHP PacvV-Aa
Qo oAbUP by™m PP Pl o<oAdM
>P<D>-VY-<? AYdobo' b <I<N/Mx PACH?
aP'bD-A> TP-AAPE 3 Ac' 4 bCDdaPr’/
2020x P <o 1rbU1 a.ab® LLoAa. ASbNF-A
LoolD-Ac' ©"C aab® Lo<c'Aax CSo b
<o IrbUP b APP b AS ACY CDO ©"C Va b
<PCLMx

- 12 -



P PPodL-<bo<a‘ b IKN/bCP' DD
<O"qAa aab® b ASabP b <IO"brouUP
LLo'Aaa ©"C b AJS AUclt <IVob?
LCANP® b AUol’x VaaCA P"QobU
CU VILbP B> aab® b AN <IVob?
VALNY'x <P  ©"C  bA DPNafP
DAL At VL o"C b <Tr
PPodLbo<t* PI* P D" o/DOrbU b AUo
<IVob>x »"C Lb 1b™ IVob> ofT" b
<<AC’ QCC-A° Lb La bLo<o V-bolL o"C

PPodLIA> b ACbH o"C BYbN\* V P
PPoL >NC"borAc<1< ol
bOroUc V ALIMD>-A’x

Pro<a® [PV 9b° b P AS PP o<lLbo <
aab® dba b <I<NPbrbUP N<"do-dAc 9 P
DF [Mood™  <<P<dba  VolCP
>CD A<l

> LlaAba P DJSCo<a D> DI
<D"QAa  N<doFAbId* b  <I<CPx
VPL/a DM »"C doP <<M<ba' »"C V
P-A"b/a AbUP ‘ACLY'A LPaAba V-ArbU' b
AS PP ANCHP b AS LLoo T’ <IVab? L~
La blruvbobN’ <Vax PY"bPaAbU° o"C
<d-A> IA 19 b AL <o dMbU
NPt ALPaAboo® bolC’ n U= LF> DL
ACYa A°cjohnson@nanlegal.

VdC  AJTon<]l  LlaAb® DBJSC49
N<rld49x b P AlMVADa<® b AS
AMVAcbUP LPa Aba x

dCPy7 —o"C ACba b P -ACLO™
o C<M<boaa ‘x o"C >C b >r
aablCo <P <ID"Q-Abl-bx >L >r
N<'doc9A <DO"QA>x P <olrbU<o
>P<>-VIY-<* bP Bl b~

baP'bDa o <IP<> [P/-AAFC 2 ©"C 4 2020 b
P <o IrbUP aab® LLooD-Aa
<IbNP"CYA° o"C ASBNA LoolSAa
DUbNN V QS CPIM <IC V ACH Pacu'V-A?
DL AP DI b9 PAMCo<Mx <aP CO b P
ACH VaPbDaoc<oog' PPLba' -—o"C

D>PLbocS ' ©"'C doSaV BPLP>VY-<' ©"C
dCPY% <'Voba' b P <o drbU' DL NK'da9-A
<D"GA° Ago< b A<g-Cr 9 P -<ArM
Aco-A AYdobo b ACol L< <ogA b
<PCL<bo Aol bblfNal ©"CTb ASTKLPIT
>C QP AJ -ArAlMMx

Vba << aab® ‘APAV-A
PPo<dLYAa P ACba [DoolboA
Lo<oA> ©"C °DdoaA'AMA-V-Aa. 9 P DC
<IVa QqQCCA> <Va b<PS <4 V ANY
>ooAct AS P P AS C-ACA’ PCH?
PP o<dLIA> DL BMx <b"P* »"C DI Y-V 9P
AL <AMA’ <'Va. VLo<o’ P P"Po<Lbo<x
<{Vgb® b P"Qol’ VLI DocC' Pr
oS <alANY 9 P AS aabl’ PCH?
PPodLIA> DL DBIfx Tb~ ofY V AC
<IVab? bLo<cAd’ Lb DALNZ-A> 9 P DI
o?/C-AcbU' DL Lo<acAx B>d b I<N/M b P
AS PPOoALM 9 P AS <TAPM DUYbMNN V
PPN DNC"borlAcc® ALN-Ac

AUQ <P AUAGx CD 962 b P PP odLbo<®
Do bC T o<cAd<' cC<LM<boaa‘'bP AS
PP o<dLM Acg¥ b >DdocA <IN PP P <N
AFCr B> 9ba BbPUPD-Ac<® AU 9 AS
bUPCI PP A<NbCP PI P AJS AM-CM Y-V
AdAS 9P AS <TAM-CM DCLN-Ac<* ©"C
PP P <I<rCM DCLMC Ao <I<Ix

- 13 -



aab® PPo<dlL9Aa P ACbHa VPPLALM
b'A PPo<dLAM Vba <<KCP' Lo<o-Aa L
ASbNP-A LooMSAc ©"C <IbNP"CYAcx
LM ACAc P ACH? aP'bDA
PULLYA> TPP-AAPS 5 "C 6 2020«
o C<M<boaa'Pb’PC<I' VP ADUM aab®
Lo<cA 9Qba V P odCLDOMx -o"C
VPaA<o' o NMCCA°> VP JocldC' V&S
<D"9Lboot VI"NISA N<"doAcoc®
©»"C VS'aboo' Ago' AUQ NK"doQ-Aca®
b I<MCooog'x xnd™ VADY V ASa-boaP
>> PP o<LYAa ©"C b AJS P UcMbUoPx

LP~ Lb b P AU <P VU bD>PLLC
PobaA'A NK'do9Acga® P <N bMCL“b P
AUcl <o CCx o"C Do bY™ P dN
a/C-AgbU® b AJab' [DoolboA
Lo<o-Aax

PPo<LYA> ACA> DI

PUb D>V2CE V P-AP <I<NPIT7 <Ier® >/
DY 96> Fa P D>M<c® PI PPo<Lbo<t
o"C V P AC’ QP PP o<ILYx BT > >UP

Qbo° <'b ASaTbCPx "C° PPY P D>Na“
PP A<oC’ LLCA 9ba PP 9ba bC
PP o<dLA° ‘-Aa. bC obo® PDlo° <I<KN/-Agc®
Pl PPodLY bC Al <N inUs Lla
b>PLLCI o Pobo<A NK"doFAco® <<
Lb "CL? ‘Aa bC P"PodL9® PTlo° DB'P
<I<LN-Aga®x o\" Lb AYdaba."P' DL bC AS
DCS ABMbS, \°N Y, PI o TdPAY, <C<IAY,
Qrr-<P, llo' o"C ACVdIx ‘Aa AUcCdr°
N’V 9bo° Pr -ACLY "C Pl P"Po<L9’x
o"C Pl P"Po<dL<’ <'Voba CD 9 <TArx
b Alaboo' DNC-Acc' Vb VVb DL DA
PP o<dLYAca® b <yolx Do Ad khd™ b AS
aCVaCboo' bC AJS PPodLY® PN ofo<
b AC"Uo" PPo<dLYAca® b P <PNal’ Pr
A< C’' b AJS obClx

V PYb o’ Blo° <<KNP-Acgo® <1 "C>
Do -V2C*e PLMDooC*c <1C<NP-A>
VSaboo' 9 AS <TAMNC/ <oSaV 4P
AYdaba b ACbooPx Vb »"C CV V
ACbooP <<rcA PP o<dLY A 9
AJaboob<?

- 14 -



P AUobU° PP P ACH' DL <D"9-A> ©"C PP ACH ' b
Pr<c' <yIAc?A’” 9 P JI<C' Vol'Co' L <D"9q-A>
M’’VAapP P Tlo<cAdaoc < CDbACHP A’dabax tnd”
Mo b AS A™b aAabP AYdoba b AS ACbP Ja AP P
<I<NPLba B> <YyJAcYArx b AS aCVaChb' PP AS
PPodlbo <" VS <DOMLb' DL N<K"dodA <D"FA> b
ACH' doJaV dP% b AS AP <L D>d
N<'do9A <I<N'Acc® bA <o Colr Vb DN wnd”
VI o<o' oL <YJAcYA” b <I<C' b PSY"U<Lo b DI
<I<LPCo® DL D <A<N-A> PP P A<ogCo<* PP
Pl o<ox

"Co? ‘Aa ASM<o® V Da"CA B> <<N-Aa. VAP
<I<KNL! <cra D>VUCE PP ofCM b ACaUgP o P
PP o<dLAMx <o~ bDOrbU <o L PPo<LIA® PP ACH ' b
<A PS<IW<o’/ <IVa PM ACb' Pl P PPodLbo<x Pl
ACH' Do DI TPV Ad Aco<"Px aab® 9ba Pr
PPOAL v P DCPY »"C 7 b ACNocoP IV
PP o<dLYAa P ACHP b bA<Pa 9 La <Va L
M adoaP >C<ValAbax

PL<<ICPaC I >4 -Aa b P PPo<ILY VP-APAY
't AN, UN- 2o, UA Jdlo?, Udn T, doony

D25 VD5 v:N", LY LNB", 9 Sbo, -P>¢ DP", ©o"C "C°
P-PxVd B>d b P PPoLA™ b P IS V Ba"Co oo
>To° PPo<LYAcgo® b P LodfbUcP CU q P DI -AlA/
<IVob> b <9A PS<IW' aab® 9ba bC <IKCa V
PPo<dLbo<' V PPo<LM CD 9 ACT B>Cx

Pa.JV-A°> AS-bN/-A
Lool9Ac' ©"C AdAD-A°

pPUb D>V2CE V P <yDOrbUN DL Lo<oA? o"C
Vba <<MbU' Pacu'V-Ac' AU ©'C PacoV-Aa Al
Ago<"P' b ACbP o"C <ol PobaAA> NK"do9-A>
V P ba<<rbUP B> <D0"F-Aax [PV b AJS Db PP
> -ALPAM bLo<o ™ DP<P>V/<''V P ST ACM b P
<IOrbUcx B> Lo<oAa baP'PbUP CSo b AS
ACYx P P'UoLbo<a' DPD>VY-<' VPCH' DL DA
aPbDA? AooA DPLD>VY-< DI« [PV AS V P AS
PUabUY 9b> b P <o drbU* b P bPYbDa o< PI
P-Ar-Co<IP AYdobax LYQdAYdaba "P* b DI P AC<
°"C -Aa<°




LL° 20 PCS < b P PP o<LM B> aab® La<olb P
PPodLM o"C <oP b P b/rbd™ D> D
Lo<og-Aax ASBN'A LooFAc ©"C oNoFAc
AU b DN <dA’ <IVa VoNaboA’x P
aaC<rbUe CPU 9 P AS ArCo<P D>
Lo<o-Aax ©"C Pl P PPo<Lbo<x <oSaV P’
bC o C<KT° cvag7a Na <N A>ca QS x

b P bPbIa.c<* C°DO%V Vbo awvh DL V POrbUN V
o Co<) PacoV-Aax Tb™ baP'Daoc<t <oP b
>C<LN-Ac™ DacoV-A AUQ P <YWTDCLY D>
Qbax PI bY™ V P ILPCM ©"C bY™ V P DCM V
<M 100 PCS < <oP b P VI ADUMx

orPofa” V- ACL' ©"C VP P>Nal'b P AS <dYod™
b P AJS dodrbUc BacoV-Aao®x <ol AUcCb>
5b P AS dodrbUP BP> QUM <o' Ab IbS VP2 b
LYPbbLY ©"C L™"bG C% A"A <I<ABUbLV 9ba Pl P
<IKNVWaoc< >0<c9 PL dd-A> dA’ 19x <GTAY
<°" PbOral<tt  VPVALLM DOPLbol I o"C
>P<D>V/- Pl <o ICP' D> Gbax

N<"do QA <I<N-A> bPaba AM b oCM P >No-<
>UP <I<M<dba. ©"C dCPY <'Vaba 9P -AM-Co >Cb
ASoPCY BL <<NAx b AS ofCo<t
VN<"dabU' ASbNP-A Lo Aa. ©"C oNoS'Aa
b DA <IbNP"COa o< PP AC! <a. 9P aa CLY
>L AJS PP P-AC CPU 9P PNalal B>ArAdY-Aco©x
V ACbHP D> D1 <D"YAa b DM APA’ <Va. o"C V
ACH' N<KdoFA <D"FA> b AS ofCo< b
Poba A b AS ACH b <D%WCPx V ACH
>aco VA2 b DI LI 0<cCo <P 9ba. PacurV-Ac' b
AJ N<"dabUPx

PofCo<o<® DL <D0MA° =oU b P
aP%bIac<P<> IPPAAFPE b dM 5 ©"'C 6 <"
AC-Acx [PV Lo<o-Aa. baP'PbUP P o IrbU<ox
v P DI AN AA<c' BPL N<K'doA <D"Q-A°
bolCo<' Pl PI o<o-Ada.o<x

<o~ b ASabP B> <D"FAa CO b AS ACHP ©"C
o Co <P doP b I<KNbCPY ©"C da. U= L P
a"A” "Moo CTAI<' V ACY b BPLBCY <PC ALY
ACAc VI o<P-Col DCL<ba

/
bN<"do 9 A AN/

N<"do9A <DO"FAa P7A" AJULbaa o"C bP
<ILKPCM 266 CD b P ASTHPM BPCx Do I o<a®
>L <D"9A° [o<cAd<' b ILFCM »"C CO b
ASTAD BC P AS o CA’ PNK"dad-A° V ACbP
9 P B -APAM bLLoM™ <IVoba'x o"C V ACHP
LPaAba o¥ba bL/aUP 9 P DCIM P P-AFAM >C
>L DA NKdo A <I<N-AAMAV-Acgx ol -ooUa>
V-ACLY V-Qa' VHNLPaU'Y NLPIAL/aAbot DL
‘APAV-A> ©"C V DI PPo<LILb b AS -ACLM
b-ACAMx

16 DL <DO"QA° b P JodfbUY P AN ACba
aPbDAa  PPLP>V/N VPALCIY CPU P
VSaboot Plo® <dD"FAcc® b <I<C
VPobaAaoc<' V L7 DOMbUr VNKdobo < >d B
bLLo M <I-Voba x

P>UbNNY <D"FA° b AS <TAFAM <"PPba. bolCM
V ACH' <D"QA> b B -ArFAMx

oL b Ao’ PL Lo<cA> BN\ B b DI
<PCLM o"C V' ANobooP Acd' b AS <PCLM >d
>YbNNY bADo9Mx b I<NPM Lb Vba I<CP* Acd* b
AS <PCLIMT -Aa<° bC P"qcC-L* C°U 9 AJS DCPY
Pr P-ACAITx VPY 9 P <N b9 oCLIM DD
baoc<ocol NK"do3Ac' AU9b A<golA VVY

- 16 -



‘OO VASM ALM<ba Plabo<ta Pl ofCMH B>
bN<"dobUcP 9 P DI P"Po]LI™ Pr ACHP
bPobaAac < b AS <7MTADaoc<I'x AN AC-Aa
PIA"CE << b PPLLC Dlo® <D"9-Ago®c G-
P V-AMC/ coo7ot AUSQ P P B L<DAC
cvo7a 9 P I<NWolt VICVAIMT B> BY%NNx P
<NAJULL> DL b P AS DrbU' aab® TCV-Aa
>P<D>V/-< VAPCM ©"C Ago<) V-AIMCMx

VPACHP ©"C 9ba b DI TCVAM BVbNL o"C
‘AN V P PNobUP b P AS aoU<oP b DI
ACVAr BV V P LIA <I<KNPM <I<M<bat <a
o"C "Co> PPY b bPD>’ VC</a A9 PalP'bV°
B>UbNN P aTdAY BL b P AS APY ©"C ACVJY
MNDo PoY PICVbo<a' IS x > ©o"C
>L PDOrbU° PoU <aA-VLb> Lb dA’ 19 <dF-A>x

P AC ©"C PLYI* PI* VI <TAMCM o"C Lb
PLdha<P BUbNN' B ©o"C PLY<I<' BNV PodCM
b P AS PPOoALI™ PNCbol A< b P AS
aCVaolMx

o P?DCLC cvo?7? b~ > Db ACH Pl o< ° DD
> bLo<cAd™ D>YbN\Y <"PPba. bolCr Pr
P-ACLM Vd"CN-baoP B> 9ba ©o"C V PPN V
< Mr<o-CA’ PNC"bor-Ac-<< AYdoba’ "P* DL
P AJ Droue -P2¢Y PP Y<LD' b B bP-AM-C’ Do
PlroocCLY BYbNix BL b P AS DrbUc AP? 9b°
b-ADIbU P AP

BL b~ b P A>' 275 CD PCS<T* BN\ b P
<ILPCM Blo® <9"YAco® o"C Mo aabocCL'V
P>NaP' o"'C V ILKPCM b AS -ACLM <N aPPLb?

o"Cx

Vd b ANM P>V P -AMCP P NK<DCP
>> 9ba bDCL VAP <N bN<K"do9A
<I<No V- A<M x

Nlo<o°x

- 17 -



N<"do9-A <O"9-A° N<KMJ-A° V7dA>> Aod'x

120

100

80

60

40

20 l

2 N _wlw_wn B 0wl _allale ..
x 2.2

A Q& ® Q@ 0PN LS D 2 2 W2 \@ S QN @@ O
S N e e G R e
@“:; it{o‘},sxe:\@' (a;;,oob 0&@4\%&2& o@i@i@i@i&%ﬁ‘ NP z&%@“&&%cgo&%é%é@@os&\ ,@“QQQ{S'\\X,DQ‘E;«@%%(‘
Pt & Q’,SO RS *_@" > \(&&‘\’o(\%\&@ ‘.Q?/ é\\’ <P X Tep 2
(\) C *‘ go ‘,}\ \‘.Qeo @A
< o & o <
& ™

B Referrals to the RJ YJ Programs by Community

Prevention Cases Vs Probation

RJ Program Post Charge vs Pre-charge
Referrals
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Gladue Reports: April 1, 2019-March 31, 2020

North East: Timmins 34
North West: Sioux Lookout-Kenora 37
North Central: Thunder Bay
Total 98
North East Adult Youth Male Female
Kashechewan 3 2 1
Fort Albany 6 5 1
Attawapiskat 16 9 7
Moose Cree 7 5 2
Brunswick House 1 1

1

Peawanuck (Weenusk) 1
34
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w

Total 11

[NorthWest | Adult Youth  Male [Female |
Pikangikum 1 5

Lac Seul 1
Kasabonika
Poplar Hill

Big Trout Lake (KI)
Keewaywin

Cat Lake

North Spirit Lake
Sandy Lake
Sachigo

Slate Falls

Total

North Central
Webequie
Constance Lake
Marten Falls
Bearskin Lake
Fort Hope
Summer Beaver
Long Lake #58
Fort Severn
Attawapiskat
Neshkatanga
Sandy Lake
Aroland

Cat Lake
Wunnimun
Ginoogaming
Total
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Together Files ntFiles eson esHeldd J Caseswhe enwhoare { lies CirclePartic
Program Carried Opened WaitLis uringthe J| reAgreem thefocus Involved ipants
Service Forward Duringth tatendo Year ent ofTalking
Area atAprill/ eYear fFiscal reached Circle

19 Year during
theTalking
Together

James 20 20 17 47 30 110 40 240
Bay
Timmins 9 14 17 7 2 47 23 26
Sioux 6 5 9 2 0 27 11 10
Lookout
Thunder 24 19 24 33 27 112 43 194
Bay
CCCN 17 9 5 29 18 40 26 174
North Bay
Total 76 67 72 118 77 336 143 644
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Nishnawbe -Aski Legal Services Corporation
Legal Aid Ontario-Duty Counsel Statisitics
Thunder Bay Advice Lawver

April 1,2019 - March 31, 2020

TOTALS

Criminal 84| Phone Call 216|Male 113
Family 79| Walk In 61|Female 164
Employment 24| Email 0

Civil 33| Follow Up 0

Admin 0

Estate 20

First Nation 5

Treaty 0

Other 32

Matawa Windigo

Aroland 3 Bearskin Lake 7
Constance Lake 8 Cat Lake 3
Eabametoong 13 Koocheching 0
Ginoogaming 9 North Caribou 2
Hornepayne 0 Sachigo Lake 4
Long Lake #58 4 Slate Falls 2
Marten Falls 11 Whitewater Lake 0
Neskantaga 1 Total 18
Nibinam ik 2 Wabun

Webequie 7 Beaverhouse 1
Total 58 Brunswick House 3
IFNA Chapleau 0
Kitchenuhm aykoosi 5 Matachewan 3
Lac Seul 11 Mattagami 0
Muskrat Dam 3 Wahgoshig 3
Pikangikum 8 Total 10
Whitesand 0 Mushkegowu

Total 27 Attawapiskat 10
Independants Chapleau Cree 2
Flying Post 0 Fort Albany 5
Mishkeegogamang 7 Kashechewan 5
Mocrebec 0 Missanabie 0
Sandy Lake 16 Moose Cree 10
Weenusk 2 Taykwa Tagamou 1
Total 25 Total 33
Keewaytinook Okimakanak Shibogama

Deer Lake 5 Kasabonika Lake 1
Fort Severn 5 Kingfisher Lake 8
Keewaywin 6 Wapekeka 2
MacDowell Lake 0 Wawakapewin 0
North Spirit Lake 1 Wunnumin Lake 1
Poplar Hill 3 Total 12
Total 20 Other

TOTAL CLIENTS ASSISTED = 277
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(LAO)TNo9A-°> CAAY- N<r1A-a.°2019-2020

NALSC Pa.dor9A oo Na. LYa."Abo" BCYICLA PP>L a.°> N<do9A-bld>

Duty Actual Budget Variance Persons Total Cost Per | Total Cost
Counsel Assisted/ Amount Person/ Per Person
Type month month
Criminal $2,069,709 $1,949,187 ($S120,522) 0 0
Duty (6.2%)
Counsel
(Aircrafts)
Criminal $20,002 $15,739 ($4,263) 67 386 $48 $52
DC Adult (27.1%)
(perdiem)
Criminal $1,523 $3,934 $2,411 0 31 $49
DC Youth 61.3%
(perdiem)
Criminal $2,173,763 $1,934,753 ($239,011) 236 3,885 $476 $560
GDR (12.4%)
(DC&
Certificate)
Total $4,264,998 $3,903,613 ($361,385) 303 4,302 $1,566 $991
Criminal (9.3%)
DC
DC Family SO $4,427 $4,427 0 0
Court 100.0%
(Per di em)
Advice $65,866 $89,502 23,636 17 316 $244 $208
Lawyer 26.4%
General
(In office)
Advice SO $2,459 $2,459 0 0
Lawyer 100.0%
Special
(Special
DC)
DC Civil $65,866 $96,387 $30,522 17 316 S244 $208
Total 31.7%
TOTAL $4,330,863 $4,000,000 ($330,863) 320 4,618 $1,496 $938
Crim and (8.3%)
Civil DC
. . . . . Chart
Persons Assisted (Criminal & Civil) Data
Total Expense — Actual
600 and Budget # of Persons Assisted
500 Per:_;ons
Month Actual Budget Month  Assisted
400 Apr 195277 161556 Apr 218
May 293,843 295,067 May 564
300 Jun 373765 362,034| Jun 409
200 - Jul 438,627 238,478 Jul 280
Aug 381,733 560,580 Aug 394
100 - Sep 213,386 260,700 Sep 377
0 Oct 209,776 297,657 Oct 396
Nov 427 852 458,657 Nov 4338
‘,.Q‘\\ @'5\ \o*‘e’ \&* o‘«")‘} N éoé @é (;9"‘ \;od ‘\;&* ,b@‘\ Dec 474318 235930 | Dec 341
Q'@' o’ oée’ & \'bo Q';? & Jan 357,631 324,793 Jan 280
o & Feb 430,869 293681| Feb 551
Mar 478786 510.867 Mar 320

- 31 -




NAN ZONE 1(EAST COURTS)
Northern Court April 1, 2019 — March 31, 2020

ATTAWAPISKAT

FORT ALBANY

KASHECHEWAN

April 10/19, April 17/19

May 29/19, June 12/19

July 17/19, August 14/19
October 9/19, November 20/19
November 27/19, January 15/20
January 22/20, March 11/20

April 24/19, June 26/19
August 28/19, October 30/19
December 18/19, January 29/20

January 17/19, February 21/19
March 14/19, March 28/19

April 18/19, June 13/19

June 27/19, August 22/19
September 26/19, October 17/19
November 14/19, December 12/19
January 16/20, February 13/20
March 12/20, March 26/20

MOOSONEE

PEAWANUK

April 2, 3, 4/20, May?7, 8, 9/20

June 4, 5, 6/20, July 9, 10,11/19
August 6, 7,8/19, September 3, 4,
5/19, October 1, 2, 3/19, November
5, 6, 7/19, December 3, 4, 5/19,
January 7, 8, 9/20

February 4, 5, 6/20, March 3, 4, 5/20

May 1/19, August 29/19
February 20/20

CONSTANCE LAKE, MISSINABIE CREE, CHAPLEAU CREE, BRUNSWICK
HOUSE, CHAPLEAU OJIBWAY, WAHGOSHIG, MATACHEWN, MATTAGAMI,
NEW POST, MOCREEBEC, BEAVERHOUSE, FLYING POST, HORNEPAYNE

Nishnawbe-Aski Nation members attend urban courts in NAN territory

NAN ZONE 2 (CENTRAL)

Northern Courts April 1, 2019 — March 30, 2020

EABAMETOONG

NESKANTAGA

MARTEN FALLS

April 25/19, May 30/19

June 13/19, August 8/19
September 26/19, November 21/19,
February 6/20, March 12/20

April 10/19, August 15/19
November 6/19, February 13/20

May 8/19, August 28/19
November 27/19, February 19

NIBINAMIK

WEBEQUIE

FORT SEVERN

April 29/19, July 8/19
October 28/19, February 20

April 29/19, July 8/19
October 28/19, January 29

May 13/19, August 19/19
February 10/20

AROLAND, GINOOGAMING, LONGLAKE#58, WHITEWATER LAKE

Nishnawbe-Aski Nation members attend urban courts in NAN territory
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NAN COURTS - ZONE 3 (WEST)

2020
BEARSKIN LAKE CAT LAKE DEER LAKE
February 11 January 28 January 13
March 23
KASABONIKA KEEWAYWIN KINGFISHER
February 12 (Trials) February 18 January 30
March 19
MUSKRAT DAM NORTH SPIRIT POPLAR HILL
January 6 February 24 January 27
March 30
SACHIGO LAKE SANDY LAKE WUNNUMIN LAKE
January 20 February 3 January 21 (changed to
April 6 video-small docket)
PIKANGIKUM PIKANGIKUM PIKANGIKUM
YCJA, CFSA/CLRA, Lists Trials
JPT’s
January 7 January 8, 22 January 10, 14, 15, 16
February 4 February 5, 19 February 21
March 3 March 11, 25 March 2,4 10, 17, 31
NAN COURTS - ZONE 3 (WEST)
2020
KITCHENUHMAYKOOSI | WEAGAMOW WAPEKEKA
B
January 9 January 23 March 20
February 13 February 20
March 12 March 26
LAC SEUL - DRIVE IN MISHKEEGOGAMANG

PICKLE LAKE - DRIVE IN

January 29
February 12
March 25, 26

January 17, 24, 31
February 7, 14
March 5 13, 27

NEW SLATE FALLS, CAT LAKE, MACDOWELL LAKE, WAWAKAPEWIN,

KOOCHECHING, SAUGEEN

Nishnawbe-Aski Nation members attend urban courts in NAN territory
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Clients in Bail Supervision Program
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